
 

                                                 

 

                                                                      

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY,  MAY 21, 2013 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)  

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2013 
      Page 1 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/21/2013 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 21, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo,Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

 
a.  Minutes for Approval:  May 7, 2013 

Tentative  

Subject to Revision 

1

 
1 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2013 
      Page 2 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/21/2013 
 

 
 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - None 
 

.  
 

 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  - None 
 
 
 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading) – None 
 
 
 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  
 

a.  Public Hearing:  - None  
 

 
 
8.   RESOLUTIONS  -None 
 
 
 9.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 
 
 
 
 
 
   

2

 
2 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2013 
      Page 3 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/21/2013 
 

 
 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
 
 a.  Pond Siting Update (Town Manager Kutney)  
 
 b. Discussion regarding speed humps (Councilman Rockett)  
 
 c. Discussion Regarding Cleaning Compton Road Drainage Ditch Prior to Road 

Being Re-surfaced (Vice Mayor Jarriel) 
 
 d. Discussion Regarding Town Newsletter  (Town Manager Mark Kutney) 
  
 e. Administrative Policy 3-13 (Councilman Jim Rockett) 
 
 f.   Traffic light at D Road and Okeechobee Blvd. (Councilman Jim Rockett) 
 
 g.   Traffic light at D Road and Southern Blvd.  (Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel) 
 
 
 
 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. ITB 2013-001 Gravel Road Grading, Mowing, and Vegetative Removal Services 
– Contract Approvals (three) for Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
(LGWCD): 

 
1. Road Grading and Rock Material 
2. Road Repairs 
3. Emergency Call Out 

  
   
b..   ITB 2013-001 Gravel Road Grading, Mowing, and Vegetative Removal Services 

– Contract Approval for C & C Loader: 
 

3

 
3 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2013 
      Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/21/2013 
 

 1. Mowing,Vegetative Removal and Dumping Fees 
 

 
c. RFQ 2013-001 Professional Engineering Services – Ratification of Selected 

Respondents [General Engineering:  Keshavarz & Associates; Land Surveying:  A 
& B Engineering, Inc.  Traffic Engineering:  Simmons & White, Inc.] 

 
  
12.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next Town Council Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 4, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

 Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4

 
4 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

2.a. Minute:  May 7, 2013 

 

5

 
5 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 1 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 7, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo,Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Vice Mayor Ronald D. 
Jarriel, and Councilmen Jim Rockett.  Councilman Goltzené and Councilman Liang were not in 
attendance. Also present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Clerk Susan Eichhorn, Town 
Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., and Town Planning Technician Braeden Garrett. 
 
 
 

6

 
6 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 2 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 

c. Approval of Agenda 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel requested the addition of Item d., under Old Business – “County donated 
parcels of land”. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  The motion passed 3/0. 
 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 
b.  Minutes for Approval:  March 19, 2013; April 2, 2013, April 16, 2013  
  
c. Amended Administrative Policy 3-13  - Rules of Procedure for Town Council Meetings 

(Approved through Resolution No. 2013-03, and amended at Town Council Meeting of 
April 2, 2013). 

 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded Councilman Rockett.  The motion passed 3/0. 
 
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Browning called for public comment.  There was none. 
 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Presentation by Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School (Liz McKean. PTO representative) 
 
Liz McKean, on behalf of the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School PTO addressed the Mayor 
and Town Council regarding the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School carnival on May 18, 
2013. 
 

7

 
7 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 3 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel made a motion to donate $500 to the Loxahatchee Groves 
Elementary School PTO for the school carnival.  The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Rockett.  On roll call, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
 
 

b. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) (Terry L. Morton, Jr., CPA, Nowlen, Holt & 
Miner, P.A.)  

 
Terry Morton addressed the Town Council and provided a brief report on the CAFR.   
 
 
 

a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report and Approval of the February 2013 
Financial Reports – Committee Member Virginia Standish 
 
Councilman Rockett noted that the March 2013 Financial Reports were being reported.   
 
FAAC Member Virginia Standish provided a brief report. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the March 2013 Financial 
Reports.  The motion was seconded by Jarriel.  The motion passed 3/0. 
 
 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading) – None 
 
 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  
 

a.  Public Hearing:  - None  
 

 
 
8.   RESOLUTIONS  -None 
 
 
 9.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

8

 
8 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 4 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided information regarding the tentative budget timetable; discussion 
with FDOT regarding a traffic signal at Southern and D Road; the FDOT pond siting meetings;  
the presentation by Representative Mark Pafford at the June 4, 2013 Town Council meeting; the 
RFQ for town engineering services; a town newsletter, and the Land Design South project 
(Loxahatchee Groves Commons) considered by the Planning and Zoning Board at the April 11, 
2013 meeting.  Mr. Kutney explained that the item had been tabled at the Planning and Zoning 
Board meeting, and he would be returning to them to request that it be taken off the table, due to 
time delays to the developer that would result. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the town newsletter.  It was suggested that a post card is sent out 
to residents to ask if they want a newsletter periodically listing news and what was being 
accomplished, of whether they wanted to rely on email 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to direct the town Manager to send out a post 
card, as discussed, with results provided back to the Town Council.  The motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  On roll call, the motion carried 3/0. 
 
 
 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS  
 

 a. Discussion regarding speed humps (Councilman Rockett) 
 

Discussion took place regarding which speed table device would be adopted by the Town. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that he understood the desire to move quickly.  The Town would 
be taking over the roads from the LGWCD, and one issue with speed humps was the type of 
hump being utilized and the distance between humps. When the engineer comes on board a study 
could be done to be sure that we get a recommendation for the future template that the Town 
would seek to use.   
 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Marshall Newell, 3508 C Road:  Commented regarding speed bumps, and how they affect her 
back.    
 

9

 
9 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 5 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Penny Riccio 12795 71st Place North, in the acreage:  Commented on the method and procedure 
used in paving of various roads, and that speed humps on Orange had cut the accidents down to 
zero 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Rd.:  Commented regarding how the speed humps were selected by the 
LGWCD.   
 

 
 
 b. Discussion Regarding Cleaning Compton Road Drainage Ditch Prior to Road Being Re-

surfaced (Vice Mayor Jarriel) 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel stated that the drainage ditch on Compton Road needed to be cleaned out 
before the road is resurfaced.  The culverts on Compton and F Road also needed to be replaced. 
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel made a motion that after the ITB was finalized, that the 
lowest bidder is allowed to work on the drainage ditch while the Town was waiting on a 
contract. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that a contract would be ready for the May 21, 2013, Town 
Council meeting, and staff could also have a notice to proceed on the drainage ditch project that 
same evening.  
 
Councilman Rockett seconded the motion for discussion. 
 
After further discussion, Vice Mayor Jarriel withdrew his motion and Councilman Rockett 
withdrew his second. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
 
Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Blvd.:   Provided information on Marcella, Compton and Bryan 
Roads.     
 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that Bryan road is different because there was no paperwork or 
survey.  It would be different from Compton and Marcella.  It will take some time to put things 
in place for Bryan Rd.   
 

10

 
10 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 6 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Discussion continued regarding right-of-way easements, the need for surveys of the roads, 
getting a plan in place for road resurfacing,  Town Attorney Cirullo stated that staff would 
present a plan for the Town Council to review at the next meeting. 
 
 
 c. Discussion Regarding Cost To Micro-Resurface Bryan Road, Compton Road, and 

Marcella Blvd. (Vice Mayor Jarriel) 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel stated that he had looked at some road projects in Jupiter Farms, and that 
when the Town issued a bid for the roads, two quotes were needed, one for asphalt and one for 
micro surfacing over the OGEM. 
 
Public Comment: 
  
Jorge Perez, 1544 B Rd:  Commented regarding micro surfacing, and suggested that when  the 
ITB was put out for the resurfacing, the drainage work should be included 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel stated that the drainage needed to be done before the OGEM.  He noted that 
Mr. Perez and the LGWCD had a list of culverts that needed to be fixed, and he suggested that 
they work together to see where better drainage is needed right now.   
 
 
 
 

d.     Palm Beach County donated parcels 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel commented that Palm Beach County had offered parcels of land in 
Loxahatchee Groves that were not accepted when Town Manager Spence was here.  He 
suggested that staff work with Marge Herzog on this issue, since she was very familiar with the 
history of this. 
 
Town Manager Kutney thanked Ms. Herzog for the information that she had provided, and noted 
that staff had followed up on it, and apparently most of the parcels were still available.  He 
suggested that the staff be given authorization this evening to contact the County to see what was 
involved. 
  
Public Comment: 
 

11

 
11 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 7 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Marge Herzog, A Road:   Commented regarding the County owned properties, noting that most 
of them were easements.  The County would like to have the Town take some action to use the 
property for easements or turn them back to the residents. 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel stated that he would like to see staff could work with Ms. Herzog regarding 
this issue. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to direct staff to move forward and contact 
Palm Beach County, and return to the Town Council with a report on related costs  The 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  On roll call, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Invitation to Bid (ITB) No. 2013-001: Gravel Road Grading, Mowing, and 
Vegetative Removal Services 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided a report on ITB 2013-001.  He recommended that contracts are 
awarded to the low bidders, and that the Town Council direct the Town Manager to provide 
contracts for approval of the Town Council for the following: 
  
Road grading and Base Rock:   Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) 
Road repairs:  Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) 
Emergency Call Out:  Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) 
 
Mowing:  C & C Loader 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the recommendation of Town 
Management to negotiate with the lowest bidders; including waiving bidder deficiencies 
that were identified.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  On roll call, the 
motion carried 3/0.  
 
Discussion took place regarding a rotational schedule.  Town Attorney Cirullo explained that the 
contractors that were not awarded the bid would be a resource for the Town Manager to use for 
emergency work.  If a contract was terminated, there was a procedure in place for how that 
would be handled.  
 
Public Comment: 
 

12

 
12 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 8 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Penny Riccio, 12795 71st Place No., in the acreage, representing Sidhar Trucking, Inc., 
commented regarding the requirement of the bid, and that some bidders did not follow some of 
the requirements, such as providing a DVD copy and five printed copies of the proposal. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that he believed Ms. Riccio was referring to the fact that the 
LGWCD did not submit two of the forms that were required.       
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that it was the prerogative of the Town Council to waive any 
deficiencies that had been identified this evening. 
  
Public Comment: 
 
Jorge Perez, 1544 B Road:  Commented regarding the bid, and that the lowest bidder should do 
all of the work.  He suggested that the bid specs were vague, and that the bid should be thrown 
out and started over with something more detailed.  
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road:  Commented that all prospective bidders were invited to a meeting.  If 
there were any questions it should have been brought up them.   
 
Councilman Rockett stated that   most of the budget of the LGWCD comes out of the Town’s 
pocket and he was concerned if there was not a backup contractor provided.  He also questioned 
the requirement for road grading twice a month.  Town Attorney Cirullo replied that would be 
clarified and may be worded “up to” twice per month. 
 
 
 
12.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
a. Public 
 
Kevin Gareau, 13650 6th Court North:  Commented that he had attending the  Planning  & 
Zoning Board meeting, and two projects had been presented.  Solar Sports (Groves Town 
Center) were quickly approved because they provided very little information.  I think that was 
unfair and I agree with and concur with management that the tabling of the Simon property 
engineers (Loxahatchee Groves Commons) caused them undue delay.  He also thanked Town 
Manager Kutney for providing him information regarding the FDOT pond siting conference call 
line.   
 

13

 
13 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 9 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Marge Herzog, 966A Road.:  Commented that the list she has for email is a private list that 
would not be forwarded without the permission of those on it.  She suggested that putting a 
newsletter on the website would be a better idea than sending out a postcard. 
  
Ronny Correll, 3442 C Road:  Commented that there was a  problem on D road where a spotlight 
had been installed that blinded people as they were driving past.  He suggested that the post is 
moved to the front, or get some dogs and get rid of the spotlight.  He will contact Town Manager 
Kutney and give him that address. 
 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo requested a closed door/attorney client session at 5:30 p.m.on May 21, 
2013, in the lawsuit:  Willie H. Day an Frankie J. Day v Town of Loxahatchee Groves, in the 
15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, Case No. 50 
2012CA014543XXXXMB.  The request was being made by the Town’s legal counsel, Attorney 
Michael Burke.  F.S. 286.011(8) allows the Mayor, Town Council, and the Town Manager to 
meet in an Attorney Client Closed Door Session for the purpose of discussing strategy related to 
litigation.   
 
 
 
c. Town Council Members 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel:  Thanked Marge Herzog again for all of the information on County 
properties.  Asked Town Management to use her help if she can. 
 
Councilman Rockett:  Commented that the Town approved a purchase of CERT radio 
equipment a while ago, and it has never been installed.  We have a table top coming up this 
week, and I would like to direct Town management to install an antenna on the LGWCD 
building.    He asked Town Manager Kutney to see if he can get someone out here before the 
table top meeting. 
 
Town Manager Kutney replied that CERT had supplied only one provider and the quote to install 
the equipment required two more verbal quotes.  He had asked CERT for more names, and they 
were having a problem finding suppliers.  If the quote was under $1,000, he could approve the 
installation. 
 

14

 
14 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
      Page 10 of 10  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 
05/07/2013 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo stated that the Town Council would not be waiving competitive bidding,  
and could direct the Town Manager to accept the quote under code provisions for disaster 
preparedness. 
 
Motion: Councilman Rockett made a motion to authorize Town Manager Kutney to accept 
the quote provided by CERT for installation of an antenna on the LGWCD building, under 
the code provisions for disaster preparedness.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 
Jarriel.  On roll call, the motion carried 3/0.  
 
Discussion took place regarding vegetation removal prepping before hurricane season. Frank 
Schiola provided comments regarding how it had been done I the past.  It was the consensus of 
the Town Council to discuss it at the next Town Council meeting.  
 
 
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Town Council meeting of May 7, 2013, was adjourned at 
9:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved at the May 21, 3013, Town Council meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn     David Browning 
Town Clerk      Mayor 
 
(SEAL) 

15

 
15 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. a.  Pond Siting Update 

( Town Manager Kutney ) 

16

 
16 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013) Drainage System 4 Sheet 1 of 2

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction (sub-basins 4A-1 to 4A-6)

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10

Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres) 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres 1.1 Acres

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way) 9 54 7 42 7 42 7 42
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use 9 63 7 49 7 49 7 49
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs 8 80 8 80 8 80 8 80
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations 4 40 6 60 7 70 7 70
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials 3 21 9 63 9 63 9 63
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities 8 64 9 72 8 64 9 72
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs 7 56 4 32 4 32 3 24
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs 7 56 4 32 4 32 3 24

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs 10 90 10 90 10 90 10 90
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f) 10 80 10 80 10 80 10 80
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield 4 40 6 60 6 60 5 50
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 7 49 8 56 10 70 7 49
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 6 54 5 45 6 54 7 63
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics 7 14 8 16 8 16 8 16
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns 1 9 6 54 6 54 6 54
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Weight of 
Factor

Department responsible 
for primary scoring

2

00404322000007020 00404326010020080

3C-2

805 866 891 861
5 3 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

00404326010020090 00404326010020140

3C-33B-2 3C-1

17

 
17 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013)

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor

1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres)

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way)
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f)
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Weight of 
Factor

Department responsible 
for primary scoring

Drainage System 4 Sheet 2 of 2

(sub-basins 4A-1 to 4A-6)

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
1-10 1-10 1-10

3.8 Acres 3.8 Acres 3.8 Acres

7 42 7 42 5 30
7 49 7 49 1 7
8 80 3 30 1 10
9 90 6 60 5 50
5 25 5 25 5 25
9 63 7 49 6 42
9 72 8 64 9 72
6 48 7 56 9 72
6 48 7 56 9 72
10 90 10 90 10 90
10 80 10 80 10 80
5 50 4 40 5 50
10 70 8 56 7 49
6 54 5 45 6 54
9 18 7 14 8 16
6 54 1 9 7 63
5 10 5 10 5 10

775 792943
1 7 6

00404326010010090 00404326010010120

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

Pond will satisfy 
System 4

00404336000003020

4-1 4-2 4-3

18

 
18 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013) Drainage System 5

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction (sub-basins 5A to 5C-2) Sheet 1 of 1

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres) 2.9 Acres 2.9 Acres 2.9 Acres 2.9 Acres 3.4 Acres

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way) 5 30 3 18 5 30 5 30 5 30
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use 6 42 2 14 6 42 6 42 5 35
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs 6 60 3 30 6 60 6 60 6 60
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations 7 70 7 70 7 70 7 70 6 60
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials 9 63 2 14 2 14 2 14 6 42
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities 9 72 9 72 5 40 5 40 9 72
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs 9 72 9 72 4 32 6 48 3 24
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs 9 72 9 72 4 32 6 48 3 24

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs 10 90 5 45 2 18 2 18 1 9
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f) 10 80 5 40 2 16 2 16 1 8
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield 5 50 5 50 5 50 6 60 5 50
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 8 56 3 21 10 70 10 70 7 49
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 5 45 6 54 5 45 5 45 6 54
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics 8 16 9 18 7 14 7 14 9 18
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns 6 54 9 81 6 54 6 54 8 72
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

Weight of 
Factor

5AB-4 5C-1

1 2 5 3 4
642907 706 622 664

Department responsible 
for primary scoring

00404336000002070 4140433600000100000404336000002010 00404336000002030 00404336000002060

Pond will satisfy 
System 5

Pond will satisfy 
System 5

Pond will satisfy 
System 5

Pond will satisfy 
System 5

Pond will satisfy 
System 5

5AB-1 5AB-2-R1 5AB-3

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

19

 
19 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013) Drainage System 6

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction (sub-basins 5C-3 to 6A-4) Sheet 1 of 3

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10

Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres) 3.4 Acres 3.4 Acres 3.4 Acres 3.5 Acres

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way) 5 30 5 30 3 18 7 42
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use 5 35 5 35 2 14 7 49
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs 3 30 3 30 1 10 9 90
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations 8 80 7 70 6 60 4 40
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials 4 28 4 28 6 42 9 63
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities 9 72 9 72 9 72 5 40
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs 3 24 9 72 9 72 2 16
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs 3 24 9 72 9 72 2 16

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs 10 90 10 90 10 90 6 54
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f) 10 80 10 80 10 80 6 48
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield 6 60 6 60 6 60 6 60
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 10 70 9 63 9 63 2 14
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 6 54 5 45 4 36 4 36
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics 9 18 8 16 9 18 8 16
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns 6 54 6 54 6 54 9 81
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

3 1 2 10
784 852 796 700

41414317018030010 41414317018020010Weight of 
Factor

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Department 
responsible for 
primary scoring

5C-2 5C-3

41414317018010010 41414317018020020

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

Joint Use Pond with 
Town of Loxahatchee

5C-5 5C-JU1

20

 
20 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013)

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor

1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres)

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way)
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f)
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

Weight of 
Factor

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Department 
responsible for 
primary scoring

Drainage System 6

3 (sub-basins 5C-3 to 6A-4) Sheet 2 of 3

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10

3.5 Acres 3 Acres 3 Acres 3 Acres

7 42 3 18 3 18 3 18
7 49 2 14 2 14 2 14
9 90 1 10 1 10 1 10
4 40 8 80 9 90 8 80
5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
9 63 6 42 6 42 9 63
6 48 8 64 8 64 8 64
2 16 9 72 9 72 3 24
2 16 9 72 9 72 3 24
6 54 8 72 10 90 10 90
6 48 8 64 10 80 10 80
6 60 6 60 6 60 6 60
3 21 9 63 10 70 9 63
5 45 6 54 4 36 4 36
8 16 8 16 8 16 9 18
9 81 1 9 1 9 1 9
5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

9
778 688745

4 117
724

41414317018030010 41414317018040030 41414317018050010 41414317018060010

Joint Use Pond with 
Town of Loxahatchee

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

Pond will satisfy 
System 6

5C-JU2 6AB-1 6AB-2 6AB-3

21

 
21 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013)

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor

1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres)

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way)
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f)
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

Weight of 
Factor

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Department 
responsible for 
primary scoring

Drainage System 6

3 (sub-basins 5C-3 to 6A-4) Sheet 3 of 3

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
1-10 1-10 1-10

2.7 Acres 3.5 Acres 3 Acres

4 24 7 42 7 42
5 35 9 63 9 63
6 60 6 60 9 90
4 40 3 30 4 40
5 25 5 25 5 25
6 42 6 42 6 42
7 56 7 56 9 72
9 72 4 32 3 24
9 72 4 32 3 24
6 54 6 54 6 54
6 48 6 48 6 48
6 60 6 60 6 60
1 7 4 28 2 14
4 36 6 54 5 45
8 16 9 18 9 18
10 90 9 81 9 81
5 10 5 10 5 10

5
752747 735

6 8

4141433205000003041414317018060010 41414332050000010

Joint Use Pond with 
Town of Loxahatchee

Joint Use Pond with 
Town of Loxahatchee

Joint Use Pond with 
Town of Loxahatchee

6AB-JU36AB-JU1 6AB-JU2

22

 
22 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013) Drainage System 7

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction (sub-basins 7A-1 to 7A-4) Sheet 1 of 1

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres) 1 Acres 1 Acres 1 Acres 1 Acres 1.4 Acres

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way) 7 42 6 36 2 12 7 42 7 42
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use 9 63 6 42 2 14 7 49 7 49
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs 6 60 4 40 1 10 7 70 6 60
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Drainage Considerations 4 40 8 80 9 90 5 50 4 40
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Flood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials 2 14 8 56 8 56 6 42 8 56
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Utilities 7 56 9 72 8 64 9 72 3 24
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs 6 48 8 64 5 40 7 56 2 16
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs 6 48 8 64 5 40 7 56 2 16

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs 2 18 10 90 6 54 6 54 6 54
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f) 2 16 10 80 6 48 6 48 6 48
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Public Wellfield 5 50 5 50 5 50 5 50 6 60
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 5 35 9 63 10 70 5 35 2 14
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 6 54 5 45 6 54 6 54 4 36
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Aesthetics 7 14 9 18 9 18 9 18 8 16
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TS Public Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns 7 63 6 54 9 81 10 90 10 90
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TS Other: CERP 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

1 3 2 44

Pond will satisfy 
System 7

821 656

41414332040000030Weight of 
Factor

656 889 736

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Pond will satisfy 
System 7

Department responsible 
for primary scoring

41414317019080160 41414332010002100 41414332020002160 41414332040000040

7AB-1 7AB-2 7AB-3 7AB-JU1 7AB-JU2-R1
Pond will satisfy 

System 7
Pond will satisfy 

System 7
Pond will satisfy 

System 7

23

 
23 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Stantec No.: 216700072

FPID: 41934522201

Description: Final Design SR 80: West Lion Country Safari Rd. to Forest Hill/Crestwood Blvd.

Date: 5/8/2013

Reviewed By: FDOT District 4 Pond Siting Team (Approved 5/8/2013) Drainage System 8

Discipline: R/W, Environment, Legal, Roadway, Maintenance, Drainage, Construction (sub-basins 8A to 8AC) Sheet 1 of 1

Line
Weight of 

Factor
Factor Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

Score
Weighted 

Score
Score

Weighted 
Score

1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10 1-10
Alternative Number (Pond ID)

Design Brief Description of Alternative
Parcel Number
Parcel Size (Acres) 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres 3.1 Acres

( 1-10 )
1 6 R/W & Legal FDOT Zoning (Right of Way) 2 12 6 36 5 30 7 42 7 42
2 7 R/W & Legal FDOT Land Use 2 14 6 42 2 14 7 49 7 49
3 10 R/W & Legal FDOT Right of Way Costs 1 10 4 40 5 50 10 100 7 70
4 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TSDrainage Considerations 8 80 8 80 8 80 4 40 6 60
5 5 Drainage FDOT/C3TSFlood Zone SFWMD C-51 Basin 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25 5 25
6 7 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Contamination and Hazardous Materials 6 42 2 14 6 42 6 42 4 28
7 8 Roadway FDOT/C3TSUtilities 5 40 6 48 9 72 8 64 9 72
8 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Threatened and Endangered Species and Associated Costs 7 56 9 72 7 56 8 64 6 48
9 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Wetlands and Protected Uplands and Associated Costs 7 56 9 72 7 56 8 64 6 48

10 9 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Cultural Resources Involvement and Associated Costs 10 90 10 90 10 90 6 54 8 72
11 8 PL&EM FDOT/C3TS Section 4(f) 10 80 10 80 10 80 6 48 8 64
12 10 Drainage FDOT/C3TSPublic Wellfield 5 50 5 50 5 50 6 60 6 60
13 7 Construction FDOT Construction 8 56 10 70 9 63 2 14 3 21
14 9 Maintenance FDOT Maintenance 5 45 6 54 7 63 5 45 6 54
15 2 Roadway FDOT/C3TSAesthetics 5 10 6 12 8 16 8 16 8 16
16 9 Roadway FDOT/C3TSPublic Opinion and Adjacent Residency Concerns 1 9 3 27 7 63 9 81 6 54
17 2 Drainage FDOT/C3TSOther: CERP 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10

Comments

Score
Ranking

Comments: scores are given from 1 to 10. More points means better or more desired alternative
Weight of Factor determined by consensus of pond siting team

793685

Pond will satisfy 
System 8

Pond will satisfy 
System 8

1 3 45 2
822 860 818

8AE-JU2

Department 
responsible for 
primary scoring

41414317019050050 41414317019050020 00414317019040040 41414317019050030 41414317019050050

8AE-JU18AE-3
Pond will satisfy 

System 8

POND SITING MATRIX
(Final Design)

Weight of 
Factor

8AE-1 8AE-2
Pond will satisfy 

System 8
Pond will satisfy 

System 8

24

 
24 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



4-34-1 4-2
3B-2

3C-23C-1

3C-3

SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN  5SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 4 SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 9

SR 80: WEST LION COUNTRY SAFARI ROAD
TO FOREST HILL/CRESTWOOD BLVD POTENTIAL POND SITES (DRAINAGE SYSTEM 4A-1 TO 4A-5)

System Limits

¹

REVIEWER NOTES

5/9/2013 PREPARED BY: G. SUAREZ-PENA
REVIEWED BY: T. RUIZ

Date Reviewer Discipline Pond ID Comment

0 400200

FeetFINAL DRAFT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Final Rank = # (Score)

FOX TRAIL LN

US 98/SR 80

LI
O

N
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

 S
A

F
A

R
I R

D

C-51 Canal

S
E

M
IN

O
LE

 P
R

A
T

T
 W

H
IT

N
E

Y
 R

D

LEGEND

SR80 Potential Pond Site

SR80 Opposed RW Acq

SR80 Willing Sellers

C51 FloodPlain

Palm Beach Parcel

pu Private Well 2007 FDOH

Existing Outfalls

Pond ID Basin Pond Size AC Parcel ID Comment

3B-2 4A-1 2.0 00404322000007020 Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. Partial Parcel

3C-1 4A-1 2.0 00404326010020080 Partial Parcel

3C-2 4A-1 2.0 00404326010020090 Partial Parcel

3C-3 4A-1 2.0 00404326010020140 Partial Parcel

4-1 4A-2 2.0 00404326010010090 R/W Dept. needs to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition is preferred.

4-2 4A-3 2.0
00404326010010120

Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. R/W Dept. needs to evaluate if complete parcel 
acquisition is preferred.

4-3  4A-5 2.0
00404336000003020

Partial Parcel. Owner is considering parcel for development and would prefer pond 
site at a different part of the parcel.

p.1 of 5
DRAINAGE SYSTEM 4

NOTE: POND SIZES SUBJECT TO REVISIONS

Final Rank = 5 (805)

Final Rank = 3 (866)

Final Rank = 2 (891)

Final Rank = 4 (861)

Final Rank = 1 (943)
Final Rank = 7 (775) Final Rank = 6 (792)

25

 
25 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



LEGEND

SR80 Potential Pond Site

SR80 Opposed RW Acq

SR80 Willing Sellers

C51 FloodPlain

Palm Beach Parcel

pu Private Well 2007 FDOH

Existing Outfalls

pupu

5C-1

5AB-4

5AB-1

5AB-3

5AB-2-R1

SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 11SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 10SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 9

(DRAINAGE SYSTEM 5A TO 5C-2)

¹

REVIEWER NOTES

Date Reviewer Discipline Pond ID Comment

0 400200

FeetFINAL DRAFT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

System Limits

US 98/SR 80

S
E

M
IN

O
LE

 P
R

A
T

T
 W

H
IT

N
E

Y
 R

D

A
 R

D

C-51 Canal

REMBRANDT BLVD

Pond ID Basin Pond Size AC Parcel ID Comment

5AB-1 5A 1.75 00404336000002010 R/W Dept. to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition preferred. (4.8 Ac)

5AB-2-R1 5B 1.75 00404336000002030 Medical office currently under development. Owner open to joint use pond.

5AB-3 5B 1.75 00404336000002060 R/W Dept. to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition preferred. (5.0 Ac)

5AB-4 5B 1.75 00404336000002070 R/W Dept. to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition preferred. (5.1 Ac)

5C-1 5C-1 1.75 41404336000001000 Parcel is part of a paintball recreational facility. Partial Parcel

SR 80: WEST LION COUNTRY SAFARI ROAD
TO FOREST HILL/CRESTWOOD BLVD POTENTIAL POND SITES 5/9/2013 PREPARED BY: G. SUAREZ-PENA

REVIEWED BY: T. RUIZ
p.2 of 5DRAINAGE SYSTEM 5

NOTE: POND SIZES SUBJECT TO REVISIONS

Final Rank = # (Score)

Final Rank = 1 (907)

Final Rank = 2 (706)

Final Rank = 5 (622)

Final Rank = 3 (664)

Final Rank = 4 (642)

26

 
26 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



LEGEND

SR80 Potential Pond Site

SR80 Opposed RW Acq

SR80 Willing Seller

C51 FloodPlain

Palm Beach Parcel

pu Private Well 2007 FDOH

Existing Outfalls

pu pupu pu
pu

5C-5

5C-2
5C-3

6AB-36AB-2

6AB-1

5C-JU1 5C-JU2 6AB-JU3
6AB-JU1-R1

6AB-JU2

SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 11

(DRAINAGE SYSTEM 5C-3 TO 6A-4)

¹

REVIEWER NOTES

Date Reviewer Discipline Pond ID Comment

0 400200

Feet
FINAL DRAFT

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

System Limits Final Rank = # (Score)

US 98/SR 80

B
 R

D

C
 R

D

C-51 Canal

Collecting Canal
A

 R
D

D
 R

D

Pond ID Basin Pond Size AC Parcel ID Comment

5C-2 5C-3 3.75 41414317018010010 Partial Parcel

5C-3 5C-3 3.75 41414317018020020 R/W Dept. needs to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition is preferred. (4.4 Ac)

5C-5 5C-4 3.75 41414317018030010 Partial Parcel

5C-JU1 5C-3 3.75 41414317018020010 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee

5C-JU2 5C-4 3.75 41414317018030010 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee

6AB-1 6A-1 3.75 41414317018040030 Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. Partial Parcel

6AB-2 6A-1/6A-2 3.75 41414317018050010 Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. Partial Parcel

6AB-3 6A-2 3.75 41414317018060010 Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. Partial Parcel

6AB-JU1-R1 6A-2 3.75 41414317018060010 Willing Seller. Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee, (wet area reflected 1.9 Ac)

6AB-JU2 6A-3 3.0 41414332050020000 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee

6AB-JU3 6A-3 3.75 41414332050000030 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee

SR 80: WEST LION COUNTRY SAFARI ROAD
TO FOREST HILL/CRESTWOOD BLVD POTENTIAL POND SITES 5/9/2013 PREPARED BY: G. SUAREZ-PENA

REVIEWED BY: T. RUIZ
p.3 of 5DRAINAGE SYSTEM 6

NOTE: POND SIZES SUBJECT TO REVISIONS

Final Rank = 3 (784)

Final Rank = 1 (852)

Final Rank = 2 (796)

Final Rank = 10 (700) Final Rank = 9 (724) Final Rank = 6 (747)

Final Rank = 7 (745)

Final Rank = 4 (778)

Final Rank = 11 (688)

Final Rank = 5 (752)

Final Rank = 8 (735)

27

 
27 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



LEGEND

SR80 Potential Pond Site

SR80 Opposed RW Acq

SR80 Willing Sellers

C51 FloodPlain

Palm Beach Parcel

pu Private Well 2007 FDOH

Existing Outfalls

pupu pu

7AB-37AB-2

7AB-JU1

7AB-JU2-R1

7AB-1

SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 11

¹

REVIEWER NOTES

Date Reviewer Discipline Pond ID Comment

0 400200

FeetFINAL DRAFT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

DRAINAGE SYSTEM 7

C-51 Canal

Collecting Canal

System Limits Final Rank = # (Score)

US 98/SR 80

D
 R

D

F
 R

D

E
 R

D

LO
X

A
H

A
T

C
H

E
E

 A
V

E

TANGERINE DR

E CITRUS DR

SR 80: WEST LION COUNTRY SAFARI ROAD
TO FOREST HILL/CRESTWOOD BLVD POTENTIAL POND SITES 5/9/13 PREPARED BY: G. SUAREZ-PENA

REVIEWED BY: T. RUIZ
p.4 of 5

Pond ID Basin Pond Size AC Parcel ID Comment

7AB-1 7A-1 1.4 41414317019080160 Full Parcel

7AB-2 7A-1 3.5 41414332010002100 Partial Parcel

7AB-3 7A-2 3.5 41414332020002160 Willing Seller. Partial Parcel. 

7AB-JU1 7A-2 3.5 41414332040000040 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee, Willing Seller

7AB-JU2-R1 7A-2 3.5 41414332040000030 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee, Willing Seller

(DRAINAGE SYSTEM 7A-1 to 7A-4)

NOTE: POND SIZES SUBJECT TO REVISIONS

Final Rank = 4 (656)

Final Rank = 1 (889)

Final Rank = 3 (736)

Final Rank = 2 (821)

Final Rank = 4 (656)

28

 
28 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



LEGEND

SR80 Potential Pond Site

SR80 Opposed RW Acq

SR80 Willing Sellers

C51 FloodPlain

Palm Beach Parcel

pu Private Well 2007 FDOH

Existing Outfalls

8AE-3
8AE-28AE-1

8AE-JU1

8AE-JU2-R1

SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 11 SFWMD FLOOD PLAIN BASIN 12

¹

REVIEWER NOTES

Date Reviewer Discipline Pond ID Comment

0 400200

FeetFINAL DRAFT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

DRAINAGE SYSTEM 8

Collecting Canal

C-51 Canal

System Limits Final Rank = # (Score)

US 98/SR 80

F
O

L
S

O
M

 R
D

P
A

LM
S

 W
E

S
T

 P
K

W
Y

F
 R

D

F
O

L
S

O
M

 R
D

C
R

E
S

T
W

O
O

D
 B

LV
D

C
R

ES
TW

O
O

D
 B

LV
D

Pond ID Basin Pond Size AC Parcel ID Comment

8AE-1 8A 2.5 41414317019050040 Owner opposed to R/W acquisition. Medical facility currently under construction. 
R/W Dept. needs to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition preferred. (3.6)

8AE-2 8A 2.5 41414317019050020
Parcel contains one residential building and an agricultural nursery. R/W Dept. 
needs to evaluate if complete parcel acquisition preferred. (5.9)

8AE-3 8A 2.5 00413317019040040 Partial Parcel

8AE-JU1 8A 2.5 41414317019050030 Joint Use Pond with Town of Loxahatchee

8AE-JU2 8A 2.5 41414317019050050
Parcel contains one residential building (5.0 Ac). Joint Use Pond with Town of 
Loxahatchee

SR 80: WEST LION COUNTRY SAFARI ROAD
TO FOREST HILL/CRESTWOOD BLVD POTENTIAL POND SITES 5/9/2013 PREPARED BY: G. SUAREZ-PENA

REVIEWED BY: T. RUIZ
p.5 of 5

(DRAINAGE SYSTEM 8A-8C)

NOTE: POND SIZES SUBJECT TO REVISIONS

Final Rank = 3 (818)

Final Rank = 4 (793)

Final Rank = 5 (685)

Final Rank = 2 (822) Final Rank = 1 (860)

29

 
29 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. b.  Discussion Regarding speed humps  

( Councilman Rockett ) 

(Back‐up material not provided) 

30

 
30 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. c.  Discussion Regarding Cleaning Compton Road Drainage Dich Prior to Road Being Re‐surfaced  

( Vice Mayor Jarriel ) 

(Back‐up material not provided) 

31

 
31 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. d.  Discussion Regarding Town Newsletter ( Town Manager Kutney ) 

(Back‐up material not provided) 

32

 
32 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. e.  Administrative Policy 3‐13 ( Councilman Rockett ) 

 

33

 
33 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 3‐13 
 

Administrative Policy 3‐13    Page 1 of 3 
Adopted by Town Council on 4‐2‐13 
 

SUBJECT:  Administrative Policy 3‐13 Rules of Procedure for Town Council 

Meetings    

                         
 

PURPOSE:    In order to promote efficient and effective procedures and   

                                  practices during Town Council Meetings it is necessary to 
                                  establish Rules of Procedure for all Town Council Meetings, 
                                  Special Meetings and workshops   
 
 

BACKGROUND:     The Town currently has no specific policy that addresses, 
                                    in a comprehensive fashion, a set of rules and procedures 
                                    for the implementation of the agenda and conduct of Town  
                                    Council Meetings. This policy, 3‐13,  will provide the Rules of  
                                    Procedure for agenda preparation and conduct of meetings 
 
 

POLICY:  1.  All meetings of the Town Council whether such meetings are  

  regular, special meetings or workshops shall be governed by 
  the Rules of Procedure set forth herein, where applicable. 

  
2.  Any Councilmember desiring  to  speak must be  recognized by 

the  Mayor  or  Acting  Chair  by  raising  his  or  her  hand.  The 
Mayor or Acting Chair  shall announce  the order  in which  the 
hands were raised, and grant the floor  in the order the hands 
were raised. If the Mayor or Acting Chair desires to participate 
in a discussion, he or she shall do so only when all members of 
the  Council  have  spoken  at  least  once  (if  so  desired).    No 
member of the Council shall  interrupt another member of the 
Council who has been recognized by the Mayor or Acting Chair 
and  no  member  shall  dominate  the  floor  in  excess  of  five 
minutes without offering to yield to other members of Council. 

 
3.  The Mayor or Acting Chair shall not use that position to 

                                     dominate debate or discussion, nor unreasonably cut short 
                                     or prolong any debate, discussion or taking of any vote. 

34

 
34 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 3‐13 
 

Administrative Policy 3‐13    Page 2 of 3 
Adopted by Town Council on 4‐2‐13 
 

 
4.  Any matters not specifically addressed by this policy, will be 

governed by Robert’s Rules of Order to the extent possible. 
 

5.  Except when abstaining from voting in accordance with Florida  
                                    Statutes, each Council member who is present at a meeting  
                                    must vote on each decision, ruling or other official act. A roll  
                                     call vote shall be recorded for each Councilmember present. 
                                    The order of each Councilmember vote will rotate after each   
                                    roll call vote.   
 

6.  Public  comments  shall  be  placed  on  the  Agenda  at  the 
beginning of  the meeting  (following  the consent agenda) and 
at  the  end  of  meeting.  Public  comments  will  also  be 
entertained  at  the  start  of  for  each  agenda  item.  However, 
once public comments are completed at the start of an agenda 
item and Town Council deliberations have started, no  further 
public comments will be entertained.   Public Comment will be 
allowed after Town Council deliberation and prior to the vote 
on any item. Public Comment is an opportunity for members 
of  the  public  to  make  comment,  and  shall  not  be  a 
question/answer  period  conducted with  the  Town  Council.   
All public comments shall be  limited  to a three minute  time 
period.    Public  comment  during  Public  Hearings  and  Quasi‐
Judicial matters will occur after comment/testimony has been 
provided by the principals related to the matter.   

 
7.  There shall be a consent agenda during each regular Town  

                                    Council meeting. The Consent Agenda shall contain matters  
                                    that can be handled and implemented without necessity of 
                                    comments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any item placed 
                                    on the Consent Agenda may be removed from the Consent  
                                   Agenda by any Councilmember and discussed and deliberated  
                                   by the Town Council. 
 

8.  Any  Councilmember,  the  Town Manager  or  Town  Staff may 
place items on the Town Council Agenda for a regular meeting 

35

 
35 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 3‐13 
 

Administrative Policy 3‐13    Page 3 of 3 
Adopted by Town Council on 4‐2‐13 
 

for discussion, review or consideration of any action, and must 
be  submitted  by  a written  request  referencing  the  business 
item, stating the purpose of the  item/action, the major points 
to  be  covered,  the  reasons  for  the  action  and  the  action 
requested  by  The  Town  Council.  All  appropriate  background 
material  shall  accompany  the  signed written  request.    Items 
must be approved by the Town Manager before placement on 
the Agenda. The deadline for such submission shall be noon on 
the Tuesday prior  to  the  scheduled Council meeting  (i.e. one 
week  prior).  Failure  to  adhere  strictly  to  this  schedule  shall 
result  in  the  requested  item  being  scheduled  for  the  next 
available meeting.    A waiver may  be  granted  for  an  exigent 
circumstance, however, such waiver must be approved by the 
Town Manager and the Mayor. 

 
                               9.  Once an item has been placed on the Agenda in accordance  
                                 with the terms and conditions of this policy, it may be only  

                              removed by the person who originally placed it on the agenda. 
 
                               10.  For the presentation/explanation of Agenda items the Mayor  

shall call on the Town Manager or a designated spokesperson 
for a brief explanation of the item under consideration. Upon  

                                 completion of the presentation/explanation the item shall be  
                                 opened for public hearing or Town Council discussion as        
                                 necessitated by requirements of the Agenda item. 
 
                               11.  All items on the Agenda shall be listed in the following order: 
                                 Opening; Consent Agenda; Public Comment; Presentations; 
                                 Committee Reports; Public Hearings; Ordinances; Resolutions; 
                                 Administrative Update; Old Business; New Business; Closing  
                             Comments; and Adjournment. 
 
              
 Please Note:  Underlined = added language 
    Strike through = deleted language 

36

 
36 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. f..  Traffic light at D Road and Okeechobee Blvd.( Councilman Rockett ) 

(back‐up material not provided) 

 

37

 
37 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

10. g.  Traffic light at D Road and Southern Blvd.( Vice Mayor Jarriel) 

(back‐up material not provided) 

 

38

 
38 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

11. a.  ITB 2013‐001 Gravel Road Grading, Mowing and Vegetative Removal Services – Contract 

Approvals for  LGWCD 

39

 
39 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 1 of 15 

AGREEMENT FOR THE ROAD GRADING AND BASE ROCK FOR 
TOWN ROADS WITHIN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between:   

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the state of Florida, 
hereafter referred to as “TOWN,” 
 

and 
 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL 
DISTRICT, an independent special district existing under the laws 
of the state of Florida, hereafter referred to as “DISTRICT,” (with 
the TOWN and DISTRICT each referred to as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”). 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, the powers of 

which are defined in the TOWN's Charter and State law; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are roads within the geographical boundaries of the TOWN which are 

maintained by the Loxahatchee Groves Water District, and other roads under the maintenance 
and control of the TOWN, which have been designated by the TOWN as “Town Roads,” and are 
the responsibility of the TOWN; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of services, equipment and materials for road grading 

of Town Roads, as described herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN undertook a competitive selection process, requesting responses 

to an Invitation to Bid Bid No. 2013-01 (the “Bid”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid (“Response”) was the bid selected by 

the TOWN Council as the lowest, most responsive bidder for base rock and road grading 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid was the bid selected by the TOWN for 

base rock and road grading services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has represented that it has the necessary experience of road 

grading services, and is capable of providing such services and base rock to the TOWN for its 
Town Roads, subject to the agreement of the Parties on criteria for such services, and the 
TOWN’s agreement to pay for such services and supplies; and 

 

40

 
40 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 2 of 15 

WHEREAS, the TOWN Council and DISTRICT have determined that this Agreement is 
in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within the TOWN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, 

promises, covenants and payments hereafter set forth, DISTRICT and TOWN agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I - RECITALS 
 
1.1 The foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part hereof. 
 
 ARTICLE 2 – GRADING OF TOWN ROADS AND BASE ROCK 
 
2.1 Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein is the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves Addendum #2 to Bid No. 2013-01, which is titled “Town Roads List.”  This list 
may be amended by the Parties without amending this Agreement so long as such 
amendment is in writing and approved by the Parties.  

 
2.2 DISTRICT will provide road grading services, and base rock, to TOWN as set forth 

herein.  Specifically, the DISTRICT shall furnish all of the materials and labor necessary 
to perform all of the work described in the specifications to the Bid and Response, as 
referenced above.   

 
2.3 The DISTRICT shall grade all Town Road segments identified by TOWN up to twice per 

month if needed at the discretion of the TOWN, as is confirmed in advance, in writing by 
the TOWN Manager.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the TOWN shall have no 
obligation to engage the services of DISTRICT for a specified number of times.  

 
2.4 The DISTRICT shall perform non-routine road grading services on an as-needed basis in 

addition to the frequency numerated herein, but only with the advance, written direction 
and approval of the TOWN Manager. 

 
2.5 The DISTRICT shall provide the necessary base rock on an as-needed basis to serve the 

TOWN’s usage requirements.  Such usage requirements shall include a source of supply 
that will provide accurate and timely deliveries.  Accordingly, time may be of the essence 
insofar as DISTRICT’s performance of the base rock services herein. 

 
2.6 Pursuant to the Bid and its Response, DISTRICT has represented that the bid price for 

rock material is FOB destination; freight prepaid Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, with 
delivery/unloading to the location specified at the time of the order by the Town 
Manager. 

 
2.7 DISTRICT hereby represents to TOWN, with full knowledge that TOWN is relying upon 

these representations in DISTRICT’s Bid when entering into this Agreement with 
DISTRICT, that DISTRICT has the professional expertise, experience, and manpower to 
perform the services to be provided by DISTRICT pursuant to the terms of this 

41

 
41 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 3 of 15 

Agreement.  DISTRICT ensures that all equipment used is properly registered.  The 
TOWN reserves the right to verify this information.  DISTRICT further represents that it 
shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that 
may be applicable to the operation of the equipment provided for road grading services.  
All equipment must be appropriately equipped so drivers can locate equipment from a 
distance. 

 
2.8 DISTRICT assumes professional and technical responsibility for performance of its 

services to be provided hereunder in accordance with recognized professional standards 
of good construction and engineering practice.   

 
2.9 DISTRICT agrees that no subcontracting is permitted without the advance, written 

approval of the TOWN Manager. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT 
 
3.1 As set forth in its Response, DISTRICT shall provide the following services at the 

following prices to include cost for use of equipment, labor costs, fuel, equipment 
maintenance, equipment delivery charges, fuel surcharges, and any other charges:: 

 
(a) Road Grading    Per Mile  $110.00 
(b) Base Rock /57Mix or equivalent  Per Ton  $  14.00 
(c) Base Rock “1 Minus   Per Ton  $  12.00 

 
3.2 Upon the commencement of this Agreement, DISTRICT will provide the TOWN 

invoices on a monthly basis in a timely manner for work actually completed by the 
DISTRICT for the previous month.   

 
3.3 Invoices submitted by DISTRICT to TOWN must be submitted on the fifth (5th) day of 

each month for the previous month’s work performed. 
 
3.4 All invoices must have a Purchase/Work Authorization number issued by the TOWN 

before it will be considered for payment. 
 
3.5 All invoices must provide sufficient detail reflecting roads graded with corresponding 

mileage, and identified base rock to include tonnage delivered and spread on specific 
roads. 

 
3.6 DISTRICT will submit an invoice as required for such work to include base rock tonnage 

amounts delivered and spread as well as identified roads graded with corresponding 
milage..  Should the TOWN determine that the documentation for the work is incomplete, 
it shall request additional information from the DISTRICT within ten (10) working days 
of receipt of the original invoice. 

 
3.7 The TOWN shall pay the DISTRICT within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final written 

invoice and documentation from the DISTRICT.   

42

 
42 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 4 of 15 

 
3.8 The TOWN’s obligation is limited to its payment obligation and shall have no obligation 

to any other person or entity. 
 

 ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
4.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the Effective Date provided 

below, and shall continue for two (2) years with an option for the TOWN to exercise two 
(2) additional two (2) year periods, or until terminated as provided in Sections 4.2 
through 4.7, below.  The TOWN shall exercise its option by providing the DISTRICT 
with not less than thirty (30) days written notice prior to the end of the then-current term.  
The notice period may be waived by the Parties. 

 
4.2 Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, minor adjustments to the timetable for 

completion approved by TOWN in advance, in writing, will not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due.  Furthermore, a delay due to an Act of 
God, fire, lockout, strike or labor dispute, riot or civil commotion, act of public enemy, or 
other cause beyond the control of DISTRICT shall extend this Agreement for a period 
equal to such delay and during this period such delay shall not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due. 

 
4.3 Notwithstanding Section 4.2, this Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party 

upon ninety (90) days upon the other Party’s failure to timely perform its responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  Such written notice shall be given by the terminating party to the 
other party setting forth the breach.  If the breaching party corrects the breach within 
thirty (30) days after written notice of same, to the satisfaction of the terminating party, 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  If such breach is not corrected within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach, the terminating party may terminate the 
Agreement.   

 
4.4 Termination of this Agreement for cause shall include, but not be limited to:  failure of 

the Parties to suitably perform the services required under this Agreement, and failure of 
the Parties to continuously perform the services required by the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives set forth 
herein, notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured.  

 
4.5 The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the TOWN, as evidenced by the 

adoption of a resolution by the TOWN.  In that event, the TOWN’S sole obligation to 
DISTRICT shall be payment for services for work previously authorized and performed.  
Such payment shall be determined on the basis of the hours or percentage of work 
performed by DISTRICT up to the time of termination.  Upon such termination, the 
TOWN may, without penalty or other obligation to DISTRICT, elect to employ other 
persons to perform the same or similar services. 

 
4.6 Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with Article 6, “NOTICES,” herein 

except that notice of termination by TOWN Manager which TOWN Manager deems 

43

 
43 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 5 of 15 

necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare may be verbal notice which shall 
be promptly confirmed in writing in accordance with the “NOTICES” section of this 
Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated for convenience by the TOWN 
Council, DISTRICT shall be paid for any services performed to the date the Agreement is 
terminated; however, upon being notified of TOWN’s election to terminate, DISTRICT 
shall refrain from performing further services or incurring additional expenses under the 
terms of this Agreement.  DISTRICT acknowledges and agrees that Ten Dollars ($10.00) 
of the compensation to be paid by TOWN, the adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged by DISTRICT, is given as specific consideration to DISTRICT for 
TOWN’s right to terminate this Agreement for convenience. 

 
4.7 In the event this Agreement is terminated, any compensation payable by TOWN shall be 

withheld until all documents are provided to TOWN.  In no event shall the TOWN be 
liable to DISTRICT for any additional compensation, other than that provided herein, or 
for any consequential or incidental damages. 

 
 ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 
 
5.1  Independent Contractor:  DISTRICT is an independent contractor and not an employee, 

agent, or servant of TOWN or its TOWN Council for all purposes, including but not 
limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime 
payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal 
Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers 
Compensation Act, and the State of Florida’s unemployment insurance law.  DISTRICT 
further acknowledges that the TOWN’s duty under this Agreement is limited to 
contributing the identified funds to DISTRICT and that DISTRICT will use the funds to 
perform road grading and base rock delivery and spreading services  for the maintenance 
of Town Roads within the TOWN in the manner provided herein.  DISTRICT agrees that 
it is a separate and independent enterprise from the TOWN, that it has full opportunity to 
find other business, that it has made its own investment in its business, and that it will 
utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not be 
construed as creating any joint employment relationship between DISTRICT and the 
TOWN and the TOWN will not be liable for any obligation incurred by DISTRICT, 
including but not limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.  In the 
event a claim or lawsuit is brought against TOWN, its officers, employees, servants or 
agents, arising from or relating to the DISTRICT improvements or any matter that is the 
responsibility of DISTRICT under this Agreement, DISTRICT will indemnify and hold 
harmless the TOWN in the manner and to the extent set forth in Section 5.2, below.    

 
5.2 Hold Harmless and Indemnification:   DISTRICT hereto agrees, to the extent permitted 

by law, to:  
 

(A) indemnify, save and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees, and agents 
(collectively the “Indemnities”), and to defend said persons from and against any 
such loss, cost, penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including attorneys’ 
fees) or liabilities, causes of action, and judgments of any type whatsoever arising 

44

 
44 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 6 of 15 

out of, resulting from, or in connection with (i) the performance or non-performance 
of the services contemplated by the Agreement which is or is alleged to be directly 
or indirectly caused, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default, or negligence 
(whether active or passive) of DISTRICT, regardless of whether it is, or is alleged to 
be, caused in whole or in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) by any act, 
omission, default or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities, or 
any of them or (ii) the failure of DISTRICT to comply with any of the provisions of 
the Agreement or the failure of DISTRICT to conform to statutes, ordinances, or 
other regulations or requirements of any governmental authority, federal or state, in 
connection with the performance of the Agreement.  DISTRICT expressly agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnities, or any of them, from and against all 
liabilities which may be asserted by an employee or former employee of DISTRICT, 
or any approved subcontractors, as provided above, for which DISTRICT’s liability 
to such employee or former employee would otherwise be limited to payments 
under state Workers’ Compensation or similar laws. 
 
DISTRICT further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities 
from and against (i) any and all Liabilities imposed on account of any violation of 
law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, condition, or requirements, in any related, 
directly or indirectly, to DISTRICT’s performance under the Agreement, 
compliance with which is left by the Agreement to DISTRICT, and (ii) any and all 
claims, and/or suits for labor and materials furnished by DISTRICT or utilized in the 
performance of the Agreement or otherwise. 
 
Where not specifically prohibited by law, DISTRICT further specifically agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from all claims and suits for 
any liability, including, but not limited to, injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property whatsoever, caused by, arising from, incident to connected with, or 
growing out of the performance or non-performance of the Agreement which is, or 
is alleged to be, caused in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) or in 
whole by any act, omission, default, or negligence (whether active or passive) of the 
Indemnities.  The foregoing indemnity shall also include liability imposed by any 
doctrine of strict liability. 

 
(B) The forgoing indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the negligent or 
wrongful acts, or omissions of the other party (or parties).  Nothing contained herein 
shall be construed as a waiver by the TOWN of the liability limits  established in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
5.3 Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance shall be 
 filed with the TOWN Manager prior to the commencement of this Agreement.  These 
 Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not 
 be cancelled until at least thirty days (30) prior written notice has been given to the 
 TOWN.  Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws 

45

 
45 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 7 of 15 

 of the State of Florida.  Financial Ratings must be not less than “A-VI” in the latest 
 edition of “Best Key Rating Guide,” published by A.M. Best Guide. 

 
 Insurance shall be in force until the obligations required to be fulfilled under the  terms 
 of the Agreement are satisfied.  In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates 
 that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then in 
 that event, the DISTRICT shall furnish, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 
 the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal and 
 like coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension 
 thereunder is in effect.   DISTRICT shall not commence nor continue to provide any 
 services pursuant to this Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force 
 and effect.  DISTRICT shall be liable to TOWN for any lapses in service resulting 
 from a gap in insurance coverage. 
 
 5.3.1 REQUIRED INSURANCE 
 
 Comprehensive General Liability insurance to cover liability bodily injury, accidental 
 death, and property damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, and for 
 property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract whether such 
 operation by himself or by anyone directly or indirectly employed under DISTRICT.  
 Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis, with the following limits of liability: 
 
  A. Comprehensive General Liability 
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  B. Automobile and Truck Liability  
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  C. Worker’s Compensation Insurance  
 
   Shall be maintained during the life of this contract to comply with   
   statutory limits for all employees.  The following limits must be   
   maintained: 
 
  A. Worker's Compensation Statutory 
  B. Employer’s Liability  $300,000 each accident 
       $300,000 Disease-policy limit 
       $300,000 Disease-each employee 
 
   or such other amount that may be required by Florida law, whichever is  
   greater. 
 
 Note:  Comprehensive General Liability coverage and Automobile and Truck Liability 
 coverage may be met with a combination of coverage including excess and umbrella 

46

 
46 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 8 of 15 

 liability coverage.  Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering bodily injuries 
 and property damage shall also include coverage for:  (a) injury to or destruction of wires, 
 pipes, conduits, and similar property located below the surface of the ground, whether 
 public or private; (b) collapse of or structural injury to any building or structure except 
 those on which work under this Agreement is being performed; and (c) contractual 
 liabilities related to bodily injury and property damage, i.e. X - explosion, C - Collapse,  
 U - underground. 
 
 Automobile and Truck Liability shall cover bodily injury and property damage for the 
 operation of all motor vehicles and equipment, whether or not owned by DISTRICT, 
 being operated in connection with the work performed under this Agreement.  Product 
 and Completed Operations coverage shall be included in the amounts specified above for 
 Comprehensive General Liability. 
 
 5.3.2 DISTRICT shall name the TOWN as an additional insured on each of the policies 

required herein and shall hold the CITY harmless on account of claims or damages to 
persons, property or premises arising out of the services provided hereunder. 

 
 5.3.3 Evidence of Insurance.  As evidence of insurance coverage, the TOWN may, in 
 lieu of actual policies, accept official written statements from the insurance company 
 certifying that all the insurance policies specified below are in force for the specified 
 period.  DISTRICT shall submit to TOWN evidence of insurance at the time of execution 
 of this Agreement.  Written notice shall be given to the TOWN at least thirty (30) days 
 prior to nonrenewal of such insurance coverage. 
 
 ARTICLE 6 - NOTICES 
 
6.1 Any and all notices given or required under this Agreement shall be in writing and may 

be delivered in person or by United States mail, postage prepaid, first class and certified, 
return receipt requested, or by hand-delivery with a request for a written receipt of 
acknowledgement of delivery, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place 
last specified.  The place for giving notice shall remain the same as set forth herein until 
changed in writing in the manner provided for in this article.  For the present, the parties 
designated the following: 

 
 
TO TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES: 

 
Mayor David Browning 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 

 
 
 
 

47

 
47 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 9 of 15 

With copies to: 
 
Mark Kutney, Town Manager 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 

And 
 

Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 
Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
3099 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 200 
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33308 
 
TO LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT: 

 
Stephen E. Yohe, P.E, District Administrator 
P. O. Box 407 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 
With copy to: 
 
Mary M. Viator, Esq., District Legal Counsel 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
One Clearlake Centre 
250 South Australian Avenue, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

 
 

ARTICLE7 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 ASSIGNMENT: The Parties to the Agreement shall have NO right to assign, transfer, or 

otherwise encumber this Agreement, without the express consent of the other party. 
 

7.2 WAIVER: The waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any failure on the part of 
another Party to perform in accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any future or continuing similar or 
dissimilar failure. 

 
7.3 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  Neither TOWN nor DISTRICT intends to directly 

or substantially benefit a third party by this Agreement.  Therefore, the Parties agree that 
there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement and that no third party shall be 
entitled to assert a claim against either of them based on this Agreement.  The Parties 
expressly acknowledge that it is not their intent to create any rights or obligations in any 
third person or entity under this Agreement. 

48

 
48 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 10 of 15 

 
7.4 SEVERABILITY: The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall in no way 

affect the validity of any other provision. 
 
7.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: It is understood and agreed that this Agreement incorporates 

and includes all prior negotiations, agreements or understandings applicable to the 
matters contained herein and the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements 
or understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained 
in this document.  Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall 
be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

 
7.6 JOINT PREPARATION:  The Parties acknowledge that they have sought and received 

whatever competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and 
complete understanding of all rights and obligations here and that the preparation of this 
Agreement has been a joint effort.  The language agreed to expresses their mutual intent 
and their resulting documents shall not, solely, as a matter of judicial construction, be 
construed more severely against one of the parties than the other.   

 
7.7 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any 
controversies or legal problems arising out of this Agreement and any action involving 
the enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder shall be submitted to the 
jurisdiction of the State Courts of the 15th Judicial Circuit of Palm Beach County, Florida, 
and the venue site and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  To 
encourage prompt and equitable resolution of any litigation that may arise hereunder, 
each Party hereby waives any rights it may have to trial by jury of any such litigation. 

 
7.8 AMENDMENTS:  No modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms or conditions 

contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with 
the same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by both Parties. 

 
7.9 MULTIPLE ORIGINALS:  This Agreement may be fully executed in multiple copies 

by all Parties, each of which, bearing original signatures, shall have the force and effect 
of an original document. 

 
7.10 LICENSES.  All drivers must be properly licensed operators, if applicable.  DISTRICT 

is responsible for updating operator information at any time throughout the duration of 
this Agreement.  Failure to do so may be grounds for breach and subsequent termination 
of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for providing phone numbers where 
employees can be reached.  The inability of the TOWN to make contact with DISTRICT 
or an employee thereof within a reasonable amount of time is cause for the TOWN to 
terminate this Agreement as described in Section 3 of this Agreement. 

 
7.11 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.  Pursuant to the 

Bid and its Response, DISTRICT shall adhere to an affirmative action policy.  In the 
performance of this Agreement, DISTRICT shall not discriminate against any firm, 

49

 
49 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 11 of 15 

employee or applicant for employment or any other firm/individual in providing services 
because of sex, age, race, color, religion, ancestry or national origin.  

 
7.12 PROTECTION OF TOWN PROPERTY.  At all times during the performance of this 

Agreement, DISTRICT  shall protect the property of the TOWN and adjacent property 
owners from all damage whatsoever on account of the work being carried on under this 
contract. 

 
7.13 CONFLICTS.  DISTRICT and TOWN hereby agree that the following Contract 

Documents are fully incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, as if written 
herein word for word: TOWN’s Bid No. 2013-01 and DISTRICT’s Response.  In the 
event that there is any conflict between any of the contract document and the terms of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail. 

 
7.14 LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  It is acknowledged that each Party to this Agreement 

had the opportunity to be represented by counsel in the preparation of this Agreement 
and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the Party 
preparing same shall not apply due to the joint contribution of both Parties. 

 
7.15 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  Reports, surveys, plans, studies and other data 

provided in connection with this Agreement are and shall remain the property of TOWN 
whether or not the project for which they are made is completed.  TOWN hereby agrees 
to use DISTRICT’s work product for its intended purposes. 

 
7.16 NO CONTINGENT FEES.  DISTRICT warrants that it has not employed or retained 

any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
DISTRICT, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay 
any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for DISTRICT, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  
For the breach or violation of this provision, the TOWN shall have the right to terminate 
the Agreement without liability at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or 
otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or 
consideration. 

 
7.17 BINDING AUTHORITY.  Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either 

Party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party 
with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
7.18 EXHIBITS. Each Exhibit referred to in this Agreement forms an essential part of this 

Agreement.  The exhibits if not physically attached should be treated as part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7.19 HEADINGS.  Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

considered on any interpretation of this Agreement. 

50

 
50 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 12 of 15 

 
7.20 ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event that either Party brings suit for enforcement of this 

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorneys’ fees and court costs in 
addition to any other remedy afforded by law. 

 
7.21 AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS.  TOWN 

shall have the right to audit the books, records and accounts of DISTRICT that are related 
to this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall keep such book, records, and accounts as may be 
necessary in order to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement.  
DISTRICT shall preserve and maintain all financial records, supporting documents, 
statistical records, and any other documents pertinent to his Agreement for the required 
retention period of the Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), if 
applicable, or, if the Florida Public Records Act is not applicable, for a minimum period 
of three (3) years after termination of this Agreement, unless DISTRICT is notified in 
writing by the TOWN of the need to extend the retention period.  Such retention of such 
records and documents shall be at DISTRICT’s expense.  DISTRICT shall comply with 
inspection and reproduction obligations of Florida law relating to public records in its 
possession.  If any audit has been initiated an audit findings have not been resolved at the 
end of the retention period or three (3) years, whichever is longer, the books, records, and 
accounts shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings. If the Florida Public 
Records Act is determined by the TOWN to be applicable to DISTRICT’s records, 
DISTRICT shall comply with all requirements thereof; however, no confidentiality or 
non-disclosure requirement of either federal or state law shall be violated by DISTRICT.  
Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records, and accounts shall be a basis 
for TOWN’S disallowance and recovery of any payment upon such entry. 

 
In addition, DISTRICT shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of any successor 
companies and allow and successor companies to receive working papers relating to 
matters of continuing significance.   In addition, DISTRICT shall provide a complete 
copy of all working papers to TOWN, prior to final payment, in accordance with this 
Agreement and the Schedule for DISTRICT's services. 
 

7.22 PALM BEACH COUNTY OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.  DISTRICT 
 is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to  
 investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this 
 Agreement, and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and testimony 
 from DISTRICT and, any, if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors.  
 DISTRICT understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and 
 consequences provided by law, failure of DISTRICT or, if applicable, subcontractors and 
 lower tier subcontractors to  fully cooperate with the Inspector General when requested 
 will be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for all 
 costs incurred by it or the TOWN as  a result of any investigation by the Inspector 
 General which results in an adverse  determination caused by DISTRICT, and if 
 applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors. 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

51

 
51 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 13 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
between TOWN and DISTRICT on the respective dates under each signature: TOWN, signing 
by and through its _____________________, authorized to execute same by Council action on 
the ____ day of _____________, 2013 and the DISTRICT, signing by and through its 
_____________________, authorized to execute same by Board of Supervisor’s action on the 
____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
   
 Executed by TOWN this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
a Florida Municipal Corporation 

 
ATTEST: 

By _____________________________ 
David Browning 

 Mayor 
__________________________      

Town Clerk       
 
    
[TOWN SEAL]     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

By_____________________________ 
        Town Attorney 

 
 
Executed by DISTRICT this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 

 
 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT, an Independent 
Special District of the State of Florida 

ATTEST: 
 
By _____________________________ 
 David DeMarois             
           Chairman 

__________________________      
Secretary  

 
[DISTRICT SEAL]       
 

  

52

 
52 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 14 of 15 

EXHIBIT “A”:   
 

TOWN ROADS LIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\AGMTS 2013\Road Grading & Base Rock - LGWCD.docx 

53

 
53 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



10TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B 0.081

11TH LANE NORTH BLOCK F 0.351

11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.244

12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.197

131ST TERRACE NORTH BLOCK F 0.147

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (FOLSOM) 0.282

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.166

140TH STREET NORTH CUT-THRU / SUNSPORT 0.100

145TH AVENUE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.457

147TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

147TH DRIVE NORTH BLOCK C 0.115

148TH TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.339

149TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK I 0.126

14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.257

152ND WAY NORTH BLOCK B 0.068

160TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.394

161ST TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 40E 2.014

17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.076

21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F 0.292

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.248

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK E   (E ROAD) 0.156

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.210

23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.189

24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.177

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.282

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (E ROAD) 0.194

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E   (WEST F) 0.250

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F   (EAST F) 0.406

25TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.136

27TH LANE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.141

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (D ROAD) 0.132

34TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

1 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

54

 
54 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

35TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK D 0.127

41ST ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.068

42ND ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.153

42ND STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.234

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (GLOBAL) 0.194

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (140TH) 0.394

44TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.235

8TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.319

APRIL DRIVE BLOCK C 0.164

BIDDIX ROAD BLOCK D 0.191

BRYAN ROAD BLOCK F 0.749

BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.244

CANAL MAINTENANCE RD T: 43S / R: 41E (40TH ST N) 1.462

(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.243

COMPTON ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.501

EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FERRIS LANE BLOCK A 0.194

FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.186

FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.188

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (B ROAD) 0.126

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.135

FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.204

GLOBAL TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.519

GREAT DANE LANE BLOCK F 0.130

GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.489

HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.518

IAN TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.384

JEWEL LANE BLOCK B 0.103

KAZEE ROAD BLOCK G 0.432

KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.260

LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

2 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

55

 
55 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.180

MARCELLA BOULEVARD BLOCK F 0.749

MARCH CIRCLE BLOCK F 0.174

MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.180

ORANGE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.075

PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.186

PERKINS DRIVE BLOCK F 0.336

PINEAPPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.434

QUAIL ROAD BLOCK F 0.135

RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.146

RAYMOND DRIVE BLOCK F 0.337

ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.229

SALLY'S ALLEY BLOCK B 0.244

SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.213

SHAMROCK DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK I  (WEST D) 0.177

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK K (EAST D) 1.733

SNAIL TRAIL BLOCK C 0.244

TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.510

TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.100

TIMBERLANE PLACE BLOCK B 0.219

TRIPP ROAD BLOCK D 0.242

VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.136

WEST "B" ROAD BLOCK A 0.340

WEST "C" ROAD BLOCK B 0.623

WEST "D" ROAD BLOCK I   (SOUTH C.C.) 0.314

WEST 'D' ROAD BLOCK C   (NORTH C.C.) 0.388

WEST 'F' ROAD BLOCK E 0.198

WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.193

MONTHLY MILEAGE = 29.552

3 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

56

 
56 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 1 of 15 

AGREEMENT FOR THE ROAD REPAIR OF TOWN ROADS WITHIN 
THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between:   

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the State of Florida, 
hereafter referred to as “TOWN,” 
 

and 
 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL 
DISTRICT, an independent special district existing under the laws 
of the State of Florida, hereafter referred to as “DISTRICT,” (with 
the TOWN and DISTRICT each referred to as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”). 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, the powers of 

which are defined in the TOWN's Charter and State law; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are roads within the geographical boundaries of the TOWN which are 

maintained by the Loxahatchee Groves Water District, and other roads under the maintenance 
and control of the TOWN, which have been designated by the TOWN as “Town Roads,” and are 
the responsibility of the TOWN; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of services, equipment and materials for road repairs 

like pothole repair, and patch work on Town Roads; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN undertook a competitive selection process, requesting responses 

to an Invitation to Bid for  Bid No. 2013-01 (the “Bid”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid (“Response”) was the bid selected by 

the TOWN Council as the lowest, most responsive bidder for road repair services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid was the bid selected by the TOWN for 

road repair services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has the experience, expertise, equipment, and materials for 

the repair of Town Roads, and is capable of providing the necessary materials and manpower to 
address repair issues of Town Roads, subject to the agreement of the parties on criteria for such  
road repair services, and the TOWN’s agreement to pay for such services and supplies; and, 

 

57

 
57 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 2 of 15 

WHEREAS, the TOWN Council and the District Board of Supervisors have determined 
that this Agreement is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within 
the TOWN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, 

promises, covenants and payments hereafter set forth, DISTRICT and TOWN agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I - RECITALS 
 
1.1 The foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part hereof. 
 
 ARTICLE 2 – ROAD REPAIR FOR TOWN ROADS 
 
2.1 Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein is the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves Addendum #2 to Bid No. 2013-01, which is titled “Town Roads List.”  This list 
may be amended by the Parties without amending this Agreement so long as such 
amendment is in writing and approved by the Parties.  

 
2.2 DISTRICT will provide road repair services to TOWN as set forth herein.  Specifically, 

the DISTRICT shall furnish all of the materials and labor necessary to perform all of the 
work described in the specifications to the Bid and Response, as referenced above.   

 
2.3 The DISTRICT shall repair Town Roads on an as-needed basis at the discretion of the 

TOWN.  Such repairs include, but are not limited to, pothole repair and patch work on 
existing OGEM-surfaced TOWN Roads. 

 
2.4   Road repair services shall be performed under a separate written work authorization that 

will allow inclusion of needed materials to complete the necessary repair.  The 
DISTRICT shall repair all Town Road segments identified by TOWN  at the discretion of 
the TOWN, as is confirmed in advance, in writing by the TOWN Manager.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the TOWN shall have no obligation to engage the 
services of DISTRICT for a specified number of times. 

 
2.5 DISTRICT hereby represents to TOWN, with full knowledge that TOWN is relying upon 

these representations in DISTRICT’s Bid when entering into this Agreement with 
DISTRICT, that DISTRICT has the professional expertise, experience, and manpower to 
perform the services to be provided by DISTRICT pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement.  DISTRICT ensures that all equipment used is properly registered.  The 
TOWN reserves the right to verify this information.  DISTRICT further represents that it 
shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that 
may be applicable to the operation of the equipment provided for gravel road grading 
services.  All equipment must be appropriately equipped so drivers can locate equipment 
from a distance. 

 

58

 
58 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 3 of 15 

2.6 DISTRICT assumes professional and technical responsibility for performance of its 
services to be provided hereunder in accordance with recognized professional standards 
of good construction and engineering practice.   

 
2.7 DISTRICT agrees that no subcontracting is permitted without the advance, written 

approval of the TOWN Manager. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT 
 

3.1 As set forth in its Bid , DISTRICT shall provide the following services at the following 
price that includes cost for use of equipment, labor costs, fuel, equipment maintenance, 
equipment delivery charges, fuel surcharges, and any other charges: 

 
(a) Road Repair  Hourly  $50.00  

 
3.2 Upon the commencement of this Agreement, DISTRICT will provide the TOWN 

invoices on a monthly basis in a timely manner for work actually completed by 
DISTRICT for the previous month.   

 
3.3 Invoices submitted by DISTRICT to TOWN must be submitted on the fifth (5th) day of 

each month for the previous month’s work performed. 
 
3.4 All invoices must have a Purchase/Work Authorization number issued by the TOWN 

before it will be considered for payment. 
 
3.5 All invoices must provide sufficient detail reflecting  specific road repairs  performed, 

and paid invoices reflecting expenses including additional charges for supplies used for 
such repairs incurred by District.   

 
3.6 DISTRICT will submit an invoice for  for road repairs performed on specific roads  to 

include invoices paid by District for supplies used for such repairs.  Should the TOWN 
determine that the documentation for Road Repair work is incomplete, it shall request 
additional information from the DISTRICT within ten (10) working days of receipt of the 
original invoice. 

 
3.7 The TOWN shall pay the DISTRICT within  thirty ( 30) days of receipt of the final 

written invoice and documentation from the DISTRICT.   
 
3.8 The TOWN’s obligation is limited to its payment obligation and shall have no obligation 

to any other person or entity. 
 

  
  

59

 
59 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 4 of 15 

ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
4.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the Effective Date provided 

below, and shall continue for two (2) years with an option for the TOWN to exercise two 
(2) additional two (2) year periods, or until terminated as provided in Sections 4.2 
through 4.7, below.  The TOWN shall exercise its option by providing DISTRICT with 
not less than thirty (30) days written notice prior to the end of the then-current term.  The 
notice period may be waived by the Parties. 

 
4.2 Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, minor adjustments to the timetable for 

completion approved by TOWN in advance, in writing, will not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due.  Furthermore, a delay due to an Act of 
God, fire, lockout, strike or labor dispute, riot or civil commotion, act of public enemy, or 
other cause beyond the control of DISTRICT shall extend this Agreement for a period 
equal to such delay and during this period such delay shall not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due. 

 
4.3 Notwithstanding Section 4.2, this Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party 

upon ninety (90) days upon the other Party’s failure to timely perform its responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  Such written notice shall be given by the terminating party to the 
other party setting forth the breach.  If the breaching party corrects the breach within 
thirty (30) days after written notice of same, to the satisfaction of the terminating party, 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  If such breach is not corrected within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach, the terminating party may terminate the 
Agreement.   

 
4.4 Termination of this Agreement for cause shall include, but not be limited to:  failure of 

the Parties to suitably perform the services required under this Agreement, and failure of 
the Parties to continuously perform the services required by the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives set forth 
herein, notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured.  

 
4.5 The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the TOWN, as evidenced by the 

adoption of a resolution by the TOWN.  In that event, the TOWN’S sole obligation to 
DISTRICT shall be payment for services for work previously authorized and performed.  
Such payment shall be determined on the basis of the hours or percentage of work 
performed by DISTRICT up to the time of termination.  Upon such termination, the 
TOWN may, without penalty or other obligation to DISTRICT, elect to employ other 
persons to perform the same or similar services. 

 
4.6 Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with Article 6, “NOTICES,” herein 

except that notice of termination by TOWN Manager which TOWN Manager deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare may be verbal notice which shall 
be promptly confirmed in writing in accordance with the “NOTICES” section of this 
Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated for convenience by the TOWN 

60

 
60 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 5 of 15 

Council, DISTRICT shall be paid for any services performed to the date the Agreement is 
terminated; however, upon being notified of TOWN’s election to terminate, DISTRICT 
shall refrain from performing further services or incurring additional expenses under the 
terms of this Agreement.  DISTRICT acknowledges and agrees that Ten Dollars ($10.00) 
of the compensation to be paid by TOWN, the adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged by DISTRICT, is given as specific consideration to DISTRICT for 
TOWN’s right to terminate this Agreement for convenience. 

 
4.7 In the event this Agreement is terminated, any compensation payable by TOWN shall be 

withheld until all documents are provided to TOWN.  In no event shall the TOWN be 
liable to DISTRICT for any additional compensation, other than that provided herein, or 
for any consequential or incidental damages. 

 
 ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 
 
5.1  Independent Contractor:  DISTRICT is an independent contractor and not an employee, 

agent, or servant of TOWN or its TOWN Council for all purposes, including but not 
limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime 
payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal 
Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers 
Compensation Act, and the State of Florida’s unemployment insurance law.  DISTRICT 
further acknowledges that the TOWN’s duty under this Agreement is limited to 
contributing the identified funds to DISTRICT and that DISTRICT will use the funds to 
perform mowing and vegetation removal services for the maintain Town Roads within 
the TOWN in the manner provided herein.  DISTRICT agrees that it is a separate and 
independent enterprise from the TOWN, that it has full opportunity to find other 
business, that it has made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high 
level of skill necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not be construed as 
creating any joint employment relationship between DISTRICT and the TOWN and the 
TOWN will not be liable for any obligation incurred by DISTRICT, including but not 
limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.  In the event a claim or 
lawsuit is brought against TOWN, its officers, employees, servants or agents, arising 
from or relating to the DISTRICT improvements or any matter that is the responsibility 
of DISTRICT under this Agreement, DISTRICT will indemnify and hold harmless the 
TOWN in the manner and to the extent set forth in Section 5.2, below.    

 
5.2 Hold Harmless and Indemnification:   DISTRICT hereto agrees, to the extent permitted 

by law, to:  
 

(A) indemnify, save and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees, and agents 
(collectively the “Indemnities”), and to defend said persons from and against any 
such loss, cost, penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including attorneys’ 
fees) or liabilities, causes of action, and judgments of any type whatsoever arising 
out of, resulting from, or in connection with (i) the performance or non-performance 
of the services contemplated by the Agreement which is or is alleged to be directly 

61

 
61 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 6 of 15 

or indirectly caused, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default, or negligence 
(whether active or passive) of DISTRICT, regardless of whether it is, or is alleged to 
be, caused in whole or in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) by any act, 
omission, default or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities, or 
any of them or (ii) the failure of DISTRICT to comply with any of the provisions of 
the Agreement or the failure of DISTRICT to conform to statutes, ordinances, or 
other regulations or requirements of any governmental authority, federal or state, in 
connection with the performance of the Agreement.  DISTRICT expressly agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnities, or any of them, from and against all 
liabilities which may be asserted by an employee or former employee of DISTRICT, 
or any approved subcontractors, as provided above, for which DISTRICT’s liability 
to such employee or former employee would otherwise be limited to payments 
under state Workers’ Compensation or similar laws. 
 
DISTRICT further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities 
from and against (i) any and all Liabilities imposed on account of any violation of 
law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, condition, or requirements, in any related, 
directly or indirectly, to DISTRICT’s performance under the Agreement, 
compliance with which is left by the Agreement to DISTRICT, and (ii) any and all 
claims, and/or suits for labor and materials furnished by DISTRICT or utilized in the 
performance of the Agreement or otherwise. 
 
Where not specifically prohibited by law, DISTRICT further specifically agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from all claims and suits for 
any liability, including, but not limited to, injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property whatsoever, caused by, arising from, incident to connected with, or 
growing out of the performance or non-performance of the Agreement which is, or 
is alleged to be, caused in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) or in 
whole by any act, omission, default, or negligence (whether active or passive) of the 
Indemnities.  The foregoing indemnity shall also include liability imposed by any 
doctrine of strict liability. 

 
(B) The forgoing indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the negligent or 
wrongful acts, or omissions of the other party (or parties).  Nothing contained herein 
shall be construed as a waiver by the TOWN of the liability limits established in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
5.3 Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance shall be 
 filed with the TOWN Manager prior to the commencement of this Agreement.  These 
 Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not 
 be cancelled until at least thirty days (30) prior written notice has been given to the 
 TOWN.  Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws 
 of the State of Florida.  Financial Ratings must be not less than “A-VI” in the latest 
 edition of “Best Key Rating Guide,” published by A.M. Best Guide. 

62

 
62 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 7 of 15 

 
 Insurance shall be in force until the obligations required to be fulfilled under the terms of 

the Agreement are satisfied.  In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates that 
the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then in that 
event, the DISTRICT shall furnish, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 
date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal and like 
coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension thereunder is in 
effect.  DISTRICT shall not commence nor continue to provide any services pursuant to 
this Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.  DISTRICT 
shall be liable to TOWN for any lapses in service resulting from a gap in insurance 
coverage. 

 
 5.3.1 REQUIRED INSURANCE 
 
 Comprehensive General Liability insurance to cover liability bodily injury, accidental 
 death, and property damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, and for 
 property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract whether such 
 operation by himself or by anyone directly or indirectly employed under DISTRICT.  
 Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis, with the following limits of liability: 
 
  A. Comprehensive General Liability 
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  B. Automobile and Truck Liability  
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  C. Worker’s Compensation Insurance  
 
   Shall be maintained during the life of this contract to comply with   
   statutory limits for all employees.  The following limits must be   
   maintained: 
 
  A. Worker's Compensation Statutory 
  B. Employer’s Liability  $300,000 each accident 
       $300,000 Disease-policy limit 
       $300,000 Disease-each employee 
 
   or such other amount that may be required by Florida law, whichever is  
   greater. 
 
 Note:  Comprehensive General Liability coverage and Automobile and Truck Liability 
 coverage may be met with a combination of coverage including excess and umbrella 
 liability coverage.  Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering bodily injuries 

63

 
63 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 8 of 15 

 and property damage shall also include coverage for:  (a) injury to or destruction of wires, 
 pipes, conduits, and similar property located below the surface of the ground, whether 
 public or private; (b) collapse of or structural injury to any building or structure except 
 those on which work under this Agreement is being performed; and (c) contractual 
 liabilities related to bodily injury and property damage, i.e. X - explosion, C - Collapse,  
 U - underground. 
 
 Automobile and Truck Liability shall cover bodily injury and property damage for the 
 operation of all motor vehicles and equipment, whether or not owned by DISTRICT, 
 being operated in connection with the work performed under this Agreement.  Product 
 and Completed Operations coverage shall be included in the amounts specified above for 
 Comprehensive General Liability. 
 
 5.3.2 DISTRICT shall name the TOWN as an additional insured on each of the policies 

required herein and shall hold the TOWN harmless on account of claims or damages to 
persons, property or premises arising out of the services provided hereunder. 

 
 5.3.3 Evidence of Insurance.  As evidence of insurance coverage, the TOWN may, in 
 lieu of actual policies, accept official written statements from the insurance company 
 certifying that all the insurance policies specified below are in force for the specified 
 period.  DISTRICT shall submit to TOWN evidence of insurance at the time of execution 
 of this Agreement.  Written notice shall be given to the TOWN at least thirty (30) days 
 prior to nonrenewal of such insurance coverage. 
 
 ARTICLE 6 - NOTICES 
 
6.1 Any and all notices given or required under this Agreement shall be in writing and may 

be delivered in person or by United States mail, postage prepaid, first class and certified, 
return receipt requested, or by hand-delivery with a request for a written receipt of 
acknowledgement of delivery, addressed to the Party for whom it is intended at the place 
last specified.  The place for giving notice shall remain the same as set forth herein until 
changed in writing in the manner provided for in this article.  For the present, the Parties 
designated the following: 
 
TO TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES: 

 
Mayor David Browning 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 

 
With copies to: 
 
Mark Kutney, Town Manager 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

64

 
64 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 9 of 15 

14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 

And 
 

Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 
Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
3099 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 200 
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33308 
 
TO LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT: 

 
Stephen E. Yohe, P.E, District Administrator 
P. O. Box 407 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 
With copy to: 
 
Mary M. Viator, Esq., District Legal Counsel 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
One Clearlake Centre 
250 South Australian Avenue, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

 
ARTICLE 7 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
7.1 ASSIGNMENT: The Parties to the Agreement shall have NO right to assign, transfer, or 

otherwise encumber this Agreement, without the express consent of the other party. 
 

7.2 WAIVER: The waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any failure on the part of 
another Party to perform in accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any future or continuing similar or 
dissimilar failure. 

 
7.3 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  Neither TOWN nor DISTRICT intends to directly 

or substantially benefit a third party  by this Agreement.  Therefore, the Parties agree that 
there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement and that no third party shall be 
entitled to assert a claim against either of them based on this Agreement.  The Parties 
expressly acknowledge that it is not their intent to create any rights or obligations in any 
third person or entity under this Agreement. 

 
7.4 SEVERABILITY: The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall in no way 

affect the validity of any other provision. 
 

65

 
65 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 10 of 15 

7.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: It is understood and agreed that this Agreement incorporates 
and includes all prior negotiations, agreements or understandings applicable to the 
matters contained herein and the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements 
or understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained 
in this document.  Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall 
be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

 
7.6 JOINT PREPARATION:  The Parties acknowledge that they have sought and received 

whatever competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and 
complete understanding of all rights and obligations here and that the preparation of this 
Agreement has been a joint effort.  The language agreed to expresses their mutual intent 
and their resulting documents shall not, solely, as a matter of judicial construction, be 
construed more severely against one of the parties than the other.   

 
7.7 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any 
controversies or legal problems arising out of this Agreement and any action involving 
the enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder shall be submitted to the 
jurisdiction of the State Courts of the 15th Judicial Circuit of Palm Beach County, Florida, 
and the venue site and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  To 
encourage prompt and equitable resolution of any litigation that may arise hereunder, 
each Party hereby waives any rights it may have to trial by jury of any such litigation. 

 
7.8 AMENDMENTS:  No modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms or conditions 

contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with 
the same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by both Parties. 

 
7.9 MULTIPLE ORIGINALS:  This Agreement may be fully executed in multiple copies 

by all Parties, each of which, bearing original signatures, shall have the force and effect 
of an original document. 

 
7.10 LICENSES.  All drivers must be properly licensed operators, if applicable.  DISTRICT 

is responsible for updating operator information at any time throughout the duration of 
this Agreement.  Failure to do so may be grounds for breach and subsequent termination 
of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for providing phone numbers where 
employees can be reached.  The inability of the TOWN to make contact with DISTRICT 
or an employee thereof within a reasonable amount of time is cause for the TOWN to 
terminate this Agreement as described in Section 3 of this Agreement. 

 
7.11 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.  Pursuant to the 

Bid and its Response, DISTRICT shall adhere to an affirmative action policy.  In the 
performance of this Agreement, DISTRICT shall not discriminate against any firm, 
employee or applicant for employment or any other firm/individual in providing services 
because of sex, age, race, color, religion, ancestry or national origin.  

 

66

 
66 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 11 of 15 

7.12 PROTECTION OF TOWN PROPERTY.  At all times during the performance of this 
Agreement, DISTRICT  shall protect the property of the TOWN and adjacent property 
owners from all damage whatsoever on account of the work being carried on under this 
contract. 

 
7.13 CONFLICTS.  DISTRICT and TOWN hereby agree that the following Contract 

Documents are fully incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, as if written 
herein word for word: TOWN’s Bid No. 2013-01 and DISTRICT’s Response.  In the 
event that there is any conflict between any of the contract document and the terms of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail. 

 
7.14 LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  It is acknowledged that each Party to this Agreement 

had the opportunity to be represented by counsel in the preparation of this Agreement 
and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the Party 
preparing same shall not apply due to the joint contribution of both Parties. 

 
7.15 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  Reports, surveys, plans, studies and other data 

provided in connection with this Agreement are and shall remain the property of TOWN 
whether or not the project for which they are made is completed.  TOWN hereby agrees 
to use DISTRICT’s work product for its intended purposes. 

 
7.16 NO CONTINGENT FEES.  DISTRICT warrants that it has not employed or retained 

any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
DISTRICT, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay 
any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for DISTRICT, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  
For the breach or violation of this provision, the TOWN shall have the right to terminate 
the Agreement without liability at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or 
otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or 
consideration. 

 
7.17 BINDING AUTHORITY.  Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either 

Party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party 
with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
7.18 EXHIBITS. Each Exhibit referred to in this Agreement forms an essential part of this 

Agreement.  The exhibits if not physically attached should be treated as part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7.19 HEADINGS.  Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

considered on any interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

67

 
67 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 12 of 15 

7.20 ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event that either Party brings suit for enforcement of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorneys’ fees and court costs in 
addition to any other remedy afforded by law. 

 
7.21 AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS.  TOWN 

shall have the right to audit the books, records and accounts of DISTRICT that are related 
to this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall keep such book, records, and accounts as may be 
necessary in order to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement.  
DISTRICT shall preserve and maintain all financial records, supporting documents, 
statistical records, and any other documents pertinent to his Agreement for the required 
retention period of the Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), if 
applicable, or, if the Florida Public Records Act is not applicable, for a minimum period 
of three (3) years after termination of this Agreement, unless DISTRICT is notified in 
writing by the TOWN of the need to extend the retention period.  Such retention of such 
records and documents shall be at DISTRICT’s expense.  DISTRICT shall comply with 
inspection and reproduction obligations of Florida law relating to public records in its 
possession.  If any audit has been initiated an audit findings have not been resolved at the 
end of the retention period or three (3) years, whichever is longer, the books, records, and 
accounts shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings. If the Florida Public 
Records Act is determined by the TOWN to be applicable to DISTRICT’s records, 
DISTRICT shall comply with all requirements thereof; however, no confidentiality or 
non-disclosure requirement of either federal or state law shall be violated by DISTRICT.  
Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records, and accounts shall be a basis 
for TOWN’S disallowance and recovery of any payment upon such entry. 

 
In addition, DISTRICT shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of any successor 
companies and allow and successor companies to receive working papers relating to 
matters of continuing significance.   In addition, DISTRICT shall provide a complete 
copy of all working papers to TOWN, prior to final payment, in accordance with this 
Agreement and the Schedule for DISTRICT's services. 

 
7.22 PALM BEACH COUNTY OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.  DISTRICT 
 is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to  
 investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this 
 Agreement, and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and testimony 
 from DISTRICT and, any, if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors.  
 DISTRICT understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and 
 consequences provided by law, failure of DISTRICT or, if applicable, subcontractors and 
 lower tier subcontractors to  fully cooperate with the Inspector General when requested 
 will be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for all 
 costs incurred by it or the TOWN as  a result of any investigation by the Inspector 
 General which results in an adverse  determination caused by DISTRICT, and if 
 applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors. 
 
 

68

 
68 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 13 of 15 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 

between TOWN and DISTRICT on the respective dates under each signature: TOWN, signing 
by and through its _____________________, authorized to execute same by Council action on 
the ____ day of _____________, 2013 and the DISTRICT, signing by and through its 
_____________________, authorized to execute same by Board of Supervisor’s action on the 
____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
   
 Executed by TOWN this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
a Florida Municipal Corporation 

 
ATTEST: 

By _____________________________ 
David Browning 

 Mayor 
__________________________      

Town Clerk       
 
    
[TOWN SEAL]     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

69

 
69 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 14 of 15 

 
 

By_____________________________ 
        Town Attorney 

 
 
Executed by DISTRICT this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 

 
 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT, an Independent 
Special District of the State of Florida 

ATTEST: 
 
By _____________________________ 
 David DeMarois             
            Chairman 

__________________________      
Secretary  

 
[DISTRICT SEAL]       

70

 
70 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 15 of 15 

EXHIBIT “A”:   
 

TOWN ROADS LIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\AGMTS 2013\Road Repair - LGWCD.docx 

 

71

 
71 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



10TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B 0.081

11TH LANE NORTH BLOCK F 0.351

11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.244

12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.197

131ST TERRACE NORTH BLOCK F 0.147

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (FOLSOM) 0.282

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.166

140TH STREET NORTH CUT-THRU / SUNSPORT 0.100

145TH AVENUE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.457

147TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

147TH DRIVE NORTH BLOCK C 0.115

148TH TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.339

149TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK I 0.126

14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.257

152ND WAY NORTH BLOCK B 0.068

160TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.394

161ST TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 40E 2.014

17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.076

21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F 0.292

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.248

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK E   (E ROAD) 0.156

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.210

23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.189

24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.177

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.282

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (E ROAD) 0.194

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E   (WEST F) 0.250

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F   (EAST F) 0.406

25TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.136

27TH LANE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.141

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (D ROAD) 0.132

34TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

1 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

72

 
72 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

35TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK D 0.127

41ST ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.068

42ND ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.153

42ND STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.234

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (GLOBAL) 0.194

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (140TH) 0.394

44TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.235

8TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.319

APRIL DRIVE BLOCK C 0.164

BIDDIX ROAD BLOCK D 0.191

BRYAN ROAD BLOCK F 0.749

BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.244

CANAL MAINTENANCE RD T: 43S / R: 41E (40TH ST N) 1.462

(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.243

COMPTON ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.501

EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FERRIS LANE BLOCK A 0.194

FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.186

FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.188

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (B ROAD) 0.126

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.135

FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.204

GLOBAL TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.519

GREAT DANE LANE BLOCK F 0.130

GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.489

HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.518

IAN TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.384

JEWEL LANE BLOCK B 0.103

KAZEE ROAD BLOCK G 0.432

KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.260

LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

2 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

73

 
73 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.180

MARCELLA BOULEVARD BLOCK F 0.749

MARCH CIRCLE BLOCK F 0.174

MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.180

ORANGE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.075

PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.186

PERKINS DRIVE BLOCK F 0.336

PINEAPPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.434

QUAIL ROAD BLOCK F 0.135

RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.146

RAYMOND DRIVE BLOCK F 0.337

ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.229

SALLY'S ALLEY BLOCK B 0.244

SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.213

SHAMROCK DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK I  (WEST D) 0.177

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK K (EAST D) 1.733

SNAIL TRAIL BLOCK C 0.244

TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.510

TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.100

TIMBERLANE PLACE BLOCK B 0.219

TRIPP ROAD BLOCK D 0.242

VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.136

WEST "B" ROAD BLOCK A 0.340

WEST "C" ROAD BLOCK B 0.623

WEST "D" ROAD BLOCK I   (SOUTH C.C.) 0.314

WEST 'D' ROAD BLOCK C   (NORTH C.C.) 0.388

WEST 'F' ROAD BLOCK E 0.198

WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.193

MONTHLY MILEAGE = 29.552

3 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

74

 
74 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 1 of 15 

AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY CALL OUT SERVICES FOR REPAIR 
OF TOWN ROADS WITHIN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between:   

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the state of Florida, 
hereafter referred to as “TOWN,” 
 

and 
 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL 
DISTRICT, an independent special district existing under the laws 
of the state of Florida, hereafter referred to as “DISTRICT,” (with 
the TOWN and DISTRICT each referred to as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”). 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, the powers of 

which are defined in the TOWN's Charter and State law; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are roads within the geographical boundaries of the TOWN which are 

maintained by the Loxahatchee Groves Water District, and other roads under the maintenance 
and control of the TOWN, which have been designated by the TOWN as “Town Roads,” and are 
the responsibility of the TOWN; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of services, equipment and materials in the event of 

an emergency situation to address urgent needs regarding the Town Roads; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN undertook a competitive selection process, requesting responses 

to an Invitation to Bid for Bid No. 2013-01 (the “Bid”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid (“Response”) was the bid selected by 

the TOWN Council as the lowest, most responsive bidder for emergency call out services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s response to the Bid was the bid selected by the TOWN for 

emergency call outs repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has the experience, expertise, equipment, and materials for 

the emergency call out repair of Town Roads, and is capable of providing the necessary materials 
and manpower to address emergency repair issues of Town Roads, subject to the agreement of 
the Parties on criteria for such services, and the TOWN’s agreement to pay for such services and 
supplies; and, 

75

 
75 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 2 of 15 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN Council and the District Board of Supervisors have determined 

that this Agreement is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within 
the TOWN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, 

promises, covenants and payments hereafter set forth, DISTRICT and TOWN agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I - RECITALS 
 
1.1 The foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part hereof. 
 
 ARTICLE 2 – EMERGENCY REPAIR OF TOWN ROADS 
 
2.1 Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein is the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves Addendum #2 to Bid No. 2013-01, which is titled “Town Roads List.”  This list 
may be amended by the Parties without amending this Agreement so long as such 
amendment is in writing and approved by the Parties.  

 
2.2 DISTRICT will provide emergency call out services to TOWN as set forth herein.  

Specifically, the DISTRICT shall furnish all of the materials and labor necessary to 
perform all of the work described in the specifications to the Bid and Response, as 
referenced above.   

 
2.3 The DISTRICT shall provide emergency call out services to TOWN on an as-needed 

basis at the discretion of the TOWN.   Such emergency call out services shall be 
performed under separate work authorizations that will allow inclusion of needed 
materials to complete the necessary repair.  Whenever possible, such directives shall be 
in writing, in advance.  However, since the work is categorized as Emergency Repairs, 
DISTRICT may rely on verbal or electronic communications from the TOWN Manager 
to proceed with Emergency Repairs, and the formal documentation may be completed 
subsequently to confirm the work. 

 
2.4 DISTRICT hereby represents to TOWN, with full knowledge that TOWN is relying upon 

these representations in DISTRICT’s Bid when entering into this Agreement with 
DISTRICT, that DISTRICT has the professional expertise, experience, and manpower to 
perform the services to be provided by DISTRICT pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement.  DISTRICT ensures that all equipment used is properly registered.  The 
TOWN reserves the right to verify this information.  DISTRICT further represents that it 
shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that 
may be applicable to the operation of the equipment provided for gravel road grading 
services.  All equipment must be appropriately equipped so drivers can locate equipment 
from a distance. 

 

76

 
76 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 3 of 15 

2.5 DISTRICT assumes professional and technical responsibility for performance of its 
services to be provided hereunder in accordance with recognized professional standards 
of good construction and engineering practice.   

 
2.6 DISTRICT agrees that no subcontracting is permitted without the advance, written 

approval of the TOWN Manager. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT 
 

3.1 As set forth in its Bid, DISTRICT shall provide the following services at the following 
prices to include cost for use of equipment, labor costs, fuel, equipment maintenance, 
equipment delivery charges, fuel surcharges, and any other charges: 

 
(a)  Emergency Call Outs  Hourly  $50.00 

 
3.2 Upon the commencement of this Agreement, DISTRICT will provide the TOWN 

invoices on a monthly basis in a timely manner for work actually completed by 
DISTRICT for the previous month.   

 
3.3 Invoices submitted by DISTRICT to TOWN must be submitted on the fifth (5th) day of 

each month for the previous month’s work performed. 
 
3.4 All invoices must have a Purchase/Work Authorization number issued by the TOWN 

before it will be considered for payment. 
 
3.5 All invoices must provide sufficient detail reflecting emergency call out repairs 

performed.  If Work Authorization issued for emergency call out repairs, detail of work 
performed along with a breakdown for additional charges if any for needed materials to 
complete the necessary repair.. 

 
3.6 DISTRICT will submit an invoice for  costs for such work.  Should the TOWN determine 

that the documentation for emergency road repair is incomplete, it shall request 
additional information from the DISTRICT within ten (10) working days of receipt of the 
original invoice. 

 
3.7 The TOWN shall pay the DISTRICT within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final written 

invoice and documentation from the DISTRICT.   
 
3.8 The TOWN’s obligation is limited to its payment obligation and shall have no obligation 

to any other person or entity. 
 

  
  

77

 
77 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 4 of 15 

ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
4.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the Effective Date provided 

below, and shall continue for two (2) years with an option for the TOWN to exercise two 
(2) additional two (2) year periods, or until terminated as provided in Sections 4.2 
through 4.7, below.  The TOWN shall exercise its option by providing DISTRICT with 
not less than thirty (30) days written notice prior to the end of the then-current term.  The 
notice period may be waived by the Parties. 

 
4.2 Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, minor adjustments to the timetable for 

completion approved by TOWN in advance, in writing, will not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due.  Furthermore, a delay due to an Act of 
God, fire, lockout, strike or labor dispute, riot or civil commotion, act of public enemy, or 
other cause beyond the control of DISTRICT shall extend this Agreement for a period 
equal to such delay and during this period such delay shall not constitute a delay by 
DISTRICT for which liquidated damages are due. 

 
4.3 Notwithstanding Section 4.2, this Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party 

upon ninety (90) days upon the other Party’s failure to timely perform its responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  Such written notice shall be given by the terminating party to the 
other party setting forth the breach.  If the breaching party corrects the breach within 
thirty (30) days after written notice of same, to the satisfaction of the terminating party, 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  If such breach is not corrected within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach, the terminating party may terminate the 
Agreement.   

 
4.4 Termination of this Agreement for cause shall include, but not be limited to:  failure of 

the Parties to suitably perform the services required under this Agreement, and failure of 
the Parties to continuously perform the services required by the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives set forth 
herein, notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured.  

 
4.5 The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the TOWN, as evidenced by the 

adoption of a resolution by the TOWN.  In that event, the TOWN’S sole obligation to 
DISTRICT shall be payment for services for work previously authorized and performed.  
Such payment shall be determined on the basis of the hours or percentage of work 
performed by DISTRICT up to the time of termination.  Upon such termination, the 
TOWN may, without penalty or other obligation to DISTRICT, elect to employ other 
persons to perform the same or similar services. 

 
4.6 Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with Article 6, “NOTICES,” herein 

except that notice of termination by TOWN Manager which TOWN Manager deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare may be verbal notice which shall 
be promptly confirmed in writing in accordance with the “NOTICES” section of this 
Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated for convenience by the TOWN 

78

 
78 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 5 of 15 

Council, DISTRICT shall be paid for any services performed to the date the Agreement is 
terminated; however, upon being notified of TOWN’s election to terminate, DISTRICT 
shall refrain from performing further services or incurring additional expenses under the 
terms of this Agreement.  DISTRICT acknowledges and agrees that Ten Dollars ($10.00) 
of the compensation to be paid by TOWN, the adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged by DISTRICT, is given as specific consideration to DISTRICT for 
TOWN’s right to terminate this Agreement for convenience. 

 
4.7 In the event this Agreement is terminated, any compensation payable by TOWN shall be 

withheld until all documents are provided to TOWN.  In no event shall the TOWN be 
liable to DISTRICT for any additional compensation, other than that provided herein, or 
for any consequential or incidental damages. 

 
 ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 
 
5.1  Independent Contractor:  DISTRICT is an independent contractor and not an employee, 

agent, or servant of TOWN or its TOWN Council for all purposes, including but not 
limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime 
payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal 
Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers 
Compensation Act, and the State of Florida’s unemployment insurance law.  DISTRICT 
further acknowledges that the TOWN’s duty under this Agreement is limited to 
contributing the identified funds to DISTRICT and that DISTRICT will use the funds to 
perform mowing and vegetation removal services for the maintain Town Roads within 
the TOWN in the manner provided herein.  DISTRICT agrees that it is a separate and 
independent enterprise from the TOWN, that it has full opportunity to find other 
business, that it has made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high 
level of skill necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not be construed as 
creating any joint employment relationship between DISTRICT and the TOWN and the 
TOWN will not be liable for any obligation incurred by DISTRICT, including but not 
limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.  In the event a claim or 
lawsuit is brought against TOWN, its officers, employees, servants or agents, arising 
from or relating to the DISTRICT improvements or any matter that is the responsibility 
of DISTRICT under this Agreement, DISTRICT will indemnify and hold harmless the 
TOWN in the manner and to the extent set forth in Section 5.2, below.    

 
5.2 Hold Harmless and Indemnification:   DISTRICT hereto agrees, to the extent permitted 

by law, to:  
 

(A) indemnify, save and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees, and agents 
(collectively the “Indemnities”), and to defend said persons from and against any 
such loss, cost, penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including attorneys’ 
fees) or liabilities, causes of action, and judgments of any type whatsoever arising 
out of, resulting from, or in connection with (i) the performance or non-performance 
of the services contemplated by the Agreement which is or is alleged to be directly 

79

 
79 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 6 of 15 

or indirectly caused, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default, or negligence 
(whether active or passive) of DISTRICT, regardless of whether it is, or is alleged to 
be, caused in whole or in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) by any act, 
omission, default or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities, or 
any of them or (ii) the failure of DISTRICT to comply with any of the provisions of 
the Agreement or the failure of DISTRICT to conform to statutes, ordinances, or 
other regulations or requirements of any governmental authority, federal or state, in 
connection with the performance of the Agreement.  DISTRICT expressly agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnities, or any of them, from and against all 
liabilities which may be asserted by an employee or former employee of DISTRICT, 
or any approved subcontractors, as provided above, for which DISTRICT’s liability 
to such employee or former employee would otherwise be limited to payments 
under state Workers’ Compensation or similar laws. 
 
DISTRICT further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities 
from and against (i) any and all Liabilities imposed on account of any violation of 
law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, condition, or requirements, in any related, 
directly or indirectly, to DISTRICT’s performance under the Agreement, 
compliance with which is left by the Agreement to DISTRICT, and (ii) any and all 
claims, and/or suits for labor and materials furnished by DISTRICT or utilized in the 
performance of the Agreement or otherwise. 
 
Where not specifically prohibited by law, DISTRICT further specifically agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from all claims and suits for 
any liability, including, but not limited to, injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property whatsoever, caused by, arising from, incident to connected with, or 
growing out of the performance or non-performance of the Agreement which is, or 
is alleged to be, caused in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) or in 
whole by any act, omission, default, or negligence (whether active or passive) of the 
Indemnities.  The foregoing indemnity shall also include liability imposed by any 
doctrine of strict liability. 

 
(B) The forgoing indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the negligent or 
wrongful acts, or omissions of the other party (or parties).  Nothing contained herein 
shall be construed as a waiver by the TOWN of the liability limits established in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
5.3 Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance shall be 
 filed with the TOWN Manager prior to the commencement of this Agreement.  These 
 Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not 
 be cancelled until at least thirty days (30) prior written notice has been given to the 
 TOWN.  Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws 
 of the State of Florida.  Financial Ratings must be not less than “A-VI” in the latest 
 edition of “Best Key Rating Guide,” published by A.M. Best Guide. 

80

 
80 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 7 of 15 

 
 Insurance shall be in force until the obligations required to be fulfilled under the terms of 

the Agreement are satisfied.  In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates that 
the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then in that 
event, the DISTRICT shall furnish, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 
date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal and like 
coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension thereunder is in 
effect. DISTRICT shall not commence nor continue to provide any services pursuant to 
this Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.  DISTRICT 
shall be liable to TOWN for any lapses in service resulting from a gap in insurance 
coverage.  

 
 5.3.1 REQUIRED INSURANCE 
 
 Comprehensive General Liability insurance to cover liability bodily injury, accidental 
 death, and property damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, and for 
 property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract whether such 
 operation by himself or by anyone directly or indirectly employed under DISTRICT.  
 Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis, with the following limits of liability: 
 
  A. Comprehensive General Liability 
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  B. Automobile and Truck Liability  
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  C. Worker’s Compensation Insurance  
 
   Shall be maintained during the life of this contract to comply with   
   statutory limits for all employees.  The following limits must be   
   maintained: 
 
  A. Worker's Compensation Statutory 
  B. Employer’s Liability  $300,000 each accident 
       $300,000 Disease-policy limit 
       $300,000 Disease-each employee 
 
   or such other amount that may be required by Florida law, whichever is  
   greater. 
 
 Note:  Comprehensive General Liability coverage and Automobile and Truck Liability 
 coverage may be met with a combination of coverage including excess and umbrella 
 liability coverage.  Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering bodily injuries 

81

 
81 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 8 of 15 

 and property damage shall also include coverage for:  (a) injury to or destruction of wires, 
 pipes, conduits, and similar property located below the surface of the ground, whether 
 public or private; (b) collapse of or structural injury to any building or structure except 
 those on which work under this Agreement is being performed; and (c) contractual 
 liabilities related to bodily injury and property damage, i.e. X - explosion, C - Collapse,  
 U - underground. 
 
 Automobile and Truck Liability shall cover bodily injury and property damage for the 
 operation of all motor vehicles and equipment, whether or not owned by DISTRICT, 
 being operated in connection with the work performed under this Agreement.  Product 
 and Completed Operations coverage shall be included in the amounts specified above for 
 Comprehensive General Liability. 
 
 5.3.2 DISTRICT shall name the TOWN as an additional insured on each of the policies 

required herein and shall hold the CITY harmless on account of claims or damages to 
persons, property or premises arising out of the services provided hereunder. 

 
 5.3.3 Evidence of Insurance.  As evidence of insurance coverage, the TOWN may, in 
 lieu of actual policies, accept official written statements from the insurance company 
 certifying that all the insurance policies specified below are in force for the specified 
 period.  DISTRICT shall submit to TOWN evidence of insurance at the time of execution 
 of this Agreement.  Written notice shall be given to the TOWN at least thirty (30) days 
 prior to nonrenewal of such insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE 6 - NOTICES 
 
6.1 Any and all notices given or required under this Agreement shall be in writing and may 

be delivered in person or by United States mail, postage prepaid, first class and certified, 
return receipt requested, or by hand-delivery with a request for a written receipt of 
acknowledgement of delivery, addressed to the Party for whom it is intended at the place 
last specified.  The place for giving notice shall remain the same as set forth herein until 
changed in writing in the manner provided for in this article.  For the present, the Parties 
designated the following: 
 
TO TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES: 

 
Mayor David Browning 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 

 
With copies to: 
 
Mark Kutney, Town Manager 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

82

 
82 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 9 of 15 

14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 

And 
 

Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 
Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
3099 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 200 
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33308 
 
TO LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT: 

 
Stephen E. Yohe, P.E, District Administrator 
P. O. Box 407 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 
With copy to: 
 
Mary M. Viator, Esq., District Legal Counsel 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
One Clearlake Centre 
250 South Australian Avenue, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

 
ARTICLE 7 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
7.1 ASSIGNMENT: The Parties to the Agreement shall have NO right to assign, transfer, or 

otherwise encumber this Agreement, without the express consent of the other party. 
 

7.2 WAIVER: The waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any failure on the part of 
another Party to perform in accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any future or continuing similar or 
dissimilar failure. 

 
7.3 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  Neither TOWN nor DISTRICT intends to directly 

or substantially benefit a third party by this Agreement.  Therefore, the Parties agree that 
there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement and that no third party shall be 
entitled to assert a claim against either of them based on this Agreement.  The Parties 
expressly acknowledge that it is not their intent to create any rights or obligations in any 
third person or entity under this Agreement. 

 
7.4 SEVERABILITY: The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall in no way 

affect the validity of any other provision. 
 

83

 
83 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 10 of 15 

7.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: It is understood and agreed that this Agreement incorporates 
and includes all prior negotiations, agreements or understandings applicable to the 
matters contained herein and the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements 
or understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained 
in this document.  Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall 
be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

 
7.6 JOINT PREPARATION:  The Parties acknowledge that they have sought and received 

whatever competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and 
complete understanding of all rights and obligations here and that the preparation of this 
Agreement has been a joint effort.  The language agreed to expresses their mutual intent 
and their resulting documents shall not, solely, as a matter of judicial construction, be 
construed more severely against one of the parties than the other.   

 
7.7 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any 
controversies or legal problems arising out of this Agreement and any action involving 
the enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder shall be submitted to the 
jurisdiction of the State Courts of the 15th Judicial Circuit of Palm Beach County, Florida, 
and the venue site and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  To 
encourage prompt and equitable resolution of any litigation that may arise hereunder, 
each Party hereby waives any rights it may have to trial by jury of any such litigation. 

 
7.8 AMENDMENTS:  No modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms or conditions 

contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with 
the same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by both Parties. 

 
7.9 MULTIPLE ORIGINALS:  This Agreement may be fully executed in multiple copies 

by all Parties, each of which, bearing original signatures, shall have the force and effect 
of an original document. 

 
7.10 LICENSES.  All drivers must be properly licensed operators, if applicable.  DISTRICT 

is responsible for updating operator information at any time throughout the duration of 
this Agreement.  Failure to do so may be grounds for breach and subsequent termination 
of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for providing phone numbers where 
employees can be reached.  The inability of the TOWN to make contact with DISTRICT 
or an employee thereof within a reasonable amount of time is cause for the TOWN to 
terminate this Agreement as described in Section 3 of this Agreement. 

 
7.11 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.  Pursuant to the 

Bid and its Response, DISTRICT shall adhere to an affirmative action policy.  In the 
performance of this Agreement, DISTRICT shall not discriminate against any firm, 
employee or applicant for employment or any other firm/individual in providing services 
because of sex, age, race, color, religion, ancestry or national origin.  

 

84

 
84 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 11 of 15 

7.12 PROTECTION OF TOWN PROPERTY.  At all times during the performance of this 
Agreement, DISTRICT shall protect the property of the TOWN and adjacent property 
owners from all damage whatsoever on account of the work being carried on under this 
contract. 

 
7.13 CONFLICTS.  DISTRICT and TOWN hereby agree that the following Contract 

Documents are fully incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, as if written 
herein word for word: TOWN’s Bid No. 2013-01 and DISTRICT’s Response.  In the 
event that there is any conflict between any of the contract document and the terms of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail. 

 
7.14 LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  It is acknowledged that each Party to this Agreement 

had the opportunity to be represented by counsel in the preparation of this Agreement 
and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the Party 
preparing same shall not apply due to the joint contribution of both Parties. 

 
7.15 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  Reports, surveys, plans, studies and other data 

provided in connection with this Agreement are and shall remain the property of TOWN 
whether or not the project for which they are made is completed.  TOWN hereby agrees 
to use DISTRICT’s work product for its intended purposes. 

 
7.16 NO CONTINGENT FEES.  DISTRICT warrants that it has not employed or retained 

any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
DISTRICT, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay 
any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for DISTRICT, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  
For the breach or violation of this provision, the TOWN shall have the right to terminate 
the Agreement without liability at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or 
otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or 
consideration. 

 
7.17 BINDING AUTHORITY.  Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either 

Party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party 
with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
7.18 EXHIBITS. Each Exhibit referred to in this Agreement forms an essential part of this 

Agreement.  The exhibits if not physically attached should be treated as part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7.19 HEADINGS.  Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

considered on any interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

85

 
85 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 12 of 15 

7.20 ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event that either Party brings suit for enforcement of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorneys’ fees and court costs in 
addition to any other remedy afforded by law. 

 
7.21 AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS.  TOWN 

shall have the right to audit the books, records and accounts of DISTRICT that are related 
to this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall keep such book, records, and accounts as may be 
necessary in order to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement.  
DISTRICT shall preserve and maintain all financial records, supporting documents, 
statistical records, and any other documents pertinent to his Agreement for the required 
retention period of the Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), if 
applicable, or, if the Florida Public Records Act is not applicable, for a minimum period 
of three (3) years after termination of this Agreement, unless DISTRICT is notified in 
writing by the TOWN of the need to extend the retention period.  Such retention of such 
records and documents shall be at DISTRICT’s expense.  DISTRICT shall comply with 
inspection and reproduction obligations of Florida law relating to public records in its 
possession.  If any audit has been initiated an audit findings have not been resolved at the 
end of the retention period or three (3) years, whichever is longer, the books, records, and 
accounts shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings. If the Florida Public 
Records Act is determined by the TOWN to be applicable to DISTRICT’s records, 
DISTRICT shall comply with all requirements thereof; however, no confidentiality or 
non-disclosure requirement of either federal or state law shall be violated by DISTRICT.  
Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records, and accounts shall be a basis 
for TOWN’S disallowance and recovery of any payment upon such entry. 

 
In addition, DISTRICT shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of any successor 
companies and allow and successor companies to receive working papers relating to 
matters of continuing significance.   In addition, DISTRICT shall provide a complete 
copy of all working papers to TOWN, prior to final payment, in accordance with this 
Agreement and the Schedule for DISTRICT's services. 
 

7.22 PALM BEACH COUNTY OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.  DISTRICT 
 is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to  
 investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this 
 Agreement, and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and testimony 
 from DISTRICT and, any, if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors.  
 DISTRICT understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and 
 consequences provided by law, failure of DISTRICT or, if applicable, subcontractors and 
 lower tier subcontractors to  fully cooperate with the Inspector General when requested 
 will be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement.  DISTRICT shall be responsible for all 
 costs incurred by it or the TOWN as  a result of any investigation by the Inspector 
 General which results in an adverse  determination caused by DISTRICT, and if 
 applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors. 
 

 

86

 
86 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 13 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
between TOWN and DISTRICT on the respective dates under each signature: TOWN, signing 
by and through its _____________________, authorized to execute same by Council action on 
the ____ day of _____________, 2013 and the DISTRICT, signing by and through its 
_____________________, authorized to execute same by Board of Supervisor’s action on the 
____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
   
 Executed by TOWN this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
a Florida Municipal Corporation 

 
ATTEST: 

By _____________________________ 
David Browning 

 Mayor 
__________________________      

Town Clerk       
 
    
[TOWN SEAL]     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

By_____________________________ 
        Town Attorney 

 
 
Executed by DISTRICT this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 

 
 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT, an Independent 
Special District of the State of Florida 

ATTEST: 
 
By _____________________________ 
 David DeMarois             
           Chairman 

__________________________      
Secretary  

 
[DISTRICT SEAL]       
 

  

87

 
87 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 14 of 15 

EXHIBIT “A”:   
 

TOWN ROADS LIST 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\AGMTS 2013\Emergency Calls - LGWCD.docx 

 
 

88

 
88 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



10TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B 0.081

11TH LANE NORTH BLOCK F 0.351

11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.244

12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.197

131ST TERRACE NORTH BLOCK F 0.147

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (FOLSOM) 0.282

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.166

140TH STREET NORTH CUT-THRU / SUNSPORT 0.100

145TH AVENUE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.457

147TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

147TH DRIVE NORTH BLOCK C 0.115

148TH TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.339

149TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK I 0.126

14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.257

152ND WAY NORTH BLOCK B 0.068

160TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.394

161ST TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 40E 2.014

17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.076

21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F 0.292

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.248

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK E   (E ROAD) 0.156

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.210

23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.189

24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.177

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.282

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (E ROAD) 0.194

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E   (WEST F) 0.250

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F   (EAST F) 0.406

25TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.136

27TH LANE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.141

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (D ROAD) 0.132

34TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

1 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

89

 
89 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

35TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK D 0.127

41ST ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.068

42ND ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.153

42ND STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.234

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (GLOBAL) 0.194

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (140TH) 0.394

44TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.235

8TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.319

APRIL DRIVE BLOCK C 0.164

BIDDIX ROAD BLOCK D 0.191

BRYAN ROAD BLOCK F 0.749

BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.244

CANAL MAINTENANCE RD T: 43S / R: 41E (40TH ST N) 1.462

(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.243

COMPTON ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.501

EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FERRIS LANE BLOCK A 0.194

FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.186

FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.188

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (B ROAD) 0.126

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.135

FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.204

GLOBAL TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.519

GREAT DANE LANE BLOCK F 0.130

GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.489

HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.518

IAN TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.384

JEWEL LANE BLOCK B 0.103

KAZEE ROAD BLOCK G 0.432

KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.260

LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

2 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

90

 
90 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.180

MARCELLA BOULEVARD BLOCK F 0.749

MARCH CIRCLE BLOCK F 0.174

MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.180

ORANGE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.075

PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.186

PERKINS DRIVE BLOCK F 0.336

PINEAPPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.434

QUAIL ROAD BLOCK F 0.135

RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.146

RAYMOND DRIVE BLOCK F 0.337

ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.229

SALLY'S ALLEY BLOCK B 0.244

SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.213

SHAMROCK DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK I  (WEST D) 0.177

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK K (EAST D) 1.733

SNAIL TRAIL BLOCK C 0.244

TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.510

TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.100

TIMBERLANE PLACE BLOCK B 0.219

TRIPP ROAD BLOCK D 0.242

VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.136

WEST "B" ROAD BLOCK A 0.340

WEST "C" ROAD BLOCK B 0.623

WEST "D" ROAD BLOCK I   (SOUTH C.C.) 0.314

WEST 'D' ROAD BLOCK C   (NORTH C.C.) 0.388

WEST 'F' ROAD BLOCK E 0.198

WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.193

MONTHLY MILEAGE = 29.552

3 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

91

 
91 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

11. b.  ITB 2013‐001 Gravel Road Grading, Mowing and Vegetative Removal Services – Contract Approval 

for  C & C Loader 

92

 
92 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 1 of 15 

AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE OF MOWING & VEGETATIVE 
REMOVAL SERVICES WITHIN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES 
 

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between:   

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the state of Florida, 
hereafter referred to as “TOWN,” 

and 
 
C&C LOADER SERVICE, INC., a company authorized to do 
business in the State of Florida, with a principal address of 1128 
Royal Palm Beach Boulevard, #282, West Palm Beach, FL 33411, 
hereafter referred to as “C&C” (with the TOWN and C&C each 
referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”). 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, the powers of 

which are defined in the TOWN's Charter and State law; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are roads within the geographical boundaries of the TOWN which are  

under the maintenance and control of the TOWN, which have been designated by the TOWN as 
“Town Roads,” and are the responsibility of the TOWN; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of services, equipment and materials for mowing and 

vegetative removal services for the Town Roads; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN desires professional services to perform certain maintenance of 

mowing and vegetative removal services, as described herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TOWN undertook a competitive selection process, requesting an 

Invitation to Bid  for  Bid No. 2013-01 (the “Bid”); and 
 
WHEREAS, C&C’s response to the Bid (“Response”) was the bid selected by the 

TOWN Council as the lowest, most responsive bidder for maintenance of mowing and vegetative 
removal services; and 

 
WHEREAS, C&C represented that it has the necessary experience of mowing, , and 

vegetative removal services, and is capable of providing such services to the TOWN for its Town 
Roads, subject to the agreement of the parties on criteria for such services, and the TOWN’s 
agreement to pay for such services; and 

93

 
93 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 2 of 15 

WHEREAS, the Town Council and C&C have determined that this Agreement is in the 
best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within the TOWN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, 

promises, covenants, and payments hereinafter set forth, C&C and TOWN agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I - RECITALS 
 
1.1 The foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part hereof. 
 
 ARTICLE 2 – MOWING AND VEGETATIVE REMOVAL SERVICES 
 
2.1 Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein is the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves’ Addendum #2 to Bid No. 2013-01, which is titled “Town Roads List.”  This list 
may be amended by the TOWN without amending this Agreement so long as such 
amendment is in writing and approved by both Parties.  

 
2.2 C&C will provide mowing and vegetative removal services to TOWN as set forth herein.  

Specifically, C&C shall furnish all of the materials and labor necessary to perform all of 
the work described in the specifications to the Bid and Response for Mowing and 
Vegetative Services.   

 
2.3 Mowing maintenance will be performed on the road segments no less than eight (8) times 

per year pursuant to a schedule agreed upon by the Parties.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the TOWN shall have no obligation to engage the services of C&C for a 
specified number of times.  

 
2.4 Trimming and/or removing trees and shrubbery that create a hazard to roadway users will 

be performed on all the TOWN road segments on an as-needed when-needed basis, but 
only with the advance, written direction and approval of the Town Manager.  Such 
written direction shall include the Scope of Service and the approved allocated costs for 
the work. 

 
2.5 C&C hereby represents to TOWN, with full knowledge that TOWN is relying upon these 

representations when entering into this Agreement with C&C, that C&C has the 
professional expertise, experience, and manpower to perform the services to be provided 
by C&C pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  C&C ensures that all equipment used 
is properly registered.  The TOWN reserves the right to verify this information.  C&C 
further represents that it shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
regulations, and ordinances that may be applicable to the operation of the equipment 
provided for Mowing and Vegetative Removal Services.  All equipment must be 
equipped with a revolving or flashing amber light. 

 
2.6 C&C assumes professional and technical responsibility for performance of its services to 

94

 
94 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 3 of 15 

be provided hereunder in accordance with recognized professional standards of good 
construction and engineering practice.   

 
2.7 C&C agrees that no subcontracting is permitted without the advance, written approval of 

the Town Manager. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT 
 
3.1 As set forth in its Response, C&C shall provide the following services at the following 

prices that includes cost for use of equipment, labor costs, fuel, equipment maintenance, 
equipment delivery charges, fuel surcharges, and any other charges: 

 
(a) Mowing     Hourly   $40.00 
(b) Vegetative Removal   Cubic Yard  $ 3.50 
(c) Vegetative Removal Dumping Fees Cubic Yard  $ 3.50 

 
 Pursuant to its Response, C&C will cover the cost of any dump fees for the vegetation 

removal.   
 
3.2 Upon the commencement of this Agreement, C&C will provide the TOWN invoices on a 

monthly basis in a timely manner for work actually completed by C&C for the previous 
month.   

 
3.3 Invoices submitted by C&C to TOWN must be submitted on the fifth (5th) day of each 

month for the previous month’s work performed. 
 
3.4 All invoices must have a Purchase/Work Authorization number issued by the TOWN 

before it will be considered for payment. 
 
3.5 All invoices must provide sufficient detail reflecting areas mowed and vegetative 

removal performed on specific roads. 
 
3.6 Upon completion of the mowing and vegetative removal services, C&C will submit an 

invoice for  costs for such work performed .  Should the TOWN determine that the 
documentation for a mowing or vegetative removal job is incomplete, it shall request 
additional information from C&C within ten (10) working days of receipt of the original 
invoice. 

 
3.7 The TOWN shall pay C&C within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final written invoice 

and documentation from C&C.   
 
3.8 The TOWN’s obligation is limited to its payment obligation and shall have no obligation 

to any other person or entity. 
 

 ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 

95

 
95 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 4 of 15 

 
4.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the Effective Date, and shall 

continue for two (2) years with an option for the TOWN to exercise two (2) additional 
two (2) year periods, or until terminated as provided in Sections 4.2 through 4.7, below.  
The TOWN shall exercise its option by providing C&C with not less than thirty (30) days 
written notice prior to the end of the then-current term.  The notice period may be waived 
by the Parties. 

 
4.2 Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, minor adjustments to the timetable for 

completion approved by TOWN in advance, in writing, will not constitute a delay by 
C&C for which liquidated damages are due.  Furthermore, a delay due to an Act of God, 
fire, lockout, strike or labor dispute, riot or civil commotion, act of public enemy, or other 
cause beyond the control of C&C shall extend this Agreement for a period equal to such 
delay and during this period such delay shall not constitute a delay by C&C for which 
liquidated damages are due. 

 
4.3 Notwithstanding Section 4.2, this Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party 

upon ninety (90) days upon the other Party’s failure to timely perform its responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  Such written notice shall be given by the terminating party to the 
other party setting forth the breach.  If the breaching party corrects the breach within 
thirty (30) days after written notice of same, to the satisfaction of the terminating party, 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  If such breach is not corrected within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach, the terminating party may terminate the 
Agreement.   

 
4.4 Termination of this Agreement for cause shall include, but not be limited to:  failure of 

the Parties to suitably perform the services required under this Agreement, and failure of 
the Parties to continuously perform the services required by the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives set forth 
herein, notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured.  

 
4.5 The Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the TOWN, as evidenced by the 

adoption of a resolution by the TOWN. In that event, the TOWN’S sole obligation to C & 
C shall be payment for services for work previously authorized and performed.  Such 
payment shall be determined on the basis of the hours or percentage of work performed 
by C&C up to the time of termination.  Upon such termination, the TOWN may, without 
penalty or other obligation to the C&C, elect to employ other persons to perform the 
same or similar services. 

 
 
4.6 Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with Article 6, “NOTICES,” herein 

except that notice of termination by Town Manager which Town Manager deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare may be verbal notice which shall 
be promptly confirmed in writing in accordance with the “NOTICES” section of this 
Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated for convenience by the Town 

96

 
96 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 5 of 15 

Council, C&C shall be paid for any services performed to the date the Agreement is 
terminated; however, upon being notified of TOWN’s election to terminate, C&C shall 
refrain from performing further services or incurring additional expenses under the terms 
of this Agreement. C&C acknowledges and agrees that Ten Dollars ($10.00) of the 
compensation to be paid by TOWN, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by 
C&C, is given as specific consideration to C&C for TOWN’s right to terminate this 
Agreement for convenience. 

 
4.7 In the event this Agreement is terminated, any compensation payable by TOWN shall be 

withheld until all documents are provided to TOWN.  In no event shall the TOWN be 
liable to C&C for any additional compensation, other than that provided herein, or for 
any consequential or incidental damages. 

 
ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 

 
5.1  Independent Contractor:  C&C is an independent contractor and not an employee, agent, 

or servant of TOWN or its TOWN Council for all purposes, including but not limited to, 
the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime payments, 
Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment 
Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers Compensation 
Act, and the State of Florida’s unemployment insurance law.  C&C further acknowledges 
that the TOWN’s duty under this Agreement is limited to contributing the identified 
funds to C&C and that C&C will use the funds to perform mowing and vegetation 
removal services for the maintain Town Roads within the TOWN in the manner provided 
herein.  C&C agrees that it is a separate and independent enterprise from the TOWN, that 
it has full opportunity to find other business, that it has made its own investment in its 
business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work.  This 
Agreement shall not be construed as creating any joint employment relationship between 
C&C and the TOWN and the TOWN will not be liable for any obligation incurred by 
C&C, including but not limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.  In 
the event a claim or lawsuit is brought against TOWN, its officers, employees, servants 
or agents, arising from or relating to the C&C improvements or any matter that is the 
responsibility of C&C under this Agreement, C&C will indemnify and hold harmless the 
TOWN in the manner and to the extent set forth in Section 5.2, below.    

 
5.2 Hold Harmless and Indemnification:   C&C hereto agrees, to the extent permitted by law, 

to:  
 

(A) indemnify, save and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees, and agents 
(collectively the “Indemnities”), and to defend said persons from and against any 
such loss, cost, penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including attorneys’ 
fees) or liabilities, causes of action, and judgments of any type whatsoever arising 
out of, resulting from, or in connection with (i) the performance or non-performance 
of the services contemplated by the Agreement which is or is alleged to be directly 
or indirectly caused, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default, or negligence 

97

 
97 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 6 of 15 

(whether active or passive) of C&C, regardless of whether it is, or is alleged to be, 
caused in whole or in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) by any act, 
omission, default or negligence (whether active or passive) of the Indemnities, or 
any of them or (ii) the failure of C&C to comply with any of the provisions of the 
Agreement or the failure of C&C to conform to statutes, ordinances, or other 
regulations or requirements of any governmental authority, federal or state, in 
connection with the performance of the Agreement.  C&C expressly agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnities, or any of them, from and against all 
liabilities which may be asserted by an employee or former employee of C&C, or 
any approved subcontractors, as provided above, for which C&C’s liability to such 
employee or former employee would otherwise be limited to payments under state 
Workers’ Compensation or similar laws. 
 
C&C further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from 
and against (i) any and all Liabilities imposed on account of any violation of law, 
ordinance, order, rule, regulation, condition, or requirements, in any related, directly 
or indirectly, to C&C’s performance under the Agreement, compliance with which 
is left by the Agreement to C&C, and (ii) any and all claims, and/or suits for labor 
and materials furnished by C&C or utilized in the performance of the Agreement or 
otherwise. 
 
Where not specifically prohibited by law, C&C further specifically agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from all claims and suits for 
any liability, including, but not limited to, injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property whatsoever, caused by, arising from, incident to connected with, or 
growing out of the performance or non-performance of the Agreement which is, or 
is alleged to be, caused in part (whether joint, concurrent, or contributing) or in 
whole by any act, omission, default, or negligence (whether active or passive) of the 
Indemnities.  The foregoing indemnity shall also include liability imposed by any 
doctrine of strict liability. 

 
(B)  The forgoing indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration of this 
 Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the negligent 
 or wrongful acts, or omissions of the other party (or parties).  Nothing contained 
 herein shall be construed as a waiver by the TOWN of the liability limits 
 established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 

5.3 Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance shall be 
 filed with the TOWN Manager prior to the commencement of this Agreement.  These 
 Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not 
 be cancelled until at least thirty days (30) prior written notice has been given to the 
 TOWN.  Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws 
 of the State of Florida.  Financial Ratings must be not less than “A-VI” in the latest 
 edition of “Best Key Rating Guide,” published by A.M. Best Guide. 

 

98

 
98 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 7 of 15 

 Insurance shall be in force until the obligations required to be fulfilled under the  terms 
 of the Agreement are satisfied.  In the event the insurance certificate provided indicates 
 that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, then in 
 that event, the C&C shall furnish, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 
 the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal  and 
 like coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension 
 thereunder is in effect.   C&C shall not commence nor continue to provide any services 
 pursuant to this Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force and  effect.  
 C&C shall be liable to TOWN for any lapses in service resulting from a gap in insurance 
 coverage. 
 
 5.3.1 REQUIRED INSURANCE 
 
 Comprehensive General Liability insurance to cover liability bodily injury, accidental 
 death, and property damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, and for 
 property damage, which may arise from operations under this contract whether such 
 operation by himself or by anyone directly or indirectly employed under C&C.  Coverage 
 must be written on an occurrence basis, with the following limits of liability: 
 
  A. Comprehensive General Liability 
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  B. Automobile and Truck Liability  
   1. Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 
   2. General Aggregate     1,000,000 
 
  C. Worker’s Compensation Insurance  
 
   Shall be maintained during the life of this contract to comply with   
   statutory limits for all employees.  The following limits must be   
   maintained: 
 
  A. Worker's Compensation Statutory 
  B. Employer’s Liability  $300,000 each accident 
       $300,000 Disease-policy limit 
       $300,000 Disease-each employee 
 
   or such other amount that may be required by Florida law, whichever is  
   greater. 
 
 Note:  Comprehensive General Liability coverage and Automobile and Truck Liability 
 coverage may be met with a combination of coverage including excess and umbrella 
 liability coverage.  Comprehensive General Liability Insurance covering bodily injuries 
 and property damage shall also include coverage for:  (a) injury to or destruction of wires, 

99

 
99 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 8 of 15 

 pipes, conduits, and similar property located below the surface of the ground, whether 
 public or private; (b) collapse of or structural injury to any building or structure except 
 those on which work under this Agreement is being performed; and (c) contractual 
 liabilities related to bodily injury and property damage, i.e. X - explosion, C - Collapse,  
 U - underground. 
 
 Automobile and Truck Liability shall cover bodily injury and property damage for the 
 operation of all motor vehicles and equipment, whether or not owned by C&C, being 
 operated in connection with the work performed under this Agreement.  Product and 
 Completed Operations coverage shall be included in the amounts specified above for 
 Comprehensive General Liability. 
 
 5.3.2 C&C shall name the TOWN as an additional insured on each of the 
 policies required herein and shall hold the TOWN harmless on account of claims  or 
 damages to persons, property or premises arising out of the services provided 
 hereunder. 
 
 5.3.3 Evidence of Insurance.  As evidence of insurance coverage, the TOWN may, in 
 lieu of actual policies, accept official written statements from the insurance company 
 certifying that all the insurance policies specified below are in force for the specified 
 period.  C&C shall submit to TOWN evidence of insurance at the time of execution of 
 this Agreement.  Written notice shall be given to the TOWN at least thirty (30) days prior 
 to nonrenewal of such insurance coverage. 
 
 ARTICLE 6 - NOTICES 
 
6.1 Any and all notices given or required under this Agreement shall be in writing and may 

be delivered in person or by United States mail, postage prepaid, first class and certified, 
return receipt requested, or by hand-delivery with a request for a written receipt of 
acknowledgement of delivery, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place 
last specified.  The place for giving notice shall remain the same as set forth herein until 
changed in writing in the manner provided for in this article.  For the present, the Parties 
designated the following: 
 
TO TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES: 

 
Mayor David Browning 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 

 
With copies to: 
 
Mark Kutney, Town Manager 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

100

 
100 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 9 of 15 

14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 
 

And 
 

Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 
Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
3099 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 200 
Fort Lauderdale, FL  33308 
 
TO C&C LOADER SERVICE, INC.: 

 
 John Choquette, President 
 1128 Royal Palm Beach Boulevard, #282 
 West Palm Beach, FL 33411 
 
 With a copy to: 
 
 John Choquette, President 
 12056 F Road 
 Loxahatchee, FL 33470 
 
 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
7.1 ASSIGNMENT: The Parties to the Agreement shall have no right to assign, transfer, or 

otherwise encumber this Agreement, without the express consent of the other party. 
 

7.2 WAIVER: The waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any failure on the part of 
another Party to perform in accordance with any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any future or continuing similar or 
dissimilar failure. 

 
7.3 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  Neither TOWN nor C&C intends to directly or 

substantially benefit a third party by this Agreement.  Therefore, the Parties agree that 
there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement and that no third party shall be 
entitled to assert a claim against either of them based on this Agreement.  The Parties 
expressly acknowledge that it is not their intent to create any rights or obligations in any 
third person or entity under this Agreement. 

 
7.4 SEVERABILITY: The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall in no way 

affect the validity of any other provision. 

101

 
101 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 10 of 15 

 
7.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: It is understood and agreed that this Agreement incorporates 

and includes all prior negotiations, agreements or understandings applicable to the 
matters contained herein and the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements 
or understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained 
in this document.  Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall 
be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

 
7.6 JOINT PREPARATION:  The Parties acknowledge that they have sought and received 

whatever competent advice and counsel as was necessary for them to form a full and 
complete understanding of all rights and obligations here and that the preparation of this 
Agreement has been a joint effort.  The language agreed to expresses their mutual intent 
and their resulting documents shall not, solely, as a matter of judicial construction, be 
construed more severely against one of the parties than the other.   

 
7.7 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 

construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any 
controversies or legal problems arising out of this Agreement and any action involving 
the enforcement or interpretation of any rights hereunder shall be submitted to the 
jurisdiction of the State Courts of the 15th Judicial Circuit of Palm Beach County, Florida, 
and the venue site and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  To 
encourage prompt and equitable resolution of any litigation that may arise hereunder, 
each Party hereby waives any rights it may have to trial by jury of any such litigation. 

 
7.8 AMENDMENTS:  No modification, amendment, or alteration of the terms or conditions 

contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with 
the same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by both Parties. 

 
7.9 MULTIPLE ORIGINALS:  This Agreement may be fully executed in multiple copies 

by all Parties, each of which, bearing original signatures, shall have the force and effect 
of an original document. 

 
7.10 LICENSES.  All drivers must be properly licensed operators, if applicable.  C&C is 

responsible for updating operator information at any time throughout the duration of this 
Agreement.  Failure to do so may be grounds for breach and subsequent termination of 
this Agreement.  C&C shall be responsible for providing phone numbers where 
employees can be reached.  The inability of the TOWN to make contact with C&C or an 
employee thereof within a reasonable amount of time is cause for the TOWN to terminate 
this Agreement or to use other contractors as described in Section 4 of this Agreement. 

 
7.11 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.  Pursuant to the 

Bid and Response, C&C shall adhere to an affirmative action policy.  In the performance 
of this Agreement, C&C shall not discriminate against any firm, employee or applicant 
for employment or any other firm/individual in providing services because of sex, age, 
race, color, religion, ancestry or national origin.  

102

 
102 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 11 of 15 

 
7.12 PROTECTION OF PROPERTY.  At all times during the performance of this 

Agreement, C&C shall protect the property of the TOWN and adjacent property owners 
from all damage whatsoever on account of the work being carried on under this contract. 

 
7.13 CONFLICTS IN DOCUMENTS.  C&C and TOWN hereby agree that the following 

Contract Documents are fully incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement to 
the extent not in conflict with this Agreement, as if written herein word for word:  
TOWN’s Bid No. 2013-01 and C&C’s Response.  In the event that there is any conflict 
between any of the contract document and the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall prevail. 

 
7.14 LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  It is acknowledged that each Party to this Agreement 

had the opportunity to be represented by counsel in the preparation of this Agreement 
and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the Party 
preparing same shall not apply due to the joint contribution of both Parties. 

 
7.15 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  Reports, surveys, plans, studies and other data 

provided in connection with this Agreement are and shall remain the property of TOWN 
whether or not the project for which they are made is completed.  TOWN hereby agrees 
to use C&C’s work product for its intended purposes. 

 
7.16 NO CONTINGENT FEES.  C&C warrants that it has not employed or retained any 

company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the C&C, to 
solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, 
company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for C&C, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon 
or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For the breach or violation of 
this provision, the TOWN shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without 
liability at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full 
amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration. 

 
7.17 BINDING AUTHORITY.  Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either 

Party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party 
with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
7.18 EXHIBITS. Each Exhibit referred to in this Agreement forms an essential part of this 

Agreement.  The exhibits if not physically attached should be treated as part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7.19 HEADINGS.  Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be 

considered on any interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

103

 
103 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 12 of 15 

7.20 ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event that either Party brings suit for enforcement of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorneys’ fees and court costs in 
addition to any other remedy afforded by law. 

 
7.21 AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS.  TOWN 

shall have the right to audit the books, records and accounts of C&C that are related to 
this Agreement.  C&C shall keep such book, records, and accounts as may be necessary 
in order to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement.  C&C shall 
preserve and maintain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and 
any other documents pertinent to his Agreement for the required retention period of the 
Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), if applicable, or, if the 
Florida Public Records Act is not applicable, for a minimum period of three (3) years 
after termination of this Agreement, unless C&C is notified in writing by the TOWN of 
the need to extend the retention period.  Such retention of such records and documents 
shall be at C&C’s expense.  C&C shall comply with inspection and reproduction 
obligations of Florida law relating to public records in its possession.  If any audit has 
been initiated an audit findings have not been resolved at the end of the retention period 
or three (3) years, whichever is longer, the books, records, and accounts shall be retained 
until resolution of the audit findings. If the Florida Public Records Act is determined by 
the TOWN to be applicable to C&C’s records, C&C shall comply with all requirements 
thereof; however, no confidentiality or non-disclosure requirement of either federal or 
state law shall be violated by C&C.  Any incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, 
records, and accounts shall be a basis for TOWN’S disallowance and recovery of any 
payment upon such entry. 

 
In addition, C&C shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of any successor companies 
and allow and successor companies to receive working papers relating to matters of 
continuing significance.   In addition, C&C shall provide a complete copy of all working 
papers to TOWN, prior to final payment, in accordance with this Agreement and the 
Schedule for C&C's services. 
 

7.22 PALM BEACH COUNTY OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL.  C&C is 
 aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to  
 investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this 
 Agreement, and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and testimony 
 from C&C and, any, if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors.  C&C 
 understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and consequences provided 
 by law, failure of C&C or, if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors to 
 fully cooperate with the Inspector General when requested will be deemed to be a breach 
 of this Agreement.  C&C shall be responsible for all costs incurred by it or the TOWN as 
 a result of any investigation by the Inspector General which results in an adverse 
 determination caused by C&C, and if applicable, subcontractors and lower tier 
 subcontractors. 
 
 

104

 
104 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 13 of 15 

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

105

 
105 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 14 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
between TOWN and C&C Loader Service, Inc., on the respective dates under each signature: 
TOWN, signing by and through its _____________________, authorized to execute same by 
Council action on the ____ day of _____________, 2013 and C&C Loader Service, Inc., signing 
by and through its _____________________, authorized to execute same by action on the ____ 
day of _____________, 2013. 
 
   
 Executed by TOWN this ____________ day of _______________, 2013 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
a Florida Municipal Corporation 

 
ATTEST: 

By _____________________________ 
David Browning 

 Mayor 
__________________________      

Town Clerk       
 
    
[TOWN SEAL]     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

By_____________________________ 
        Town Attorney 

 
 

 Executed by C&C LOADER SERVICE, INC. this ____________ day of 
_______________, 2013 
 
 

C&C LOADER SERVICE, INC., a State 
of Florida corporation 

ATTEST: 
 
By _____________________________ 
              
Title    _____________________________ 

__________________________      
Secretary  

 
  

106

 
106 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Page 15 of 15 

EXHIBIT A:   
 

TOWN ROADS LIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\AGMTS 2013\Vegetation & Mowing - C&C.docx 

107

 
107 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



10TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B 0.081

11TH LANE NORTH BLOCK F 0.351

11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.244

12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.197

131ST TERRACE NORTH BLOCK F 0.147

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (FOLSOM) 0.282

13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.166

140TH STREET NORTH CUT-THRU / SUNSPORT 0.100

145TH AVENUE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.457

147TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

147TH DRIVE NORTH BLOCK C 0.115

148TH TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.339

149TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK I 0.126

14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.257

152ND WAY NORTH BLOCK B 0.068

160TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.394

161ST TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 40E 2.014

17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.076

21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.126

22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F 0.292

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.248

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK E   (E ROAD) 0.156

22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.210

23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.189

24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.177

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.282

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (E ROAD) 0.194

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E   (WEST F) 0.250

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F   (EAST F) 0.406

25TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.136

27TH LANE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.141

30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (D ROAD) 0.132

34TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135

ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

1 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

108

 
108 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

35TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK D 0.127

41ST ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.068

42ND ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.153

42ND STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.234

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (GLOBAL) 0.194

43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (140TH) 0.394

44TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.235

8TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.319

APRIL DRIVE BLOCK C 0.164

BIDDIX ROAD BLOCK D 0.191

BRYAN ROAD BLOCK F 0.749

BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.244

CANAL MAINTENANCE RD T: 43S / R: 41E (40TH ST N) 1.462

(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.243

COMPTON ROAD BLOCK F 0.748

EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.501

EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.197

FERRIS LANE BLOCK A 0.194

FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.186

FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.188

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (B ROAD) 0.126

FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.135

FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.204

GLOBAL TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.519

GREAT DANE LANE BLOCK F 0.130

GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.489

HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.518

IAN TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.384

JEWEL LANE BLOCK B 0.103

KAZEE ROAD BLOCK G 0.432

KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.260

LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

2 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

109

 
109 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



ADDENDUM #2

Town Roads List

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.180

MARCELLA BOULEVARD BLOCK F 0.749

MARCH CIRCLE BLOCK F 0.174

MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.180

ORANGE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.075

PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.186

PERKINS DRIVE BLOCK F 0.336

PINEAPPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.434

QUAIL ROAD BLOCK F 0.135

RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.146

RAYMOND DRIVE BLOCK F 0.337

ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.229

SALLY'S ALLEY BLOCK B 0.244

SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.213

SHAMROCK DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK I  (WEST D) 0.177

SIXTH COURT NORTH BLOCK K (EAST D) 1.733

SNAIL TRAIL BLOCK C 0.244

TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.510

TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.100

TIMBERLANE PLACE BLOCK B 0.219

TRIPP ROAD BLOCK D 0.242

VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.136

WEST "B" ROAD BLOCK A 0.340

WEST "C" ROAD BLOCK B 0.623

WEST "D" ROAD BLOCK I   (SOUTH C.C.) 0.314

WEST 'D' ROAD BLOCK C   (NORTH C.C.) 0.388

WEST 'F' ROAD BLOCK E 0.198

WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.193

MONTHLY MILEAGE = 29.552

3 of 3
Replacement Pages for 
Bid Packet 11-13 of 27

Addendum #2
Created 02/10/2013

110

 
110 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

11. c.  RFQ 2013‐001 Professional Engineering Services – Ratification of Selected Respondents 

111

 
111 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:                 Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:          Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:           May 14, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:    Request For Qualifications RFQ No. 2013-001 Professional Engineering Services- 

Town Council Ratification of Selected Respondents    
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
During the last year it was discovered that the Town and its current Engineering vendor did not 
have a signed contract to provide engineering services. Further, the Town Management Staff 
recommended that due to future identified projects it would be necessary to engage several 
Engineering Consultants for Town assignments. Town Council authorized Town Management to 
proceed and procure professional engineering services. Town Management prepared and issued 
RFQ No. 2013-001 for professional engineering services that included: General Town 
Engineering Services; Traffic Engineering Services; Land Surveying Services; Environmental 
Engineering Services; and Civil Engineering Inspection Services. 
 
The RFQ was issued and noticed on the Town’s web site on February 1, 2013 and published in 
the Palm Beach Post on February 7 and February 12, 2013. The RFQ was also available at the 
Onvia website. The due date for respondents to submit their RFQ transmittals was March 22, 
2013 at 2:00 p.m. On March 22nd the Town received nine (9) transmittals for engineering 
services and one (1) transmittal for land surveying services. Attached is a copy of the submittal 
sheet by respondents to the RFQ. In accordance with Florida Statute 287.055, the “Consultants’ 
Competitive Negotiation Act” and to assist Town Management in the review of the RFQ 
respondents, a working group was convened to review the RFQ transmittals and serve as a 
Selection Committee for ranking and selection. The working group consisted of Stephen Yohe, 
District Administrator of the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, Jim Fleischmann, 
Town Planning Consultant, Dr. Bill Louda, a member of the Roadways, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenways Committee (RETGAC) and the Town Manager. 
 

112

 
112 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



The working group/selection committee met on April 30, 2013 to review the respondents and 
rank the Top three firms in each category. After further review, the Town Management Staff 
decided to roll in environmental engineering and civil engineering inspection services with the 
general town engineering services. 
 
The working group/selection committee selected Erdman & Anthony; Keshavarz & Associates; 
and Simmons & White, Inc. to give presentations for general town engineering services. For land 
surveying services, the committee selected A &B Engineering; Keshavarz & Associates; and 
Keith and Schnars.  For traffic engineering services, the committee chose Simmons & White, 
Inc.; Stanley Consultants; and Calvin Giordano & Associates.  
 
    
II. DISCUSSION 
 
On May 9, 2013 the working group/selection committee heard presentations from the 
aforementioned firms above. Upon completion of the presentations, the selection committee 
recommended the following: general town engineering – Keshavarz & Associates; land 
surveying services- A& B Engineering; and traffic engineering services – Simmons & White, 
Inc. Copies of the selected firms transmittals are attached to this agenda item. The Town Council 
may ratify the choices of the working group/selection committee or opt to entertain presentations 
from any of the firms.   
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

Dependent upon the volume of work awarded and projects undertaken 

 

IV. ATTACHMENTS 

Submittal Sheet of Respondents to the RFQ 

Correspondence to the Short Listed Firms with May 9, 2013 Schedule 

Selected Firms RFQ submittals ( Keshavarz & Associates; A & B Engineering and Simmons & 
White, Inc.). 

 

 
 
 
 
 

113

 
113 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 
V. REQUIRED ACTION 
 
Ratify the recommended firms by the working group/selection committee and authorize the    
Town Manager and Town Attorney to draft a contract and complete a competitive negotiation  
with the most qualified firm for Town Council Approval. 
 

114

 
114 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



General
Town Traffic Land Environmental Civil/Inspection

Vendor Engineering Engineering Surveying Engineering Services

Wantman Group Yes / / / /

Keith & Schnars Yes Yes Yes no Yes
A&B Engineering No No Yes No No
Keshavarz & Associates Yes No Yes No Yes
Stanley Consultants Yes No No No No
Erdman & Anthony Yes No No No No
Calvin Giordano & Associates Yes No No No No
Simmmons & White Yes Yes No No Yes
Chen Moore Yes / / / Yes
AMEC Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

RFQ 2013-001
Professional Engineering Services

March 22, 2013 - 2:00 PM

115

 
115 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



116

 
116 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



117

 
117 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



118

 
118 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



119

 
119 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. is a midsize engineering, surveying and consul-
tancy firm with a 25 year tenure in Palm Beach County. The firm's portfolio of al-
most 1000 projects include a varying array of project types and sizes for   public 
and private clients with a few executed for public/private partnerships. 
 
K&A's focus is "General Civil Engineering and Surveying" as needed by munici-
pal and private clients in both urban and rural settings. The firm's specialty and a 
predominant part of it's commissions are publicly owned roadways, stormwater 
and utilities (dry or wet) systems. Keshavarz & Associates, Inc.'s practice, culture, 
staff makeup, and targeted market categorically qualify the firm as a "local firm". 
 
Faced with the same task as your Town is, the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Town 
of Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA, City of 
West Palm Beach, City of West Palm Beach CRA, Northern Palm Beach County 
Improvement District, Loxahatchee River District, all have made the choice of  
selecting our firm to serve them in the capacity of their civil engineer and         
surveyor. While the following pages reflect our attempt to present you with our 
qualifications and the level of enthusiasm we feel relevant to being your chosen 
firm, we recognize and you probably agree that this type of vital decision cannot 
easily be made based on the "claims" of a consultant. It is for that reason that we 
strongly encourage you to speak to our clients and ask pointed questions about 
our ethics, level of commitment, sensitivity to their needs, technical ability, and 
quality of advocacy on their behalf. Please inquire whether we do in fact take 
ownership of their challenges, irrespective of the potential ramifications. Ask how 
we proceed when our clients' interests compete or conflict with one another. Ask 
if in the course of our service to them, we take the path of least resistance or go 
the extra mile. Ask if we design our projects with securing the "permits" as the 
primary objective or if we utilize creative thinking and push the conventional 
methodology used by our competitors to the side and dare to "create" systems and 
networks that are easy to build and once built, easy to maintain. We assure you 
that they will respond. They always do. That is how we have managed to have a 
thriving practice in the face of competitors who are massive, out of town, out of 
state and in some cases foreign firms with oversized marketing budgets. 
  
 

11

120

 
120 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

We are overwhelmingly confident that our qualifications will match your needs in 
relation to the three categories we are pursuing within this RFQ, being:   
 
A - General Town Engineering Services 
 
C - Land Surveying Services 
 
E - Civil Engineering Inspection Services, 
 
We are also confident that our current engagements, some of which are winding 
down, will not be a hindrance in placing the Town at the level of a "top tier" client 
and make your staff feel that they are our only client. 
 
In closing, we truly appreciate the opportunity to begin a professional relationship 
with you for years to come so that, together, we can make another community in 
Palm Beach County a better, more sensible and desirable place to live. 
 
I, Maziar Keshavarz, P.E. President and Owner of Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. 
hereby present you with a personal commitment and accept full responsibility for 
myself, our staff, and our firm to serve you ethically, honestly, efficiently, and 
competently should you choose to honor us with the responsibility of your civil 
engineering and surveying interests. 
 
 
Thank you.  

22

121

 
121 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

RESPONDENT’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

K&A’s working culture of strength through diversity in almost every sense of the term is 
evident in our staff roster.  Experienced in many aspects of the civil engineering indus-
try, and varied in seniority, we use our multiplicity of approaches, styles, backgrounds, 
and skills to consider engineering projects comprehensively within a collaborative work-
ing environment.  By viewing the overall context of a project’s collective objective and 
individual challenges, an intimate understanding and sense of responsibility is developed 
for the communities we work hard to improve. The staff in any municipality or agency 
in Palm Beach County who deal with our firm and our industry will undoubtedly bear 
witness to this fact.  We value and reward performance and as such, have accumulated 
top tier personnel who contribute to this united approach to engineering and are more 
than willing and able to attend to client’s needs, and that of our community. 
 
An increasing number of our community's youth, whose primary schooling in Palm 
Beach County's strong and diverse education system resulted in their admission to our 
state's excellent public and private university system, are returning to their home com-
munity upon concluding their university tenure. This welcomed change speaks volumes 
for the strength of our community and its' economy, as well as our children's commit-
ment to contributing towards their home as young professionals. Keshavarz & Associ-
ates places importance on drawing from and supporting professionals of all ages who 
represent this positive trend noticed over the past several years.  Our entire Engineering 
department are residents of Palm Beach County who have embodied this very commit-
ment, and continue to do so.  
 
K&A’s staff roster and their tenure with the firm should provide clear evidence of our 
firm’s culture of consistency.  Our staff are our most vital asset. We are not a firm 
with a revolving door.  Our staff’s upward mobility is internal to the firm and is mani-
fested in their increased efficiency, knowledge and compensation. It should be noted that 
K&A has an outstanding track record in meeting project deadlines and budgets utilizing 
this staff structure and leadership model. 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

KEY PERSONNEL 

33

122

 
122 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

RESPONDENT’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

Amongst the three professional registered engineers and two professional land surveyors, the most 
qualified individual(s) will be selected to lead any project assigned by the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves based on the specific task at hand.  
 
Location: 
As a truly “local” firm, we perform 100% of our work within Palm Beach County.  We have been certi-
fied as a “Minority Business Enterprise” since 1993, and are currently qualified as a “Small  Business 
Enterprise” with Palm Beach County, the City of West Palm Beach, South Florida Water Management 
District and the School District of Palm Beach County. 
 
We have one office, in West Palm Beach, Florida. All of the work associated with this contract will be 
performed at this location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
711 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY, SUITE 201 

WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33401 
561-689-8600 (PHONE) 

561-689-7476 (FAX) 
 

 

K&A Staff consists of the following: Total Experience PBC Experience K&A Experience 

Maziar Keshavarz , P.E., Principal in Charge 32 32 26 

Randy S. Wertepny, P.E., Project Manager 7 7 7 

Allen T. Green III, P.E., Project Manager 13 13 2 

Scott F. Bryson, P.S.M., Survey Director 29 29 7 

James C. Dutton, P.S.M., Senior Surveyor/Crew Chief 30 30 13 

Ralph D. Davis, III, Construction Project Manager 18 18 14 

Amir J. Keshavarz, E.I., Project Engineer 0.5 0.5 0.5 

Deborah L. Fulgenzi, Contract Administrator 32 32 22 

Joan P. Sopczak, Regulatory Liaison 34 12 12 

Raymond Busutil, Senior CAD Technician 36 36 6 

Jack Forsythe, Field Technician 36 36 8 

Karen K. Dutton, Instrument Technician 24 24 2 

K
E

Y
 P

E
R

S
O

N
N

E
L

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

KEY PERSONNEL 

44

123

 
123 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

RESPONDENT’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

Maziar Keshavarz, P.E.:  Maziar will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
projects  as Principal in Charge.  A seasoned engineer with all of his 32 year engineering  
career in Palm Beach County, Maziar brings a wealth of experience and leadership qualities to 
K&A’s daily engagements.  As a resident of Palm Beach County for over 32 years, Maziar has 
remained steadily engaged to positively impact the county in social, political, economic and of 
course technical matters. His continual community involvement and strong public stance on 
upholding strict ethical business standards has been a meaningful contribution to the county.  

Maziar has been personally involved with every project undertaken by the firm, totaling over 
900 now.  He has successfully led many well known and important project such as: Scripps Re-
search Institute, Palm Beach County Convention Center, Port of Palm Beach Cruise Terminal.   

Maziar’s role will be that of leadership for the overall relationship between the Town and 
K&A. He will be the lead on matters requiring advocacy with adjacent or other municipalities 
or agencies while ensuring that K&A’s commitments are met and exceeded. 
 
Randy Wertepny, P.E.: Randy will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
General Engineering and Construction Engineering Inspection Services as a Project Man-
ager. As a life-long resident of Palm Beach County, Randy enjoyed the lifestyle of growing up 
in Loxahatchee, becoming an Eagle Scout as a young man and later followed in his father’s 
footsteps as a Professional Civil Engineer, eager to be an integral participant in the sustainable 
growth of his birthplace. He now enjoys family life in Royal Palm with his wife and son, ex-
periencing the satisfaction of a professional and personal life that has come full-circle. 

Randy’s role will be that of technical directorship of all tasks assigned to K&A.  He will be in 
charge of getting the work done by himself and others in the firm.  Randy was selected for this 
role due to his keen interest and ability in comprehensive municipal engineering services and 
his proven track record on current and previous firm assignments.  Aside from municipal engi-
neering at the street level, Randy has performed macro level “Stormwater Relief” models and 
analysis for areas as large as 7 square miles of central Palm Beach County. 
 
Allen T. Green, III, P.E.: Allen will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
General Engineering and Construction Engineering Inspection Services as a Project Man-
ager. Also a life-long resident of Palm Beach County, Allen has a long record of academic suc-
cess which has led to an equally successful technical career.  Allen is an engineer with focused 
experience on municipal engineering and it’s unique nuances. He is a LEED AP and a highly 
skilled Construction Engineering Inspector who is always actively looking to add to his lengthy 
docket of uniquely complicated design and construction projects  
successfully completed within the county.  With a keen eye to  
resolve complex field issues through logical and simplified solutions,  
he adds great depth to K&A’s abilities to represent our client’s  
interests in the field.  
 
 

KEY PERSONNEL 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

55

124

 
124 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

RESPONDENT’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

Scott F. Bryson, P.S.M.: Scott will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee Groves Land 
Surveying Services as the Director of Surveying Services.   Scott’s experience in land sur-
veying is focused on the needs of a civil engineering firm engaged in “Municipal Civil Engi-
neering”.  He and his staff are trained to search for and record field conditions that will be im-
portant and necessary for our engineers to use during their design decision making process.  
Scott also performs all of the public records research, and prepares easement documents for use 
by various entities.  During the construction phase, Scott and his staff have shown superb accu-
racy and competency in working with the selected contractors during production of as-built 
drawings. Scott’s diverse career qualifies him to assist the Town in any of it’s survey needs. 
 
James (Chris) Dutton, P.S.M.: Chris will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves Land Surveying Services as the Senior Surveyor and Crew Chief.  Chris, a 13 year 
veteran of K&A and resident of the Acreage, brings a wealth of hands on experience to our 
field operations.  Assigning an experienced Professional Surveyor and Mapper to head and en-
gage in field surveying activities has proven to be a wise choice for K&A over the years.  Chris 
will be responsible for all field construction layout services, in addition to all GPS field work. 
Chris will head and engage in every one of K&A’s projects for the Town. 
 
Ralph D. Davis, III: Ralph will be involved with all Town of Loxahatchee Groves General 
Engineering and Construction Engineering Inspection Services as Construction Project 
Manager.  Ralph Davis’ role as the director of K&A’s Construction Phase Services (CPS) is 
vital to the overall success of our assignments.  Ralph’s close coordination with K&A’s engi-
neers in the office and the efficient method of implementing quick and logical solutions to en-
countered field conditions during construction is a practice that will be brought to our projects 
with the Town. 
 
Ralph, a 13 year veteran of K&A has participated in CPS on many complex K&A projects such 
as Scripps Research Institute, Donald Ross Road 6-Laning, Indian Creek Parkway Roadway 
Improvements, PBSO’s K-9 Facilities Drainage Improvements, Belvedere Homes Neighbor-
hood Redevelopment, and others.  Ralph’s role will be to participate in and direct all CPS ac-
tivities on the Town’s projects including liaison and coordination between the Town, K&A, 
contractors, regulating agencies and the public. 
 

 

KEY PERSONNEL 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

66

125

 
125 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

  Education 

      Registrations 

        Professional 
     Organizations 

& Affiliations 
     (past and present) 

MAZIAR KESHAVARZ, P.E. 
Principal in Charge 

Maziar Keshavarz is a Registered Civil Engineer with in depth experience in 
storm water management, water, wastewater and roadway design and permit-
ting for private as well as public projects.  Maziar's involvement with his pro-
fession began in 1981 and has taken him through a complete cycle of progres-
sion from hands on design to management.  He is President of Keshavarz & 
Associates, Inc. which he founded in 1987 and, in addition to his administra-
tive duties, is involved with the progress of every project undertaken by the 
firm.   

While engaged in all aspects of municipal and private industry projects of the 
firm, Maziar’s strong interest in the socio/economic aspects of Civil Engi-
neering has led to his focus on the “Redevelopment/retrofit” sector.  His     
belief that economic improvement in urban areas cannot occur without the 
presence of proper infrastructure has resulted in the firm becoming a leader in 
that sector in Palm Beach County (PBC).  Maziar, who moved to PBC in 
1981, has accumulated experience entirely in the South Florida region. 

        Professional 
          Experience 

USA - Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, Florida Institute of  
Technology; Melbourne, Florida, 1981 
United Kingdom - General Certificate of Education, Advanced "A" Level Pure 
Mathematics, South Shields Marine & Technical College; South  Shields, England, 
1976 

Professional Engineer, State of Florida, 1986 
Professional Engineer, U.S.Virgin Islands, 1992 
Building Contractor, State of Florida, 1986 

Executive Committee Member, Economic Council of Palm Beach County, Inc. 
Vice President, Board of Directors, Community Land Trust of Palm Beach County, Inc. 
Founding Member, PBC Regulatory Climate Task Force 
Advisory Committee Member, Eco-Art South Florida 
National Society of Professional Engineers 
Florida Engineering Society 
Member, PBC M/WBE Professional Services Subcommittee  
Academic Advisory Committee, New England Institute of Technology 
Board Member, Palm Beach County Code Enforcement 
Panel of Arbitrators, American Arbitration Association 

1987 - Present: President, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
1983 - 1987: Project Manager/Associate, WEYANT & ASSOCIATES, INC.,  
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, PLANNERS & SURVEYORS 
1981 - 1983: Design Engineer, ROBERT E. OWEN & ASSOCIATES, INC., 
ENGINEERS, PLANNERS & SURVEYORS 

7

126

 
126 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

Florida Engineering Society 
American Society of Civil Engineers 
Boy Scouts of America 
Toastmasters 
Grassy Waters Preserve 

  Education 

      Registrations 

RANDY S. WERTEPNY, P.E. 
Project Manager 

        Professional 
        Experience 

Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, University of Florida 2005 
Successfully completed courses in ICPR (Interconnected Channel and Pond 
Routing),  
Civil 3D 2008 Essentials, and Uniform Mitigation Assessment    Methods 

Professional Engineer, State of Florida, 2011 
Engineer Intern, State of Florida, 2008 

2006 - Present: Project Engineer, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Summer 2004: Internship with MOCK ROOS & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Randy Wertepny was carefully selected from a large pool of civil engineer-
ing graduates in 2006 as a part of Keshavarz & Associate’s practice of seek-
ing out well-balanced and achieved young engineering professionals who are 
drawn towards returning to, and improving upon their life-long home here in 
Palm Beach County.  He has been mentored by all licensed professionals in 
the firm in their respective fields of specialties.  He rapidly demonstrated his 
ability to perform various engineering tasks to a high degree of technical ex-
pertise.  Randy is well versed with various fluids modeling softwares and 
routinely analyzes pipe networks for the firm’s diverse projects.  Randy has 
been instrumental in designing a number of wastewater pumping stations and 
is currently engaged with designing a vacuum wastewater system.  Several of 
the firm’s “flood relief” projects have been undertaken by Randy to include 
modeling for the overall Stub Canal within the Westgate area to ensure that 
the necessary improvements to the canal would not adversely impact the sur-
rounding communities, preparation of an intricate ICPR model for the L2 and 
L2B Canals for Palm Beach County, which included a FEMA Grant study, 
and the design of a pump station to accommodate a 400 acre portion of West-
gate/Belvedere Homes communities. 

        Professional 
    Organizations 
               &Affiliations 

8

127

 
127 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

  Education 

      Registrations 

ALLEN T. GREEN III, P.E., LEED AP 
Project Manager 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, Florida International University 
2002 (Dean’s List) 
Electrical / Mechanical Engineer Majors, Florida Atlantic University 1999 
Associate of Arts Engineering Degree, Palm Beach Community College, 
1998 (Dean’s List) 

Professional Engineer, State of Florida, 2008, #67401 
LEED Accredited Professional, 2009 
Qualified Storm Water Management Inspector, 2005 

Allen T. Green, III, P.E. has extensive civil engineering experience in pub-
lic and private sectors, all in Palm Beach County.  A native of Palm Beach 
County, Allen is an excellent example of the committed Professional Engi-
neers that make up Keshavarz & Associates, and who make contributing to 
where they were born and raised a priority in their career. He has over 13 
years of experience directly related to infrastructure improvement projects 
throughout the county.  Allen’s focus has been and remains on design and 
construction of facilities and systems within the “Built Environment”.  Al-
len is a capable professional both from the technical as well as the proce-
dural standpoints.  Having engaged in over one hundred projects, Allen 
joined Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. in July 2011 and had the unique oppor-
tunity to work alongside his father, Allen T. Green, Jr., P.E., a recently    
retired firm Associate with a 24 year tenure.  

2011 - Present: Project Engineer, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
1999 - 2010: Project Manager, ENGENUITY GROUP, INC. 

American Society of Civil Engineers 
Boy Scouts of America 
 

        Professional 
     Organizations 
               &Affiliations 

9

128

 
128 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

  Education 

      Registrations 

SCOTT F. BRYSON, P.S.M. 
Survey Director 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Studies in Business and Land Surveying, 1984-99, Palm Beach Commu-
nity College and Indian River Community College 

Professional Land Surveyor, State of Florida, 2000 

Scott Bryson has extensive experience in all aspects of Land and Construc-
tion Surveying.  He began his career in 1984 and since then, has acquired 
experience in many facets of surveying including Boundary, Construction 
Layout, Control, Hydrographic, Mean High Water Line, Global Positioning 
Systems, Quantity, Right-of-Way, Record Drawings, Easements, Specific 
Purpose and Topographic Surveys.  His experience includes determination 
of complex boundary locations, performance of ALTA/ACSM Surveys, 
Platting, comprehensive Route and Site Topographic Surveys for utiliza-
tion by design professionals. His keen sense of detail and precision has led 
to his success and recognition by the community as a leader in his field of 
practice. 

 2006 - Present: Vice President of Survey Division, KESHAVARZ &  
 ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 2001 - 2006: Land Surveyor, LIDBERG LAND SURVEYING, INC. 
 2000 - 2001: Land Surveyor, DONALD D. DANIELS, INC. 
 1999 - 2000: Land Surveyor, PCL CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 1994 - 1999: Crew Chief, LIDBERG LAND SURVEYING, INC. 
 1984 - 1986: Instrument Operator, ROBERT E. OWEN AND  
 ASSOCIATES, INC. 

10

129

 
129 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

  Education 

      Registrations 

JAMES C. DUTTON, P.S.M. 
Senior Surveyor / Crew Chief 

        Professional 
          Experience 

 Studied Business and Land Surveying – Palm Beach Community College 

 Professional Land Surveyor, State of Florida, 1998 

James “Chris” Dutton has been in the surveying industry for nearly 35 
years, with experience in New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Maryland 
and Florida, gathering knowledge in all aspects of surveying.  His experi-
ence is in the performance of Boundary, Topographic, Route Surveys, 
Construction Layout and As-Builts and establishing Mean High Water 
Lines.  Chris has been in responsible charge of setting GPS control stations 
and collecting GPS data for the firm.  Notable projects include field data 
acquisition on over 150 projects for the firm including 40 roadway projects 
and a survey of the Jupiter Inlet for tidal studies and dredging operations.  
He prepared numerous Boundary Surveys for the Port of Palm Beach for 
the leased parcels as well as As-Builts and Construction Layout of an as-
phalt transfer main.  Chris’s office duties include field crew management, 
project management, bid proposals and negotiations as well as computer 
analysis and calculations utilizing AutoCAD, HASP, DigiCAD and Fore-
sight programs. 

2006-Present: Professional Surveyor/Crew Chief, KESHAVARZ &  
ASSOCIATES, INC. 
1997-2006: President, APEX LAND SURVEYING, INC. 
1994-1997:  Party Chief, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

11

130

 
130 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

RALPH D. DAVIS, III 
Construction Project Manager 

  Education Associate of Arts, Pre-Engineering, 1998 
Palm Beach Community College 
Indian River Community College 
Certified as a Qualified Inspector for DEP Stormwater, Erosion & Sedi-
mentation Control (NPDES) 

Ralph Davis has eighteen years of experience directly related to the Land 
Surveying and Civil Engineering fields.  Ralph, with over thirteen years of 
tenure with Keshavarz & Associates, has spent the past nine in the 
“Construction Administration” part of our practice.  His previous exposure 
to the design side of civil engineering has been an excellent asset and has 
augmented his ability to serve the firm and the client’s long-term interests 
in the field, where design assumptions meet the realities of field conditions. 
 
For twelve years, Ralph has dealt with extensive computer-aided drafting 
operations, utilizing AutoCAD (Releases 9 – 2007), InfoCAD 3.5-5.1, 
SoftDesk, ECA and Eaglepoint software.  As the GIS Mapping Supervisor, 
he completed the GIS Mapping System at Okeechobee County, including 
data-basing, cadastral mapping and implemented a base map oriented en-
hanced 911 system.   
 
Ralph is the Director of the “Construction Phase Services” department at 
Keshavarz & Associates.  In that capacity, Ralph has performed services on 
notable projects such as Donald Ross Road and Indian Creek Parkway 
Roadway Improvements, Ninth Street Streetscape in West Palm Beach, 
Port of Palm Beach Cruise Terminal, Palm Beach County Convention Cen-
ter and The Scripps Research Institute Headquarters. 

        Professional 
          Experience 

 2000-Present: Construction Project Manager, KESHAVARZ &  
 ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 1997-2000: GIS Mapping Supervisor, OKEECHOBEE COUNTY 
 1995-1996: Party Chief/Office Manager, ALMOND SURVEYING, INC. 
 1994-1995: Party Chief, BILL KITCHEN LAND SURVEYING, INC. 
 1993-1994:  Party Chief, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

12

131

 
131 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

  Education 

      Registrations 

AMIR J. KESHAVARZ, E.I. 
Project Engineer 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science: Pre-Law studies, University of Florida 2009 
Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, University of Florida 2012 (Dean’s List) 

Engineer Intern, State of Florida, 2012 

2013 - Present: Project Engineer, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Summer 2012: Engineer Intern, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Summer 2007: Survey Crew, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
Summer 2005: Survey Crew, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC.  

Amir Keshavarz, E.I., is a recent graduate from The University of Florida's 
"College of Civil Engineering" and had previously obtained a Bachelor of 
Arts in "Political Science" in 2009. Born and raised in Palm Beach County, 
Amir's varying interest in learning, evidenced by his schooling, also extends 
into his practical experience. Prior to securing his CE degree in 2012, he    
interned at Keshavarz & Associates in various positions ranging from         
engineering design tasks, field observation, land surveying field and office 
activities and computer aided design and analysis. Amir's participation in 
community and business activities has resulted in a separate, vitally important 
parallel learning process than that of his engineering interests, which include 
Hydraulics, Hydrology, storm water management, public and private utilities, 
Eco Art, retrofit and renewable energy all of which he has and continues to 
have, meaningful experience with.  
 

        Professional 
     Organizations 
               &Affiliations 

American Society of Civil Engineers 
Abacai Charitable Foundation 

13

132

 
132 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

 1989-Present: Administrator, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 1986-1989: Bookkeeper, LEWIS,VEGOSEN & ROSENBACH, PA 
 1981-1986: Accounting Clerk, GENERAL MOTORS ACCEPTANCE 
 CORPORATION 
 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Florida Notary Public, 1990 to Present       Registrations 

Deborah Fulgenzi has acquired an in depth knowledge of the engineering ad-
ministration field during her long tenure at Keshavarz & Associates.  She joined 
K&A in 1989 and has been an integral part of the successful growth of the firm 
since then.  In a highly centralized role of “Administrator”, she is in complete 
charge of contract management from a fiscal standpoint.  She provides the vital 
link between the technical production and client expectations / experience be-
yond the design phase execution.  She, in concert with Project Managers, moni-
tors deliverables, schedules, design budgets and performs all project accounting 
services. 

Accounting Studies, Palm Beach Community College, 1981-1982 
 

  Education 

DEBORAH L. FULGENZI 
Contract Administrator 

14

133

 
133 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Joan Sopczak joined Keshavarz & Associates in 2001, and is engaged with every 
single project undertaken by the firm in responsibilities ranging from communi-
cation, coordination, planning, data exchange and implementation of all process 
oriented tasks.  In particular, Joan is in charge of the “Regulatory Approval”  
permit package submittals and follow up on all K&A projects.  Joan, in close 
coordination with project professionals, prepares and files the required documen-
tation for various approval processes.  She continues by closely monitoring the 
response time by the reviewing agencies and by issuing weekly reminder charts 
to the leadership and staff at K&A, keeping the important process of permit    
approvals dynamically active. 
 
Joan’s personal relationships with pertinent regulating and servicing entities 
across Palm Beach County have produced tangible and proven results for the 
firm. 

Associate in Science/Executive Secretary, Miami Dade Community College, 
1980 

  Education 

JOAN SOPCZAK 
Regulatory Liaison/Administrative Assistant 

 2001-Present: Regulatory Liaison / Administrative Assistant,  
 KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 1996-2001: Assistant Office Manager, TRANSBOND (MINOLTA) 
 1984-1990: Sales Coordinator, PANASONIC 
 1979-1984: Manager/Customer Service, PARBEL (LANCOME’) 

15

134

 
134 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Raymond A. Busutil, Jr. (“Ray”) possesses over 37 years of experience in all 
phases of Land Survey Drafting, including but not limited to Subdivision Plat-
ting, Right-of-Way Control Maps, Boundary Surveys, Topographic Surveys, 
ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys, Specific Purpose Surveys, Road Construc-
tion Surveys, Condominium Documentation, Phasing and Unit Designation 
Plans, Vegetation and Tree Location Surveys, Cross Sections Mortgage Sur-
veys and Site Plan Preparation.   
 
Ray also has extensive experience in preparing construction drawings for engi-
neering design, including cover sheets, detail sheets, construction control 
sheets, plan and profile sheets, paving, grading and drainage plans, water and 
sewer plans and digital terrain modeling (DTM).  He is proficient in AutoDesk 
Land Desktop 2007, Civil 3D, AutoCAD, Eagle Point, Legal Aid, Microstation 
and Geopak.  He is familiar with the abandonment procedures in Palm Beach 
County, and in handling the processing of plats in many of Palm Beach 
County’s (and its municipalities’) building, planning and zoning departments.   

Certificate of Completion 1,491 hrs of training in drafting, North Technical 
Education Center 
AutoCAD Training & Applications, Palm Beach Community College 
Certificate of Completion, AutoDesk Land Desktop, CADD Centers of Flor-
ida 
Certificates in “Moving to Microstation”, “V8 User Update”, “GEOPAK 
Survey”, Moderntech/Bentley Institute 

  Education 

RAYMOND A. BUSUTIL, JR. 
Senior CAD Technician 

 2007-Present: Senior CADD Technician, KESHAVARZ &  
 ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 2005-2007: Senior Survey Technician, WANTMAN GROUP, INC. 
 1985-2005: Building Services Supervisor/CADD Technician,  
 LANDMARK SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. 
 1983-1984: Draftsman, DONALD D. DANIELS 
 1979-1983: Draftsman, ROBERT E. OWEN & ASSOCIATES 

16

135

 
135 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

711 N. Dixie Highway, Suite 201 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 

711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com 

        Professional 
          Experience 

Karen Dutton was a career veteran with over 29 years of service with the 
powerhouse corporation of Adelphia / Comcast / Xfinity, however fell victim 
to the economic crisis in 2011.  Having worked alongside her husband (Chris 
Dutton, PSM, K&A’s Senior Surveyor and Crew Chief) periodically for over 
ten years, Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. was pleased to have her join our 
forces on a full time basis when her position at Comcast was terminated.  
Karen’s work ethic and attention to detail has proven invaluable during both 
the learning process and practice of field surveying under the supervision of 
our professional surveyors.  She has proven to not only be a competent instru-
ment technician, but an effective organizer for the files associated with data 
collected in the field. Her desire to meaningfully contribute to Keshavarz & 
Associates, not just in surveying but in any way she can, further bolsters our 
overall work culture of success by going above and beyond expectations. 

Completed courses at North Tech for Business English and Writing 
 

  Education 

KAREN K. DUTTON 
Instrument  Technician 

 2011-Present: Instrument Person, KESHAVARZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 2004-2011: Facilities Manager / Fleet Operations Manager /  
 Special Projects, ADELPHIA / COMCAST CABLE 
 1999-2004: High Speed Data Manager / Special Projects, ADELPHIA 
 1988-1999: Marketing Assistant / Marketing Manager, ADELPHIA 

17

136

 
136 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency 
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 215 

West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
Contact: Elizee Michel, Director 

(561) 640-8181 
 

District Engineer, Continuing Civil Engineering/Surveying Services, Water Management, 
Utilities Master Planning, Palm Beach County, Florida 
 
SCOPE: Since 2000, K&A has been engaged with the redevelopment of this 1400 acre CRA 
inhabited by over 9,000 people in central Palm Beach County.  In 2003, we were selected as 
the CRA Consulting Engineer and have since played a central role in advancing it’s inter-
ests including participation in authoring the “Community Redevelopment Plan” (CRP) 
and executing a myriad of projects towards meeting the vision of the “CRP”.  K&A has 
assisted the CRA to secure over $11M of State and Federal grants over the past 7 years. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Redevelopment Plan approved by Palm Beach County in 2005  
 

The firm is currently  engaged with a number of community, roadway and infrastructure 
projects throughout the CRA.  

1819

137

 
137 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

 Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency 
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 215 

West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
Contact: Elizee Michele, Director 

(561) 640-8181 
 
North Westgate Central Community Lake/Babbling Brook, Palm Beach County, Florida 
 
The Westgate Community was one of the first developments within suburban West Palm 
Beach, dating back to the 1940’s.  Throughout the years other developments were constructed 
around this area, each building up their sites higher and higher.  Eventually, the Westgate Com-
munity became the “bottom of the bowl”; the lowest developed site within Central Palm Beach 
County.   
 
SCOPE: Recognizing the need for a centralized community lake in north Westgate area, in 
2006 K&A began identifying the most suitable area and the needed properties within that area 
for construction of the lake.  While the CRA staff were negotiating with the property own-
ers, K&A began the process of preparing technical backup documents for a grant applica-
tion to secure the funds for land acquisition.  K&A was then commissioned in 2008 to pro-
vide engineering and surveying services associated with the subject project.  Following receipt 
of a Florida Department of Emergency Management (DEM) grant by the CRA, the se-
lected properties were acquired and the project began to materialize.   
 
Our services included a feasibility study to determine the level of protection created by the lake,       
together with improvements to other storm water components in the CRA area which are re-
lated or connected to the subject lake.  Upon approval by the federal government, construction 
plans, details and specifications were prepared for construction of the improvements outlined 
therein. 
 
K&A took this opportunity to go above and beyond the standard requirements of this project to 
solely provide stormwater attenuation.  This lake was designed, specifically, to preserve the 
existing native vegetation, maximize stormwater attenuation and provide an environmen-
tally sustainable amenity for the community. Working closely with an Eco-Artist and 
Landscape Architect, K&A was able to provide an island that has become a bird sanctu-
ary within the lake, surrounded by wetland plantings, ultimately providing an educational 
and recreation component to this project and to the community. 

1920

138

 
138 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

North Westgate Central Community Lake/Babbling Brook - CONTINUED 
 
 
 
K&A, through collaboration with the Eco-Artist and Landscape Architect, added an additional 
feature to the development of this project.  In lieu of a conventional fountain to provide aeration 
to the lake, we utilized a rather different approach that serves a substantially larger purpose for 
the lake in regards to water quality treatment.  
 
An irrigation system has been designed to provide irrigation for the surrounding community 
from the surface water collected and stored within the lake.  We have utilized the irrigation 
system to pump the surface water into an adjacent dry detention area.  Through use of 
pumped irrigation water, together with creating a vertical slope across the length of this 
dry detention area, we have managed to create a “babbling brook” made exclusively from 
recycled concrete rubble and slabs.  This amenity serves a dual purpose of bringing sound 
and vision of water to the community, while cleansing it at the same time. 
 
This project's construction was successfully completed in March 2013. 
 
REGULATING/COORDINATING AGENCIES: Palm Beach County, SFWMD, LWDD, 
FDEM, US ARMY CORPS, ERM, FPL, ATT, Cable and Gas companies. 
 
CONSTRUCTION COST: $1.1 M          PROJECT MANAGERS:  Maziar Keshavarz, P.E. 
                Randy S. Wertepny, PE 

2021

139

 
139 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency 
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 215 

West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
Contact: Elizee Michel, Director 

(561) 640-8181 
 

 L-2 and L-2B Canals Improvements and Linear Park  Partially funded by Federal Grants 
 
SCOPE:  LWDD’s L-2 Canal bisects the CRA’s lands with an east/west orientation.  As such, 
during the creation of CRA’s CIP, it was determined that this canal offers a unique opportunity 
as an amenity for the community, as well as a vital drainage component.  K&A assisted the 
CRA in identifying properties to be purchased for addition to the existing canal right-of-way 
towards the goals of the CIP to create a Linear Park along this canal.  Upon acquisition of the 
subject properties, a comprehensive effort began including negotiations with LWDD and design 
of a cross section that satisfied the recreational as well as flood relief needs of the community.  
As the CRA’s Consulting Engineer, our services include preparation of grant studies, assistance 
on securing HMGP Grants, surveying, hydraulic/hydrologic analysis/modeling for 1300 LF of 
canals, preparation of construction documents, permitting and construction administration.  
K&A successfully negotiated “Shared Maintenance Agreement” arrangements with 
LWDD.  Under this agreement, a first of it’s kind in the history of LWDD, one side of 
LWDD’s L-2 Canal will be maintained by the CRA.  This arrangement allowed the CRA 
to design and furnish their side of the canal with facilities conducive to recreational public 
use rather than utilizing the canal right-of-way strictly for storm water management pur-
poses.   
 
REGULATING/COORDINATING 
AGENCIES:  Palm Beach County, LWDD, 
SFWMD, FEMA, FDEM.  
 
CONSTRUCTION COST: $765K 
 
PROJECT MANAGERS:  
Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
Randy S. Wertepny, PE  

2122

140

 
140 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency 
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 215 

West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
Contact: Elizee Michel, Director 

(561) 640-8181 
 
L-2 Canal Pump Station  / Lakeside Mobile Home Park Partially funded by Federal Grants 
 
SCOPE:  Upon assisting the CRA to secure a $4M grant from FEMA in 2007, we were se-
lected by Palm Beach County in 2008, executing the project on behalf of the CRA, to lead a 
team of professionals in providing services to mitigate the flooding in the lowest area of C-51 
Basin, comprising 480 acres within the CRA.   
 
Services include preparation of grant studies and assistance in securing Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program “HMGP” grants, surveying, hydraulic/hydrologic analysis/ modeling, leading 
role in the design of a 130,000 GPM pump station, permitting and construction administration. 
 
REGULATING/COORDINATING AGENCIES:  Palm Beach County, LWDD, SFWMD, 
FEMA, FPL, ATT, US Army Corps of Engineers, FDEP, Florida Dept of Emergency Manage-
ment (FDEM).   
 
CONSTRUCTION COST: $3.7M 
 
PROJECT MANAGERS:  
Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
Randy S. Wertepny, PE  

2223

141

 
141 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

City of Palm Beach Gardens 
10500 N. Military Trail 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
Contact:  Todd Engle, P.E., City Engineer 

(561) 804-7012 
 
 
Continuing Contract for “Civil Engineering”, “Transportation Engineering” and  
“Land Surveying”, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 
 

In 2009, our experience and reputation resulted in our selection as Consulting Civil Engineer 
(ranked 2nd out of 39 firms), Land Surveyor (ranked 1st out of 24 firms) and Transportation En-
gineer (ranked 6th out of 30 firms) by the City of Palm Beach Gardens for 3 year continuing 
contracts.   

SCOPE:  Part of the contract requirements included expertise in preparation of Bound-
ary, Site, Topographic and Right-of-Way surveys, and Sketch and Legal Descriptions in 
conformance with the Florida Minimum Technical Standards.  Under this contract, we 
were commissioned to review Plat documents prepared and submitted by other consultants to 
the City for compliance including the Paloma PUD, Regions Bank, and The Oaks, PUD.  These 
services were completed in 2010 on time and within the specified budget. 

 

PROJECT MANAGER:   
Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
Scott F. Bryson, PSM 
 

 

2324

142

 
142 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Palm Beach County Engineering and Public Works 
2300 North Jog Road 

West Palm Beach, FL 33411 
Contact: Charles Rich, P.E. 

(561) 684-4000 
 
 
“General Civil Engineering” Continuing Contract, Countywide from 2000 to 2010 
 
Stub Canal and L-2 Canal Basin Analysis 
 
SCOPE:  Under our Annual General Civil Engineering Services Contract with Palm Beach 
County (PBC), we were commissioned in 2004 to perform a study of six major canals within a 
7 square mile area of East/Central PBC in order to provide PBC and SFWMD’s “Task Force” 
with information to make decisions on possible stormwater management improvements within 
this area.  This study’s objective was determination and evaluation of improvements of the 
community’s overall drainage conditions and more specifically, the role of improving the 
L2 and L2B canals within this community towards that goal.  As the lead consultant, our 
services included hydraulic and hydrologic analysis/modeling for a 5000 acre area in East Cen-
tral Palm Beach County; representation of Palm Beach County and Westgate/Belvedere Homes 
Community Redevelopment Agency interests at the task force level.  
 
REGULATING/COORDINATING AGENCIES: Palm Beach County, Palm Beach Interna-
tional Airport, WPB, Town of Glen Ridge, Town of Cloud Lake, LWDD, SFWMD 

 
CONSTRUCTION COST: $10M 
 
PROJECT MANAGERS: 
Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
Randy S. Wertepny, PE 

2425

143

 
143 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Palm Beach County Engineering and Public Works 
2300 North Jog Road 

West Palm Beach, FL 33411 
Contact: Charles Rich, P.E. 

(561) 684-4000 
 
 

“Municipal Special Taxing Units (MSTU)” Continuing Contract, Countywide from 1993 to 
2000 and from 2004 to 2007 

 
SCOPE: As Palm Beach County’s Consulting Engineers/Surveyors for the County’s MSTU 
Program, K&A has performed Street Improvements, Drainage and/or Utilities Retrofit of 
over 75 separate neighborhood streets comprising over 50 miles of roadway, 11 miles of 
watermain and 2.5 miles of reclaimed water.   Special  assessments to the residents in these 
projects necessitate heightened sensitivity to economical design of improvements and schedul-
ing; thus highly innovative engineering solutions.   
 
REGULATING/ COORDINATING AGENCIES: Palm Beach County, FDOT, Seacoast 
Utility Authority, Loxahatchee River District, City of West Palm Beach, Town of Jupiter and 
the City of Palm Beach Gardens.  
 
PROJECT MANAGERS: Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
      Scott F. Bryson, PSM 
 
    Existing Conditions at a Typical Project Prior to Improvements 
 
 

The following page 
represents a list of  
streets that were         
improved through 
K&A’s efforts: 

 
 
 

2526

144

 
144 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

198th Way (1,200 LF Roadway Improvement) 
3rd Place South & 81st Avenue (1,750 LF Roadway Improvement) 
60th Street North & ‘M’ Canal Crossing (8,150 LF) 
70th Avenue South & 102nd Place South (5,650 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Alberta, Alexander, Badger & Orlando (2,800 LF Roadway and 6,000 LF Watermain)  
Avondale Pines (14,100 LF Roadway Improvements) 
Cambridge Street & Clinton Boulevard (2,540 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Cinquez Park Area Improvements (3,700 LF Water and Sewer Improvements) 
Country Oaks Lane (1,250 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Diekhans Way (700 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Dillman Road (5,600 LF Roadway Improvement and Relocation of LWDD Canal) 
Dryden & Karen Street (1,100 LF Roadway Improvement and Watermain) 
Edward Road (1,200 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Foss Road (2,650 LF Roadway Improvement and 1,400 LF Watermain) 
Hibiscus & Old Limestone Roads (1,300 LF Watermain) 
Holly Drive (1,250 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Holly Lane (1,320 LF Roadway Improvement) 
McConnell, Kidd & 2nd Streets (1,240 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Melaleuca Trail (1,270 and 1,650 LF Watermain) 
Monmouth Estates (10,635 LF Roadway Improvement and 11,000 LF Watermain) 
New Palm Beach Heights (4,200 LF Watermain) 
Northside & Massachusetts Drives (2,850 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Orange Drive & Hibiscus Road  (2,000 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Orlando Avenue (1,600 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Paddock Park I (19,200 LF) and Paddock Park II (3.5 Miles Roadway Improvement) 
Pineway Drive (1,350 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Pinion Drive (5,400 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Pinto & Rodeo Drives (8,100 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Pioneer Road (2,585 LF Roadway Improvement and Outfall) 
Ranches Road (5,629 LF Roadway Improvement and Watermain) 
Ranchette Road (2,500 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Redding Road (1,300 LF Watermain) 
Ridge Grove (3,245 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Santa Fe Road (750 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Schall Circle (5,490 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Service Road & Juno Road (1,400 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Smith Drive (600 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Square Lake (17,000 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Sycamore Lane (12,900 LF Roadway Improvement and Turn Lane) 
Taylor Road (1,800 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Urquhart Street (1,600 LF Roadway Improvement)  
Venice Drive (650 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Wallen North & South (2,450 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Waterway Manor (3,000 LF Roadway Improvement) 
Wilson Road (3,200 LF Roadway Improvement) 

2627

145

 
145 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Palm Beach County Capital Improvements 
2633 Vista Parkway Floor 2nd 

West Palm Beach FL 33411-5604 
Contact: Dave Dolan 

(561) 233-0280 
 
PBSO K-9 Training Facility, Palm Beach County, Florida 
 
SCOPE:  In the early 1990’s, the PBSO Training Facility was constructed on an approxi-
mate 63.8 acre property in Palm Beach County. Drainage infrastructure was not included 
during this original construction, so subsequent expansions of this facility, together with the 
new construction of PBCWUD facilities adjacent this property interrupted the historical 
drainage patterns, resulting in localized flooding of the parking lot during even moderate 
rainfall events.  K&A were commissioned in 2010 under our Continuing Contract with 
Palm Beach County for “General Civil Engineering” to investigate alternative solu-
tions, and subsequently prepared the construction plans, details and specifications to 
implement the improvements.   

REGULATING/COORDINATING AGENCIES: Palm Beach County, SFWMD, 
PBCWUD, LWDD and various utility providers.  

This project’s construction was completed in 2010.  

CONSTRUCTION COST: 75K 

PROJECT MANAGERS: 
Randy S. Wertepny, PE 
Ralph D. Davis, III 

2728

146

 
146 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

City of West Palm Beach 
401 Clematis Street 

West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Contact: Jim Gammon 

(561) 494-1040 
 
Gaines Park Community Center Expansion, West Palm Beach, Florida 
 
SCOPE: In collaboration with Bermello Ajamil & Partners, Inc., we were commissioned in 
2006 to provide drainage analysis, site civil engineering design, environmental permitting and 
construction administration services for the construction of a 3.16 acre facility, comprising a 
building, parking areas and sidewalks within the existing 55.0 acre recreational facility.  This 
facility’s expansion enhances the community’s ability to engage their youth in produc-
tive social behavior and to implement effective youth violence prevention efforts. 

 

 
 

REGULATING/COORDINATING AGENCIES: West Palm Beach, PBCHD, SFWMD. 
 
Services completed in 2009 
 
Total Cost: $2M 
 
PROJECT MANAGERS: Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
       Randy S. Wertepny, PE 
 

 

2829

147

 
147 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

Palm Beach County Engineering and Public Works 
2300 North Jog Road 

West Palm Beach, Fl 33411 
Contact: Charles Rich, P.E. 

(561) 684-4000 
 

60th Street North and  “M” Canal Crossing, Palm Beach County, Florida 
 
SCOPE: As Palm Beach County’s Consulting Engineers/Surveyors for the County’s MSTU 
Program, K&A was commissioned in 2000 to prepare an Alignment Study to determine 
necessary improvements to the crossing of the “M” Canal at 60th Street North.  The study 
included a cost analysis of alternative methods (Culverts vs. Bridge), of crossing the “M” 
Canal.  Upon determination of the appropriate corridor, we prepared survey documents and 
engineering plans, details and specifications for implementation of the suggested improvements 
for approximately 2600 LF of roadway, and the associated dry detention area and outfall canal.  
Our services included extensive negotiations, on behalf of the County, with the City of West 
Palm Beach, Indian Trails Improvement District and Cypress Grove Community Development 
District.  This project was placed on hold pending the execution of an interlocal agreement with 
the City of West Palm Beach. 
 
REGULATING/ COORDINATING AGENCIES: Palm Beach County, City of West Palm 
Beach (and their subconsultants, CH2M Hill and Mock Roos), Indian Trails Improvement Dis-
trict and Cypress Grove Community Development District.  
 
PROJECT MANAGERS: Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
      Allen T. Green III, PE 

2930

148

 
148 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

The Scripps Research Institute 
Facilities Services 

10550 North Torrey Pines Road 
La Jolla, CA 92037 

Contact: Pete Herold, Vice President 
(858) 784-8861 

 
Scripps Research Institute Florida Headquarters, Jupiter, Florida 
 
SCOPE:  K&A’s reputation in consistently delivering successful results on sensitive assign-
ments led to our selection as the Civil Engineer of Record for Palm Beach County’s most pres-
tigious guest. In collaboration with Zeidler Partnership, Inc., we were contracted first in 2004 
for Mecca Farms site and then in 2006 to prepare the construction plans and facilitate the 
permitting for the site and civil infrastructure including water, wastewater and reclaimed 
water for the Scripps Research Institute Headquarters at the Florida Atlantic Univer-
sity’s Jupiter Campus. After concluding those services several weeks ahead of the already ag-
gressive deadlines, we performed the construction administration services for the Scripps facili-
ties in Abacoa, comprising a 364,000 SF building complex on a 
30 acre site.   
 
REGULATING/ COORDINATING AGENCIES: Town of 
Jupiter, NPBCID, FAU, US ARMY CORPS, Loxahatchee River 
District, PBC Land Development, Fire Marshal and Health De-
partments, SFWMD, and Florida Fish & Wildlife.   
 
This project was successfully completed ahead of schedule and 
within budget in 2008. 
 
CONSTRUCTION COST: $170M           
 
PROJECT MANAGERS: Maziar Keshavarz, PE   
Scott F. Bryson, PSM and Ralph D. Davis, III 
  

3031

149

 
149 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

City of West Palm Beach 
401 Clematis Street 

West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Contact: Jim Gammon 

(561) 494-1040 
 

WPB Disaster Monitoring Services, “M” Canal, West Palm Beach, Florida 
 
SCOPE:  In collaboration with Taylor Engineering following the hurricane events during the 
2005 season, the City of West Palm Beach commissioned our firm to perform land survey-
ing activities to determine the extent of damage and emergency repairs needed at Clear 
Lake, Lake Mangonia, the M Canal and the Water Catchment Area projects, an area 
comprising over 8½ miles of waterside length. Our services included obtaining all survey 
data associated with the historical edge and/or water base lines, construction staking activities 
during construction of improvements, and record data acquisition.  
 
Services were successfully completed in 2006 
 
PROJECT COST: (fee) $39K 
 
PROJECT MANAGERS:  Maziar Keshavarz, PE 
    James C. Dutton, P.S.M.                                                                                            

3132

150

 
150 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

The Max Planck Society  
Division of International Relations 

One Max Planck Way 
Jupiter, FL 33458 

Contact: Dr. Claudia Hillinger 
(561) 972-9023 

 
“Max Planck Florida Institute”, Jupiter, Florida 
 
SCOPE:  In 2008, we were commissioned to perform professional land surveying and civil en-
gineering services for the infrastructure due diligence process in connection with the Max 
Planck Florida Institute at FAU in Jupiter. Our services have included preparation of a legal de-
scription and graphic depiction of the right of way for the access road connecting the project to 
Donald Ross Road and Scripps Way.  Our services also included the creation and prepara-
tion of the legal description and associated graphic representation of the proposed parcel 
of land to be “leased” from FAU for the Max Planck facilities based on density require-
ments and the Client’s needs to support the proposed building.  Our services were com-
pleted early 2009. 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Scott F. Bryson, P.S.M. 

3233

151

 
151 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

REFERENCES 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

George Webb, P.E., County Engineer 
PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS 
P. O. Box 21229 
West Palm Beach, FL  33416 
(561) 684-4070 
Acting as Continuing Consulting Engineer/Surveyor for MSTU Program since 1992 and     
General Civil  Engineering Services since 1993 
Projects: Roan Lane Area Drainage Improvements, together with over 75 MSTU Street Im-
provement Projects 
 
Bevin Beaudet, P.E., Director  
PALM BEACH COUNTY WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
8100 Forest Hill Boulevard 
West Palm Beach, Fl  33416 
(561) 493-6001 
Acting as Consulting Engineer since 2011 
Projects: Glades Regional Hospital Watermain Extension and    Aberdeen Reclaimed Water 
System, together with over 100 various private and public projects within their jurisdiction 
 
Elizee Michele, Executive Director 
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 215 
West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
 (561) 640-8181 
Projects: Continuing engineering/surveying services since 2000 for the entire 1400 acre area of 
the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency, including water manage-
ment, utilities master planning, streetscape, etc. 
 
Carlos DeRojas, P.E., Senior Supervisor, Engineering 
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
3301 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, FL  33407 
(561) 682-6505 
Projects: Over 150 public and private “Environmental Resource Permit” approvals success-
fully completed. 
 
 
 
 

3334

152

 
152 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

REFERENCES 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

RESPONDENTS QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

O’Neal Bardin, Jr., Executive Director 
NORTHERN PALM BEACH COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
359 Hiatt Drive  
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33418 
(561) 624-7830 
Acting as District Consulting Engineer/Surveyor since 2002 
Projects: Donald Ross Road Widening, Donald Ross Road and Military Trail Intersection and 
Sidewalk Improvements, PGA National Roadway Resurfacing, Indian Creek Parkway and Mili-
tary Trail Intersection Improvements 
 
Kenneth S. Todd, Jr., P.E., Water Resources Manager, County Administration 
PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
301 N. Olive Avenue, Suite 1101.5 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
(561) 355-4600 
Projects: Stub Canal and L-2 Canal Basins Drainage Study 
 
Clinton R. Yerkes, Deputy Executive Director 
LOXAHATCHEE RIVER DISTRICT 
2500 Jupiter Park Drive 
Jupiter, FL  33458 
(561) 747-5700 
Acting as Continuing Consulting Engineer/Surveyor since 2010 
Projects: Pennock Point Low Pressure System, Loxahatchee Landings Sanitary Sewer System, 
Toney Penna Commercial and Ocean Cove Force Main 
 
 
 

3435

153

 
153 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



Civil Engineering 
Randy Wertepny, P.E. 

Project Manager 
Allen T. Green III, P.E. 

Project Manager 
Amir J. Keshavarz, E.I. 

Project Engineer 

Construction Administration 
Ralph D. Davis, III 

Construction Project Manager                                
Jack Forsythe 
Field Technician  

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY TO PERFORM REQUESTED SERVICES 
 

Staff  Organizational Chart 

Surveying 
Scott F. Bryson, P.S.M. 

Survey Director 
James C. Dutton, P.S.M. 

Senior Surveyor/Crew Chief 
Karen Dutton 

Instrument Technician 

CAD/D 
Raymond A. Busutil 
Senior CAD Technician 

Permitting/Processing 
Joan P. Sopczak 
Regulatory Liaison 

Administrative Assistant 

Contract Administration 
Deborah L. Fulgenzi 

Administrator 

Project Director 
Maziar Keshavarz, P.E. 

Principle in Charge 

3536

154

 
154 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Firm’s Approach - Keshavarz & Associates, Inc.’s (K&A) overall approach is one that is built 
on “team approach” and the premise of quality control by peer participation and review.        
Although a specific Project Manager is assigned to serve as the point of contact at K&A,     
typically the entire body of engineering and survey professionals, including Maziar Keshavarz, 
participate in the planning and design of the project. It is our belief that the multi-person       
approach offers the best potential for success in the form of deeper formation of the project 
strategy, a more efficient design and better quality control throughout the design and construc-
tion process. Our staff is sensitive to issues related to potential legal liability of the Client 
throughout the design and construction process and takes great care to avoid undue exposure in 
this regard. K&A remains active and present in all phases of project development from the    
preparatory kick-off sessions to final certifications.  
 
Due to the unspecific nature of the services discussed in this RFQ, it is not possible to predict 
the timing and type of assignments by the Town; however, typically the project development 
approach utilized by K&A includes the following steps: 
 
Planning Phase – This process would begin with a close study of the Town’s “wish list” for 
the project, leading into identification of project participants and responsibilities, documenta-
tion of existing physical and financial opportunities and constraints.  The project schedule 
would either be formed with the Town’s participation or, if one already is desired or prepared 
by the Town, it will be evaluated and committed to.  A project specific survey syllabus will be 
authored with the Town’s participation and input.  Following will be review of design criteria 
and permitting requirements through a series of meetings and interviews with pertinent agen-
cies, including Town staff.  Specific focus will be applied towards identifying any opportunities  
to implement “LEED” and/or other “sustainable design” measures into the project while identi-
fying environmentally sensitive issues.  Finally, K&A will provide assistance with identifying 
possible funding sources, including grants, loans and other pertinent financial support.  This 
phase will also include the identification of potentially sensitive regulatory or political issues 
and K&A staff, together with Town staff, will participate in “Strategic Planning” sessions to 
identify means and methods of resolving these issues. 
 
 
 

3637

155

 
155 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Survey Data Acquisition - The accuracy of our designs is predicated on an accurate set of 
notes and calculations prepared by our Land Surveying Department.  To that end, we have two      
licensed professionals with combined experience of over 50 years, all in Palm Beach County, 
who oversee the field and office tasks associated with the pre-design efforts.  Additionally, 
these two individuals have acquired experience in many facets of surveying including Bound-
ary, Construction Layout, Control, Hydrographic, Mean High Water Line, Quantity, Right-of-
Way, Record Drawings, Specific Purpose and Topographic Surveys.  Both of these individuals 
possess technical expertise in performing the firm’s computer analysis and calculations. 
 
Design Phase – Preliminary Design (30%) -  K&A staff and consultants shall work in con-
junction with the Town to refine the scope of the project, begin the field data acquisition/
verification process as a supplement to the Town’s data/record data and in concert with the sur-
vey syllabus prepared previously, prepare preliminary design documents consisting of prelimi-
nary drawings, draft specifications and preliminary construction cost estimate. Preliminary 
documents are presented for review and comment to the applicable parties.   First round of 
meetings with regulators for preliminary review of design documents occur at this stage setting 
the stage for a “no surprises” process of review. 
 
Interim Design (60%) - Based upon receipt of comments from the preliminary design review 
from the Town and other entities, the plans are revised and refined and the applicable details 
and specifications are further developed. Construction estimate is updated. Plans are reissued 
for review and comment prior to completion of the final design and permitting phase.  Formal 
permit applications are submitted to all pertinent regulators at this stage. 
 
Final Design (90%-100%) - The final design documents (calculations, plans, details and speci-
fications) are completed, ready for submission to the applicable permitting agencies. The con-
struction cost estimates are finalized, bid forms prepared, notices and instructions to bidders are 
issued, if necessary.  K&A will assist with preparation of general conditions, supplementary 
general conditions and other construction contract documents. 
 
Permitting Phase - Prepare and submit permitting documents as required to obtain approvals 
of governmental authorities having jurisdiction and assume engineering responsibility in obtain-
ing such approvals by participating in submissions to, and negotiating with the appropriate 
agencies.  This shall include furnishing back-up data as required during the various review pro-
cedures.  As stated earlier, this task begins by a series of meetings and interviews very early in 
the design process and becomes more formalized towards the end. 
 
 

3738

156

 
156 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Construction Phase – After preparation and issuance of the bid documents, K&A will assist 
the Town during the “Bid Phase” by responding to “Requests for Information (RFIs)” and 
“Contract Negotiations and Award Phase” by utilizing our relevant and local experience.  
K&A’s participation in this phase will also include consulting with and advising the Town as to 
the acceptability of substitute materials and equipment proposed by the Contractor, evaluating 
the bids, assembling the non-legal portions of construction contract documents and making a 
recommendation of award of the construction contract.  
 
Once the construction phase begins, K&A will complement the Town’s staff by providing ad-
ministration of the construction contract to include: routine site visits, preparation of site visit 
reports, review of shop drawings, change orders, pay requests, issuance of written notifications 
as needed, review of record drawings and completion certifications as required by the regula-
tory agencies.  K&A’s role as “Engineer of Record” during the construction phase is one com-
prising the Town’s “eyes and ears” towards insuring that the Town’s quality, scheduling and 
fiscal interests are well protected.  K&A’s services during this phase will be performed by a 
combination of experienced field representatives fully supported by registered engineers in the 
office, all working under the supervision of the Project Manager who orchestrated the design 
and permitting phases.  
 
In as much as Design and Construction occurs once, maintenance is an ongoing task throughout 
the life of the system, thus strong emphasis should be put on the future maintenance efforts of 
the system under design by the Engineer.  At K&A, we design on a comprehensive platform; an 
approach that takes all of the above into consideration.  If one is left out, the project is a failure.  
Likewise, if one is over-attended, another parameter will suffer. 
 
Grant Application Expertise  - K&A staff are uniquely qualified to assist our clients in the 
process of identification, application, implementation, record keeping and auditing of various 
grant programs.  K&A’s involvement with the socio-political scene throughout Palm Beach 
County has resulted in our ability to learn about various opportunities in terms of grants origi-
nating at the State and Federal levels.  Our mature and positive relationships with decision mak-
ers on these grant programs have also proven to yield significant results for our clients.  
 
For the past ten years, we have been instrumental in the provision of technical reports and 
analysis to support the Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA’s grant applications for FEMA’s  
Hazard Mitigation Grant Programs (HMGP) and other grants, including  
Lake Worth Lagoon, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG),  
Housing and Community Department (HCD).  A total of $11,000,000  
in grants have been secured over the last 7 years through the CRA and  
K&A’s collaborative efforts. 
 
 

3839

157

 
157 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Regulatory and Permitting Success - We fully recognize the importance of the regulatory 
process associated with our projects and as such, have concentrated on that responsibility.  By 
collaboration with, rather than effortlessly and prematurely agreeing with the regulators; by 
face to face dialogue, rather than the customary letter writing efforts; by assigning a senior staff 
member to head our exchanges of information and documents with them, we have demon-
strated our desired relationship to be one of a deliberate partnership, rather than a guarded 
transaction.    
 
We utilize a tracking method for all of our projects during the approval process in the form of a 
table, which has become a standard feature of our firm’s services.  This table lists all of the per-
mits necessary, the contact persons, submittal, response and re-submittal dates, approval and 
expiration dates for each permit, together with all germane specific conditions listed as notes.  
Our clients as well as our staff refer to this digital “living document” to assess the status of the 
project’s permitting phase in one glance. 
 
It is important to note that in 26 years, K&A has participated in almost 1000 projects in Palm 
Beach County, during which over 3000 permits have been applied for by this firm. In this 
lengthy history of working with regulatory and permitting agencies, municipalities, utility com-
panies and State Transportation authorities, at no point have we been unable to successfully 
guide a permit through the approval process. Through the relationships we enjoy with these 
permitting and regulatory agencies of all kind, an acceptable design that is acceptable by the 
client is always found, sometimes through creative, or perhaps unusual, yet well thought out 
and supported solutions. We refer you to our list of references where a number of our clients, 
some regulators themselves, comment on our excellent abilities and relationships with the regu-
lators we work with.  
 
K&A has dealt with many complicated issues regarding design constraints and considerations 
throughout Palm Beach County while working with these permitting agencies in stride. We 
look forward to becoming more familiar with the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
through a working relationship and meeting the new design challenges that your unique town 
offers. 

 

3940

158

 
158 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Cost Estimates and “Value Engineering” - Like many other engineering firms we have a bank 
of information at our disposal with actual construction costs for each of our projects and other 
related information available that we utilize for cost estimating purposes.  What separates our 
ability to provide current and accurate construction cost estimates is that we do not rely solely 
on past construction bids.  We have and maintain very good relationships with various reputable 
contractors within Palm Beach County, with whom we collaborate to confirm the constantly 
changing costs associated with the construction industry.  This additional input bolsters our cost 
estimating capabilities and allows us to provide current and accurate information for our clients.  
Our most recent estimates of construction costs have been within 5% of the actual bid amount. 
 
Another area of focus as related to construction cost should be “Change Orders”.  While the 
“Bid Price” is seldom the final price for any construction project, the legitimacy and magnitude 
of “Change Orders’ must be examined carefully by your engineers.  K&A has an excellent track 
record of meeting our client’s expectations with respect to project costs and specifically in 
minimizing “Change Order” issuance through proper design document preparation and pre-
design investigation of existing conditions.  All that said, sometimes in the complex setting of 
the construction process, conditions arise that were not expected which justify approval of 
“Change Orders”.  It is, however, our belief that an accurate set of design documents is key to 
minimizing change orders.  Our largest public client, Palm Beach County, consistently ranks us 
highly on our ability to meet construction budgets and minimizing change orders. 
 
Meeting our client’s construction budgets is of paramount importance to our firm’s reputation 
and success.  As such, we have learned that the process of cost containment must become an 
integral part of the design process and focused on at every stage.  We do not believe in perform-
ing  a “Value Engineering” effort at the end of the project upon discovery of an exceeded 
“Construction Budget”.  True “Value Engineering” must be intertwined with the design process 
from the onset and adhered to throughout the design and approval phase.  “Value Engineering” 
at the end of a completed design is simply a dilution of project quality and must be avoided at 
all costs.  Good design yields “Value Engineered” systems automatically.  
 
We recognize that in performing the services requested with this RFQ, we may be required to 
apply the concept of “Value Engineering” to a completed set of construction documents pre-
pared by others.  This is a role that we have played in the past and have successfully provided 
cost efficient solutions for our clients with an emphasis on not incurring additional significant 
maintenance responsibilities as a result of our “Value Engineering” recommendations.    
 

 
 
 
 

4041

159

 
159 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Schedule, Cost and Quality Control - Project schedules are monitored consistently throughout 
the project duration, irrespective of the specific phase of activities.  Project schedules are often 
driven by issues or entities outside of the K&A and client relationship.  We fully recognize the 
ramifications of not meeting project schedules.  Throughout our 25 year tenure, we have devel-
oped tools and control methods to prevent schedule failures.  Schedules and costs are monitored 
consistently by Mr. Keshavarz as well as the designated project managers through computer 
based cost management and scheduling tools provided to all firm personnel.  Project costs and 
their relationship with the designated project completion milestones are also consistently moni-
tored and discussed in weekly project management meetings.  While most of our projects are 
performed under the “fixed fee” arrangement which protect our clients from exposure to unex-
pected fee increases, we recognize the negative impact that an “Exceeded Design Budget” can 
have on the performance of the project manager and ultimately the quality of the related work 
product.  As such, we have developed methods by which we quickly identify and control 
budget overruns on our projects and take the appropriate steps to remedy them 
 
Availability Commitment - We would like to emphasize that we fully recognize the importance 
of timely delivery of products that result in projects built within our Client’s budgets and fund-
ing parameters.  Even the most brilliantly engineered systems delivered without regards to 
budgeting and scheduling constraints are often futile efforts.  The objective of embarking on a 
design project is not only to create a perfect system or finish a task timely or meet a design 
budget, or even get a permit.  The true purpose is to design a system within the constraints of 
the “Project” and “Client” which, once constructed, will stand the test of time for decades to 
come while providing a safe and secure service to it’s users.  Currently, we are fully committed 
and available to provide the Town of Loxahatchee Groves the services requested, and would be 
glad to rise to the privilege of  continual work in the future for your unique town. 
 
It should be noted that our current workloads, in line with the rest of our industry, have suffered 
a meaningful contraction in recent years due to the economic downturn.  As such, we consider 
your request for qualifications a timely and opportune event and are confident that we can re-
spond to all of your needs expeditiously and effectively. 
 
As a general practice, K&A undergoes an in-depth review and research process regarding 
RFQ’s that arise in an effort to be selective as to what work we engage in.  Our decision to pur-
sue this RFQ is our expressed statement of commitment and availability to consistently provide 
the Town of Loxahatchee Groves with our expertise. 
 
 
 

4142

160

 
160 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

Knowledge of Your Town – We have reviewed the Town of Loxahatchee Groves Strategic 
Plan, Master Roadway, Equestrian and Greenway Plan, together with the 2012-2013 Annual 
Operating and Capital Budgets in order to familiarize ourselves with the services anticipated 
under this contract.  We have also extensively reviewed the Comprehensive Plan, Trail Plan and 
Ordinances, and are already familiar with the Unified Land Development Code, as adopted in 
2010 as well as the strict development standards adopted by the town.  We are aware of the 
more stringent water management criteria for the Town as compared to Palm Beach County and 
the South Florida Water Management District. 
 
We have also become familiar with Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District and their rela-
tionship with the town in regards to design standards and the operation and maintenance of the 
stormwater and roadway infrastructure in conjunction with the town. We are aware of the 
Town’s desire to maintain its unique community, to preserve its environment and maintain a 
rural/equestrian lifestyle. 
 
 
Financial Strength - K&A always welcomes clients and government agencies that request fis-
cal solvency of all entities they conduct business with. Where other firms may consider it in-
convenient or an affront on their trustworthiness, we believe it shows a necessary focus and 
value on financial strength and transparency.  We have NEVER had any debt, EVER. Please 
see the attached exhibits as indicators of our financial strength currently, in spite of the chal-
lenging years since 2008. 

 
I, Maziar Keshavarz, P.E., President and Owner of Keshavarz & Associates, Inc., hereby affirm 
that Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. has been and remains in excellent financial status.  As of   
December 2012, the firm’s long term liabilities equate to approximately $32,000.00, whereas 
the total assets equate to approximately $800,000.00. 
 
The firm has continued to operate profitably since it’s inception in 1987. 
 
I also attest that Keshavarz & Associates, Inc. is fully capable of meeting all of it’s financial 
obligations currently and for the foreseeable future. 
 

4243

161

 
161 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 

BANK REFERENCES: 
 
Philip G. Blumel, CFP, Certified Financial Planner 
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
525 Okeechobee Boulevard, Suite 900 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(800) 351-5400 
 
Bill Bramlett, Vice President 
SUNTRUST BANK 
501 S. Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
(561) 835-2820 
 
 
TRADE REFERENCES: 
 
George G. Gentile, FASLA, LEED AP, Lead Partner 
GENTILE, GLAS, HOLLOWAY & O’MAHONEY & ASSOCIATE,S INC. 
1907 Commerce Lane, Suite 101 
Jupiter, FL 33458 
 (561) 575-9557 
 
Roberto Balbis, P.E., Branch Manager/Vice President 
ARDAMAN & ASSOCIATES 
2200 North Florida Mango Road, Suite 101 
West Palm Beach, Florida  33409 
(561) 687-8200 
 
Bijan Parssi, P.E., President 
BOTKIN PARSSI & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
6141 Lake Worth Road 
Lake Worth, FL  33463 
(561) 965-1957 
 
 

 

4344

162

 
162 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 
4445

163

 
163 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 
4546

164

 
164 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

KESHAVARZ  & ASSOCIATES 

ABILITY AND CAPABILITY  

 

 
4647

165

 
165 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 CURRENT LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

 
 

P
R

O
F

E
SS

IO
N

A
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S 

4748

166

 
166 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 CURRENT LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

 
 

P
R

O
F

E
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S 
A

N
D

 M
A

P
P

E
R

S 

4849

167

 
167 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 CURRENT LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

 
 

4950

168

 
168 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5051

169

 
169 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5152

170

 
170 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5253

171

 
171 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5354

172

 
172 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5455

173

 
173 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5556

174

 
174 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



5657

175

 
175 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



176

 
176 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



177

 
177 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



178

 
178 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



179

 
179 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



180

 
180 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



181

 
181 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



182

 
182 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



183

 
183 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



184

 
184 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



185

 
185 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



186

 
186 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



187

 
187 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



188

 
188 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



189

 
189 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



190

 
190 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



191

 
191 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



192

 
192 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



193

 
193 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



194

 
194 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



195

 
195 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



196

 
196 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



197

 
197 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



198

 
198 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



199

 
199 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



200

 
200 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



201

 
201 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



202

 
202 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



203

 
203 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



204

 
204 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



205

 
205 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



206

 
206 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



207

 
207 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



208

 
208 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



209

 
209 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



210

 
210 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



211

 
211 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



212

 
212 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



RFQ #2013-001
 Professional Engineering Services

Robert F. Rennebaum, P.E.
5601 Corporate Way, #200

West Palm Beach, FL 33407
Ph: (561) 478-7848

Fax: (561) 478-3738

FEI #59-2170917

ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS

Traffic Engineering

Civil Engineering

Site Development

Construction Inspection 

Sustainable Design

213

 
213 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 
RFQ #2013-001  
Professional Engineering Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

3.2C  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................. Page   1 
 
3.2D  QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERIENCE ................................................. Page   3 
          Representative Projects ............................................................ Page 23 
          References ............................................................................... Page 44 
 
3.2E  CAPABILITIES ............................................................................ Page 60  
 
3.2F  BINDING REQUIREMENTS ......................................................... Page 71 
 
4.0  SUBMISSION DOCUMENTS ......................................................... Page 72 

 

214

 
214 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



215

 
215 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



216

 
216 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



217

 
217 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



218

 
218 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



219

 
219 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



220

 
220 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



221

 
221 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



222

 
222 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



223

 
223 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



224

 
224 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



225

 
225 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



226

 
226 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



227

 
227 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



228

 
228 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



229

 
229 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



230

 
230 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



231

 
231 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



232

 
232 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



233

 
233 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



234

 
234 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



235

 
235 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



236

 
236 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



237

 
237 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



238

 
238 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



239

 
239 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



240

 
240 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



241

 
241 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



242

 
242 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



243

 
243 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



244

 
244 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



245

 
245 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



246

 
246 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



247

 
247 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



248

 
248 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



249

 
249 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



250

 
250 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



251

 
251 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



252

 
252 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



253

 
253 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



254

 
254 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



255

 
255 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



256

 
256 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



257

 
257 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



258

 
258 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



259

 
259 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



260

 
260 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



261

 
261 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



262

 
262 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



263

 
263 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



264

 
264 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



265

 
265 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



266

 
266 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



267

 
267 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



268

 
268 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



269

 
269 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



270

 
270 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



271

 
271 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



272

 
272 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



273

 
273 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



274

 
274 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



275

 
275 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



276

 
276 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



277

 
277 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



278

 
278 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



279

 
279 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



280

 
280 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



281

 
281 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



282

 
282 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



283

 
283 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



284

 
284 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



  

   

3.2.F Binding Requirements Town of Loxahatchee Groves RFQ #2013-001  
Professional Engineering Services 

 
 
As the President of Simmons & White, Inc. and Co-Principal In Charge, I Robert F. Rennebaum, authorize that the 
information submitted to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves in this Request for Qualifications is true and accurate, that 
this submittal is to remain valid for 180 days from the date entered below, and upon award of a contract, the contents 
of this submittal may be included as part of the contract with the Town at the Town’s discretion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
        Robert F. Rennebaum, P.E., LEED AP 
        President 
 
 
 
         March 21, 2013     
        Date 

pg. 71

285

 
285 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



286

 
286 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



287

 
287 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



288

 
288 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



289

 
289 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



290

 
290 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



291

 
291 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



292

 
292 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



TRAFF IC  ENG INEER ING
C IV I L  ENG INEER ING
S ITE  DEVELOPMENT
CONSTRUCT ION  INSPECT ION
SUSTA INABLE  DES IGN

Founded in 1982, Simmons & White, Inc. 
is a comprehensive professional engi-
neering firm headquartered in West Palm 
Beach, Florida.  We offer a full range of 
consulting services to both 
private and public sector clients in Florida 
and the Southeastern United States.

As our firm has grown and diversified over 
the years, we have built a reputation for 
mastering challenges, providing outstand-
ing service and doing the right thing for our 
clients.  Simmons & White has built a strong 
client base of satisfied customers, by deliver-
ing cost-effective reliable solutions for projects 
performing site development / civil engineer-
ing, traffic engineering, and 
construction services.   

Simmons & White, Inc. proudly serves the private 
development community, municipal and public 
sector clients, both large and small:   architects, 
corporations, institutions, developers, building con-

tractors, government agencies and land planners 
– utilizing our exceptional engineering knowledge to 

provide solutions that work.  It is this value we bring 
to our clients and their projects.

w w w . s i m m o n s a n d w h i t e . c o m

5601 Corporate Way, Suite 200
West Palm Beach, Florida 33407
p 561.478.7848  f 561.478.3738

293

 
293 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



 

 

 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves Meeting Schedule 

294

 
294 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13



295

 
295 of 295   TC Agenda Packet 5-21-13


	Item 2.a. Minutes
	10.a. Pond Siting Update
	Item 10.e. Administrative Policy
	ITB 2013-001 Contracts LGWCD
	ITB 2013-001 Contract C & C Loader
	RFQ 2013-001 Engineering Services Ratification of Selected Respondents
	Town Meeting Schedule



